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PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS.
Vail Resorts, Inc. ("VRI"), formerly known as Gillett Holdings, Inc., is
organized as a holding company and operates through various subsidiaries. VRI
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the "Company") currently operate in two
business segments, ski resorts and real estate development. Vail Associates,
Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Vail Resorts, Inc., and its subsidiaries
(collectively, "Vail Associates") operate one of the world's largest skiing
facilities on Vail Mountain and Beaver Creek Mountain in Colorado and have
related real estate operations. Vail Associates Real Estate Group ("VAREG") is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Vail Associates, Inc. which conducts the Company's
real estate development activities.
RESORTS
The Company operates skiing facilities on Vail Mountain and Beaver Creek
Mountain in Colorado. For the 1995-1996 ski season, Vail Mountain and Beaver
Creek Mountain had 2,228,057 total skiers, as compared to 2,136,063 total
skiers for the previous year. The operation of a ski resort business is
seasonal. The Company's ski areas typically open in mid-November and close in
mid-April each year. Vail Associates currently employs approximately 800 yearround and 3,500 seasonal employees.
Vail Mountain consists of 4,112 acres of skiable terrain located on 12,590
permitted acres. Vail Mountain is the largest single ski mountain complex in
the United States and for the 1996-97 ski season, will have a total of 26
lifts, including 10 high speed quads and a new high speed custom-designed
gondola, constituting the largest network of high speed lifts in the world.
Vail Mountain's 34th season ran from November 11, 1995 through May 1, 1996.
Vail Mountain had a total of 1,652,191 skiers for the season, the highest
number of skier days of any North American ski mountain and a new record for
Vail Mountain. The Company has received approval, subject to a pending appeal,
from the United States Forest Service (the "Forest Service") for infrastructure
development of bowl skiing terrain within its current permit area known as
Category III. (See "Business--Regulation and Legislation"). Category III will
add approximately 2,000 additional acres of ski terrain to Vail Mountain's back
bowls, including 850 acres of new trails and an additional 1,150 acres of
undisturbed gladed skiing, increasing the ski terrain on Vail Mountain by
approximately 50%. The terrain's high, north facing location typically yields
reliable snow conditions and should allow for earlier and later ski season
operations than is typical for Vail's existing south facing Back Bowls.
Beaver Creek Resort is a year-round recreational complex located on 2,126
acres of land located approximately ten miles west of the Town of Vail. Beaver
Creek Mountain consists of the Beaver Creek, Arrowhead and Bachelor Gulch ski
areas. Beaver Creek Mountain, opened in 1980, is located on approximately 2,775
permitted acres and consists of approximately 1,191 acres of skiable terrain.
In 1993, the Company expanded Beaver Creek Mountain by acquiring privately
owned ski terrain and development property on Arrowhead Mountain and in
Bachelor Gulch. The Company recently completed initial development of ski
infrastructure in Bachelor Gulch in connection with its real estate development
activities (see "Real Estate" below), thereby interconnecting the Beaver Creek,
Bachelor Gulch and Arrowhead ski areas, resulting in total skiable terrain on
Beaver Creek Mountain of 1,521 acres for the 1996-97 ski season. Beaver Creek
Mountain will operate 14 lifts for the 1996-97 ski season. Beaver Creek
Mountain is among the nation's 20 largest ski areas (based upon the annual
number of skiers). During its 16th season, from November 18, 1995 through April
14, 1996, Beaver Creek Mountain had a total of 575,866 skiers.
Given their location in the Colorado Rocky Mountains, Vail Mountain and
Beaver Creek Mountain receive some of the most reliable snowfall experienced
anywhere in the world, averaging approximately 340 inches of annual snowfall
over the last 20 years, which is significantly in excess of the average for all
ski resorts in the Rocky Mountains for such period. Despite the substantial
natural snowfall, the Company continues to invest in the latest technology in
snowmaking systems and actively acquires additional water
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rights, which has allowed it to offer its guests more predictable and
consistent conditions, particularly during the early and late ski season.
During 1995, the Company doubled its snowmaking capacity on Vail Mountain and
purchased water rights sufficient to enable a further doubling of snowmaking
capacity in the future. For the 1996-97 ski season, the Company will increase
snowmaking capacity on Beaver Creek Mountain by 60% and, with the addition of
a new reservoir planned for completion in 1997, will further increase
snowmaking capacity on Beaver Creek Mountain by an additional 100%. For the
1996-97 ski season, approximately 800 acres of the Company's ski terrain will
be covered by snowmaking. In addition, the Company has extensive snowgrooming
equipment, including the largest fleet of snowcats in the world.
The Company's customers are primarily comprised of worldwide resort
destination guests and, to a lesser extent, day skiers from the Denver
Metropolitan area, and Eagle and Summit counties. For the 1995-96 ski season,
the Company believes that destination guests represented 73% of total skier
days. Although the Company's resorts accommodate a wide range of budgets and
attract guests from different regions of the country and the world, they are
particularly attractive to family-oriented guests who tend to generate higher
and more diversified revenues per guest than day skiers from local population
centers. Over forty percent of the Company's destination guests visited with
their families during the 1995-96 ski season. International guests, who tend
to have longer average stays and higher vacation expenditures than other
destination guests, accounted for approximately 13% of the Company's
destination skier days during the 1995-96 ski season.
Consistent with the trends in the overall ski market, snowboarders represent
the fastest growing segment of the Company's guest demographic. The Company is
committed to promoting snowboarding as an exciting outgrowth of traditional
skiing. As an example of this commitment, the Company has upgraded its
snowboard facilities, published trail maps for the convenience of snowboarders
and created additional trails, half-pipes and other varied terrain to attract
snowboarders.
The Company derives Resort Revenue from a wide variety of sources, including
lift ticket sales, ski school, food service, retail stores, equipment rental,
travel reservation services, lodging, property and club management, real
estate brokerage, licensing and sponsorship activities and other recreational
activities.
Lift Ticket Sales. Lift ticket revenue represents the Company's single
largest revenue source. The Company's favorable demographics and world class
resort facilities have enabled the Company to achieve premium ticket pricing.
The lead ticket price, which for the 1995-96 ski season was $48 a day, is
among the highest in the industry. To maximize skier volume during non-peak
periods and attract certain segments of the market, the Company also offers a
wide variety of incentive ticket programs, including season passes, student
rates, group discounts and senior discounts.The Company engages in
sophisticated yield management analysis to maximize its effective ticket price
(defined as total ticket revenue divided by total skier days) which was $31.12
for the 1995-96 ski season, among the highest in the industry.
Ski School. The Company operates the world's largest ski school with
approximately 1,300 instructors. The Company estimates that it has a guest
participation rate of approximately 12% which it believes to be the highest in
the industry.
The success of the ski school comes from (i) personalizing and enhancing the
guest vacation experience, (ii) creating new teaching and learning systems
(many of which have historically been purchased from the Company by the
Professional Ski Instructors of America and adopted as the standard for the
industry), (iii) introducing innovative teaching methods for children,
including separate children's centers, mountain-wide attractions, themed
entertainment and teaching systems geared toward specific age groups, and (iv)
continually creating new techniques to react to technological advances in
ski/snowboard equipment. Customer service is continually reviewed and improved
as the result of feedback from customers. The Company has adopted a pay
incentive program to reward instructors based on guest satisfaction and repeat
student visits.
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Food Service. Food service is a key component in providing a satisfying guest
experience and has been an important source of revenue growth for the Company.
The Company believes that by owning and operating both on-mountain and base
area restaurants, it can better ensure the quality of products and services
offered to its guests, as well as capture a greater percentage of the guest's
vacation expenditures. The strategies with respect to its food service
operations include (i) focusing growth in venues which allow for food service
throughout the day and throughout the year, including breakfast, lunch, apresski, dinner, evening entertainment, group functions and summer/non-ski season
operations, (ii) creating unique themed environments to maximize guest
enjoyment and revenue opportunities, (iii) further expanding on-mountain
seating, (iv) offering affordable family lunchtime and evening dining and
entertainment, (v) continuing to create additional private clubs and
restaurants which are financed through memberships and the sale of related real
estate and (vi) continuing affiliations with institutions such as Johnson and
Wales, one of the largest culinary and restaurant management schools in the
world. The large number of food service facilities operated by the Company
allows it to improve margins through large quantity purchasing agreements and
sponsorship relationships.
The Company's restaurant operations range from full service sit-down
restaurants to trailside express food outlets and offer a wide variety of
cuisine. The Company operates 19 restaurants on Vail Mountain and 11
restaurants on Beaver Creek Mountain and in Beaver Creek Village. The Company
currently has indoor seating capacity on Vail Mountain of 3,136. On Beaver
Creek Mountain the Company currently has 1,449 indoor seats. For the 1996-97
ski season, the Company plans to open five additional food service
establishments on Vail Mountain, including two at the Golden Peak base area.
Retail/Rental Operations. The Company's retail division operates all onmountain locations and selected base area locations. Over the last six months,
the Company has taken several steps to significantly expand the scope of its
retail and rental operations in order to maximize revenue derived from these
activities. This expansion will increase retail space from 29,320 square feet
in fiscal 1996 to 33,658 for fiscal 1997 and 42,273 square feet expected for
fiscal 1998.
The Company's on-mountain retail locations offer ski accessories (i.e., hats,
gloves, sunglasses, goggles, warmers), snack food and selected logo
merchandise, all in locations which are conveniently located for skiers. Offmountain, the Company operates both ski equipment rental and retail locations.
The Company's retail operations typically feature Company or resort-related
logo merchandise and products of the Company's sponsors. The Company's rental
operations offer a wide variety of ski and snowboard equipment for daily and
weekly use. The Company intends to utilize certain locations within the
Company's newly created leasable space as new retail and rental operations,
while continuing to maintain a significant presence of third party tenants.
Hospitality. The Company's hospitality operations are designed to offer the
Company's guests a full complement of quality resort services and provide the
Company with additional sources of revenue and profitability. These operations
include reservations, tour and travel operations, lodging and property and club
management.
The Company's reservation center provides information and access to the full
complement of the resorts' services and activities. The center handles over
211,000 calls per year and is capable of booking and selling airline and ground
transportation, lodging, lift tickets, ski school and most other Vail Valley
activities, earning commissions on each third party sale. These advance
reservation activities have had a significant impact on Vail Associates'
ability to attract direct air service to the Vail/Eagle County Airport. Located
25 miles from Beaver Creek Resort, the Vail/Eagle County Airport provides
direct air service from 8 U.S. cities and one-stop connections from 26
international destinations. For the 1996-97 season, scheduled inbound and
outbound one-way seating capacity is 164,264, an increase of 36.6% over the
prior season.
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The Company's property management operation seeks to utilize the Company's
hospitality expertise through the first class management of lodging properties
owned by both the Company and third parties. The Company currently manages 13
properties, including hotels, timeshare projects and condominiums. In certain

situations, such as the Pines Lodge in Beaver Creek Resort (a 60 room luxury
hotel), the Company will purchase properties whose financial performance can be
improved through the Company's property management operation.
The Company is also active in the creation and management of private
membership clubs, which allows the Company to provide high-end services and
amenities to its upper income guest, and evening dining options and other
services and activities to its overall guest population. The Company's current
clubs include (i) the Beaver Creek Club, which offers members luncheon
privileges at Beano's Cabin (which is open to the general public for dinner)
and certain golf, tennis and skiing amenities, (ii) Game Creek Club, which
offers members luncheon privileges and will be open to the general public for
dinner commencing with the 1996-97 ski season, and (iii) the Passport Clubhouse
at Golden Peak(TM), which, when completed, will provide members with a reserved
parking space, concierge services, a private dining facility and locker and
club facilities at the base of Vail Mountain. In addition to using membership
sales to defray and in some cases entirely pay for the cost of construction,
the Company earns management fees for overseeing club operations. The Company
intends to create selected additional clubs over the next five years, including
the Arrowhead Alpine Club at Arrowhead Village and a mountain club to be
located in Bachelor Gulch Village similar to Beano's Cabin. These clubs allow
the Company to add to its restaurant operations and related skier service and
retail operations, at a relatively modest capital cost.
Commercial Leasing Operations. The Company owns significant on-mountain and
base area restaurant, retail and commercial space at both Vail Mountain and
Beaver Creek Mountain. The Company operates all on-mountain space and leases a
portion of its base area space to third parties. The strategy of the Company's
leasing operation is to secure the commercial locations adjacent to its resorts
for retail, restaurant and entertainment venues and carefully select the
appropriate tenant mix for these locations to provide a high quality and
diverse selection of retailers and restauranteurs.
Licensing and Sponsorship. An important part of the Company's business
strategy is to leverage its brand name by (i) entering into sponsorship
relationships and strategic alliances with world-class business partners, (ii)
building its logo and licensing business and (iii) gaining national and
international exposure through the hosting of special events. The Company's
leading industry position coupled with the demographics of its customer base
make it an attractive partner. Examples of the Company's sponsors include (i)
FILA, which is supplying the Company's employee ski uniforms over a six-year
period and has launched a line of clothing using the Vail name and logo (ii)
Chevy Trucks, which provides the Company with mountain vehicles and national
marketing exposure, and (iii) Pepsi, which, among other things, provides
substantial marketing benefits. The Company's sponsorship arrangements
typically have a three to five year term and provide benefits in the form of
cash payments, expense reductions, capital improvements and/or marketing
exposure. The Company has licensed the use of its trademarks to over one
hundred companies for a variety of products such as apparel and sunglasses.
While the terms of each license agreement vary, such agreements generally are
for a two-year term and provide for the payment by the licensee of quarterly
royalty payments ranging from 6% to 8% of the gross wholesale price of the
licensed goods.
Vail and Beaver Creek Mountains are frequently the sites of special events
and promotions. In addition to hosting annual World Cup Skiing and World Cup
Biking events, Vail Mountain and Beaver Creek Mountain have collectively been
chosen as the site for the 1997 World Cup Skiing Finals and the 1999 World
Alpine Skiing Championships, an event previously hosted by Vail in 1989,
marking the first time a North American site has been selected twice. These
events give the Company significant international exposure. TV viewership in
Europe for World Cup Skiing and the World Alpine Skiing Championships is
estimated to be in excess of 250 million viewers. These events will be
organized by and co-hosted with the Vail Valley Foundation, a non-profit
foundation whose mandate is to bring international sporting and cultural events
to
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the Vail Valley. The Foundation provides significant funding, volunteers and
liability assumption in conjunction with such events. The Company's facilities
are also the site of numerous skiing, snowboarding and music events sponsored
by corporations. These events generate revenue for the Company through
sponsorship fees and increased skier traffic, as well as provide national and

international brand exposure through television and advertising campaigns. The
Company also owns an interest in an events production company, Eclipse
Television and Sports Marketing, LLC, which creates and produces made-for-TV
events.
Brokerage. The Company's real estate brokerage operations are conducted
through a joint venture in which the Company has a 50% interest. The joint
venture was created in June 1994 to facilitate the merger of the Company's
brokerage operations, Vail Associates Real Estate, Inc., with the brokerage
operations of Slifer, Smith and Frampton, which combined the two largest
brokerage operations in the Vail Valley. The joint venture has a large share of
both first time developer sales and resales throughout the Vail Valley,
creating both a significant source of profitability and a valuable source of
information in planning and marketing the Company's real estate projects. In
addition to profit distributions from the joint venture, the Company will
directly receive certain override payments on all brokerage revenue from sales
of its own property.
Other Revenue Sources. The Company also derives revenue during the non-ski
season by offering guests a variety of activities and services, including (i)
gondola and chairlift rides, (ii) on-mountain and base area bike rentals, (iii)
on-mountain lunch operations, (iv) wedding and group functions at mountain and
village restaurants, (v) golf and tennis, (vi) horseback riding, fly fishing,
hiking and barbecues at Piney River Ranch(TM) and (vii) shopping at the
Company's retail locations.
REAL ESTATE.
The Company's real estate activities are conducted by VAREG. VAREG's
principal activities include (i) the sale of single family homesites to
individual purchasers; (ii) the sale of certain land parcels to third party
developers for condominium, townhome, cluster home, lodge and mixed use
developments; (iii) the zoning, planning and marketing of new resort
communities (such as Beaver Creek Resort, Bachelor Gulch Village and
Arrowhead); (iv) arranging for the construction of the necessary roads,
utilities and mountain infrastructure for new resort communities; (v) the
development of certain mixed use condominium projects integral to resort
operations (such as the base facility at Golden Peak); and (vi) the purchase of
selected strategic land parcels, which the Company believes can augment its
existing land holdings or resort operations. The Company's current development
activities are focused on (i) the completion of its three resort communities,
Beaver Creek Resort, Bachelor Gulch Village and Arrowhead; (ii) preparing for
the redevelopment of the Lionshead base area at Vail Mountain and adjacent land
holdings; and (iii) the long-term planning of the Company's significant real
estate holdings in and around Avon and at the entrance to Beaver Creek Resort.
In developing its real estate holdings, VAREG typically contracts to sell
multi-family sites to third party developers who undertake the construction and
sale of these projects. In this case, the Company typically receives an upfront
cash payment and a residual interest in the profit realized by such developers.
In connection with the sale of single-family homesites and VAREG's development
of certain mixed use condominium projects, VAREG often seeks to sell such
homesites or condominium residences to individual purchasers in advance of
significant infrastructure investments. As a result, the Company is able to
forecast a large portion of its real estate revenues 12 to 18 months in advance
and reduce development risk prior to making significant expenditures.
The Company currently owns 574 acres of developable real estate, including
land zoned for 1,144 residential units and 152,000 square feet of commercial
space. The majority of the Company's undeveloped land holdings and current
development activities are located in Beaver Creek Resort, Bachelor Gulch
Village and Arrowhead. A summary of each of these resort communities is set
forth below.
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Beaver Creek Resort
Over the past 12 months, VAREG has completed extensive development planning
to complete the Beaver Creek Resort village core. VAREG has sold the One Beaver
Creek and Beaver Creek Village Center development sites to third party
developers. These projects will be adjacent to the Company's existing retail
operations and will contain the majority of the Company's retail and restaurant

operations in Beaver Creek Resort.
In addition to the completion of the Beaver Creek Resort village core, the
Company is engaged in the development of its residential property in Beaver
Creek Resort. In 1994, the Company contracted to sell 30 single-family ski-inski-out homesites (averaging approximately two acres each), in an area known as
Strawberry Park on Beaver Creek Mountain. All 30 lots were sold by VAREG in one
day in a lottery format because demand significantly exceeded the number of
homesites available for purchase. All of those sales closed during fiscal 1996
for total gross proceeds of 30.9 million, an average of over $1.0 million per
homesite.
The Company's remaining land holdings in Beaver Creek Resort consist of one
single-family homesite as well as zoned multi-family sites (requiring limited
additional infrastructure expenditures) expected to contain approximately 200
multi-family residences located at the entrances to Beaver Creek Resort.
Bachelor Gulch Village
The Bachelor Gulch Village development, which will be the newest village on
Beaver Creek Mountain, is comprised of 1,410 acres of Company-owned land
located in a valley between Arrowhead and Beaver Creek Resort. A private
residential resort community set in a natural ski mountain environment,
Bachelor Gulch Village, when completed, will combine a skiing gateway to Beaver
Creek Mountain, an intimate mountain village and private, upscale real estate
enclaves with ski-in/ski-out access to a substantial portion of the homesites,
and architecture modeled after the grand lodges of the U.S. National Parks. In
addition, plans for Bachelor Gulch Village incorporate 67,880 square feet of
retail, restaurant and commercial space. Commencing with the 1996-97 ski
season, Bachelor Gulch Village will feature a high speed quad chairlift and
approximately 150 acres of mostly intermediate ski terrain contiguous with
Beaver Creek Mountain.
The Company is currently completing its master plan for the development of
715 residential units in Bachelor Gulch Village. Infrastructure development
commenced in 1994 and is expected to be substantially complete in 1998. A
significant portion of the infrastructure costs have already been incurred,
including the majority of the mountain improvements.
During the summer of 1995 and the winter and summer of 1996, 93 single-family
homesites (averaging approximately two acres per lot) were contracted for by
purchasers at prices aggregating $72 million (an average of $776,000 per lot).
All 93 homesites were sold in a lottery format because demand significantly
exceeded homesites available for purchase. Closings of these sales are
anticipated to occur in calendar 1996 and 1997.
The Company's current unsold inventory in Bachelor Gulch Village consists of
18 single-family homesites, 48 cluster homesites and development parcels zoned
for 570 condominium, timeshare and lodge units.
Arrowhead
Arrowhead, known as "Vail's Private Address," is comprised of over 1,500
acres of Company-owned land and is recognized for its country club approach to
residential and resort amenities. Home of the Country Club of the Rockies, a
private golf club designed by Jack Nicklaus, Arrowhead features swimming, clay
tennis
courts, hiking, mountain biking, private fly-fishing on the Eagle River and
privacy gates that assure controlled
access 24 hours a day. Arrowhead contains the westernmost skiing access point
to Beaver Creek Mountain.
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The Company's current development activities are focused on the development
of Arrowhead Village, a 218 unit staged development centered around an alpine
club. The proposed Arrowhead Alpine Club is expected to serve as the social and
athletic activity center of Arrowhead. The Arrowhead Alpine Club is expected to
be a 79,000 square foot facility consisting of 23 residential condominiums and
14,500 square feet of spa and athletic training space and 5,800 square feet of
restaurant, retail and skier service facilities. The Company's plans to build
the Arrowhead Alpine Club are contingent upon the pre-sale of a sufficient
number of condominium residences and Arrowhead Alpine Club memberships. The

Company is currently marketing both condominium residences and Alpine Club
memberships.
In Arrowhead Village, developers have commenced construction of 44 multifamily units on land purchased from the Company. Multi-family parcels planned
for 13 additional units have been sold to developers and construction is
expected to begin in the Spring of 1997. In addition to the remaining multifamily parcels in Arrowhead Village, the Company has extensive land holdings in
Arrowhead, including land zoned for 28 single-family homesites, and 34 cluster
homesites and 45 townhomes, and land for an additional 150 multi-family and 30
single family homesites which are planned, but not yet zoned.
In addition to the Company's extensive land holdings contained in the resort
communities discussed above, the Company has substantial land holdings in
Lionshead (located in the Town of Vail), Avon (located at the base of Beaver
Creek Mountain) and elsewhere in the Vail Valley.
COMPETITION. The ski industry is highly competitive. Vail Associates competes
directly with numerous ski areas in Colorado for the day skier, with major ski
resort areas in the United States, Canada and Europe for the destination skier
and with worldwide recreation resorts for the vacation guest. Vail Associates'
major U.S. competitors include the Utah ski areas, the Lake Tahoe area in
California and Nevada, the New England ski areas and the major Colorado areas
including the Summit County resorts, Crested Butte, Telluride, Steamboat
Springs, Winter Park and the Aspen resorts. The competitive position of Vail
Associates' ski areas is dependent upon many diverse factors such as proximity
to population centers, availability and cost of transportation to the areas,
including direct flight availability by major airlines, pricing, snowmaking
facilities, type and quality of skiing offered, duration of the ski season,
prevailing weather conditions, the number, quality and price of related
services and lodging facilities, and the reputation of the areas. Based upon a
review of these factors, management believes that Vail Associates is in a
strong competitive position.
Maintaining the ski resorts and improving the facilities is capital
intensive. In order to be competitive, Vail Associates has focused on improving
the resort facilities and related amenities available to skiers at the Vail and
Beaver Creek resorts and has substantially upgraded the facilities at both
resorts. Resort capital expenditures for fiscal 1996 totaled $13.9 million. In
addition, the Company invested $40.6 million in its real estate development
activities.
The market for undeveloped real estate near ski resorts is subject to
fluctuations due to many factors including changes in the general economy,
costs and availability of borrowed money and conditions in the construction and
real estate industry generally. In addition, changes in legislation and
governmental regulations, such as local and federal tax laws, land-use and
zoning restrictions, and environmental protection, could adversely affect real
estate sales. With respect to the sale of undeveloped real estate in Vail,
Beaver Creek Resort and Arrowhead, Vail Associates has many competitors, not
only in the Vail and Beaver Creek Resort areas but also throughout the Colorado
mountain country and in the other major ski areas in the United States.
Management believes that the size, historically consistent snow conditions and
existing amenities of the Vail and Beaver Creek resorts give Vail Associates a
competitive advantage over many of its competitors.
REGULATION AND LEGISLATION. Vail Associates has been granted the right to use
12,590 acres of federal land adjacent to the Town of Vail and 2,775 acres of
federal land adjacent to its Beaver Creek property as the site for ski lifts
and trails and related activities under the terms of permits with the Forest
Service. The Forest Service has the right to review and comment on the
location, design and construction of improvements
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in the permit area and on many operational matters. While virtually all of the
skiable terrain on Vail Mountain is located on Forest Service land, a
significant portion of the skiable terrain on Beaver Creek Mountain, primarily
in the Bachelor Gulch and Arrowhead Mountain areas, is located on Company owned
land. The Company has received approval from the Forest Service, subject to a
pending appeal, for infrastructure development of bowl skiing terrain in
Category III which is located within the current Vail Mountain permit area. On
appeal, the Forest Service Supervisor was directed to verify that the
administrative record includes appropriate information on potential off-site

cumulative impacts to traffic/transportation, housing and wildlife. The Company
believes that the appropriate information is included in the administrative
record.
The permits originally granted to the Company, for the Vail and Beaver Creek
mountain resorts consisted of (i) Term Special Use Permits which were granted
for 30 year terms, but which may be terminated upon 30 days written notice by
the Forest Service if it determines that the public interest requires such
termination and (ii) Special Use Permits which are terminable at will by the
Forest Service. In November 1986, a new law was enacted providing that Term
Special Use Permits and Special Use Permits may be combined into a unified
single term special use permit which can be issued for up to 40 years. On
December 23, 1991, the Company exercised its statutory right to convert its
dual permits for Vail Mountain into a unified permit covering 12,590 acres. The
Vail permit expires on October 1, 2031, but can be terminated by the Forest
Service if required in the public interest. The Beaver Creek property is
covered by a Term Special Use Permit covering 80 acres and a Special Use Permit
covering the remaining 2,695 acres. These permits will expire in 2006 but are
terminable by the Forest Service at its discretion. In December 1992, the
Company exercised its statutory right to convert its dual permits for the
Beaver Creek mountain resort into a unified permit for the maximum period of 40
years and is currently in the process of negotiating the final terms of the
unified permit. To the Company's knowledge, no recreational Special Use Permit
or Term Special Use Permit for any major ski resort has ever been terminated by
the Forest Service.
Under recently enacted legislation, retroactively effective to fiscal 1996,
the Company pays a fee to the Forest Service ranging from 1.5% to 4.25% of
sales occurring on Forest Service land. However, through fiscal 1998, the
Company must pay the greater of (i) the fee due under the new legislation or
(ii) the fees actually paid for fiscal 1995. Included in the calculation are
sales from, among other things, lift tickets, ski school lessons, food and
beverages, rental equipment and retail merchandise sales.
BUSINESS SEGMENTS
Business segment information is presented in Note 11 to the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING
On June 6, 1996, the Company filed a Registration Statement on Form S-2 for
an initial public offering ("Offering"). The Company plans to raise $100
million in the Offering with certain selling stockholders raising an additional
$100 million. The consummation of the Offering is contingent upon the closing
of the acquisition of Ralston Resorts, Inc. under a stock purchase agreement
dated July 22, 1996 (see "Acquisition" below).
ACQUISITION
On July 22, 1996, the Company entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement
("Purchase Agreement") with Ralston Foods, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiary
Ralston Resorts, Inc., pursuant to which the Company will acquire the capital
stock of Ralston Resorts, Inc., the operator of the Breckenridge, Keystone and
Arapahoe Basin ski resorts located in Summit County, Colorado (the
"Acquisition"). Under the terms of the Purchase Agreement, the Company will
assume and/or refinance $165 million of indebtedness of Ralston Resorts, Inc.
and will issue approximately 3.8 million shares of Common Stock to Ralston
Foods, Inc. The closing of the Acquisition is dependent upon various
conditions, including obtaining financing to refinance the indebtedness
assumed, the continuing accuracy of representations and warranties made by the
parties to the Purchase Agreement, and the receipt of necessary government
approvals including those required under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust
Improvements Act of 1976, as amended.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.
The following table sets forth the principal properties owned or leased by
the Company:

LOCATION
OWNERSHIP
----------------------- -----------------------

USE
----------------------------------------------------------------------------

Vail Mountain
Beaver Creek Mountain

Owned
Owned

Arrowhead Mountain

Owned

Bachelor Gulch Village

Owned

Vail Mountain
(12,590 acres)
Beaver Creek Mountain
(80 acres)
Beaver Creek Mountain
(2,695 acres)
Beaver Creek Resort
Avon, CO

Term Special Use Permit

Ski resort operations, commercial space
Ski resort operations, commercial space, real estate held for sale or
development, employee housing
Ski resort operations, commercial space, real estate held for sale or
development
Ski resort operations, commercial space, real estate held for sale or
development
Ski lifts, ski trails, buildings and other improvements

Term Special Use Permit

Ski lifts, ski trails, buildings and other improvements

Special Use Permit

Ski trails

Owned
Leased

Golf course
Corporate offices

The Vail and Beaver Creek Forest Service Permits are encumbered.
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.
None.
ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY-HOLDERS.
None.
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PART II
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.
There is no established public trading market for the common stock of the
Company. As of December 23, 1996, 10,372,241 shares of common stock were
outstanding: 6,213,110 shares of Class A Common Stock held by approximately 6
holders and 4,159,131 shares of Common Stock held by approximately 10 holders.
On September 25, 1996, the Company distributed a right to receive up to $4.87
per share of Common Stock (the "Rights") to all stockholders of record on
October 11, 1996, with a maximum aggregate amount payable under the Rights of
$50.5 million. The purpose of the Rights is to provide cash to the existing
stockholders of the Company as a partial return on their investment in the
Company. As of September 30, 1996, the Company had outstanding contracts (the
"Real Estate Contracts") for the sale of certain real estate and related
amenities. The Company will make payments under the Rights only to the extent
it receives sufficient gross proceeds under the Real Estate Contracts to make
such payments. The Company currently estimates payments under the Rights will
be made in January and in June 1997. In addition, the Company has amended
certain option agreements held by management of the Company to eliminate the
right of option holders to receive any portion of the payments made under the
Rights. In connection with such amendment, the Company has accrued a payable to
such option holders of approximately $4.5 million (the "Option
Payment"). The Rights and the Option Payment are hereinafter collectively
referred to as the "Distribution."
Other than the Distribution, the Company has never paid or declared a cash
dividend on its Common Stock or Class A Common Stock. The declaration of cash
dividends in the future will depend on the Company's earnings, financial
condition and capital needs and on other factors deemed relevant by the Board
of Directors at that time. It is the current policy of the Company's Board of
Directors to retain earnings to finance the operations and expansion of the
Company's business, and the Company does not anticipate paying any cash
dividends (other than the Distribution) on its shares of Common Stock or Class
A Common Stock in the foreseeable future.
ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.
The Company previously owned subsidiaries which were engaged in the beef
products and communications businesses. Packerland Packing Company, Inc. and
its subsidiaries (collectively, "Packerland") operated one of the largest "lean
beef" slaughtering and packing operations in the United States. GHTV, Inc. and
its subsidiaries (collectively, "GHTV") owned and operated various broadcast
stations and other related businesses. In 1991, due to an inability to service
debt incurred in connection with the acquisition of certain assets in the
communications business, the Company and these subsidiaries filed for relief

under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code. On October 8, 1992 (the "Effective
Date"), the Company, Packerland and GHTV emerged from bankruptcy pursuant to a
plan of reorganization (the "Plan") under which the beef products and
communications businesses were to be sold. Packerland was subsequently sold on
August 31, 1994. All of the GHTV subsidiaries had been sold as of September 23,
1994. The results of operations of Packerland and GHTV subsequent to the
Effective Date have been reported as discontinued and are therefore excluded
from the following selected financial data for periods ending after the
Effective Date.
On October 14, 1993, by consent of the Company's board of directors, the
fiscal yearend of the Company and its corporate subsidiaries was changed to
September 30, and the fiscal yearend of Packerland and its subsidiaries was
changed to the Sunday nearest September 30 (October 3, 1993). Prior to this
change, the reporting period of these entities was the 52/53 week year ending
on the Sunday nearest December 31. This change was made to conform the fiscal
yearend of these entities with that of Vail Associates, which has a September
30 fiscal yearend. Prior to this change, the operating results of Vail
Associates and its subsidiaries were consolidated on a one quarter lag basis.
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The following table presents selected historical consolidated financial data
of the Company for the periods indicated. The financial data for the years
ended September 30, 1996, 1995 and 1994 are derived from the consolidated
financial statements of the Company, which have been audited by Arthur Andersen
LLP, independent accountants whose 1994 report with respect to Packerland, is
based on the report of Ernst & Young LLP. The financial data for the period
from October 9, 1992 through September 30, 1993 and from December 30, 1991
through October 8, 1992 are derived from the consolidated financial statements
of the Company, which have been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, whose reports
with respect to Vail Associates, are based on the reports of Arthur Andersen
LLP. The selected historical consolidated financial data set forth below should
be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements of the
Company and the related notes thereto.
Due to certain accounting adjustments required by Statement of Position 90-7,
"Financial Reporting by Entities in Reorganization under the Bankruptcy Code,"
issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and certain
other events occurring on the Effective Date, the following selected financial
data prior to the Effective Date are not comparable to the financial data as of
and subsequent to the Effective Date.
The Other Data prersented below include information on Resort Cash Flow.
Resort Cash Flow is defined as revenues from resort operations less resort
operating expenses, excluding depreciation and amortization. Resort Cash Flow
is not a term that has an established meaning under generally accepted
accounting principles. The Company has included information concerning Resort
Cash Flow because management believes it is an indicative measure of a resort
company's operating performance and is generally used by investors to evaluate
companies in the resort industry. Resort Cash Flow does not purport to
represent cash provided by operating activities and should not be considered in
isolation or as a substitute for measures of performance prepared in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. For information regarding the
Company's historical cash flows from operating, investing and financiing
activities see the Company's consolidated financial statements included in Item
8. Furthermore, Resort Cash Flow is not available for the discretionary use of
management and, prior to the payment of dividends, the Company uses Resort Cash
Flow to meet its capital expenditure and debt service requirements. The data
presented below are in thousands except per share amounts.

POST-EFFECTIVE DATE
-----------------------------------FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,
-----------------------------------1993
1994
1995
1996
-------- -------- -------- -------STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA:
Revenues:
Resort................................... $114,623

$124,982 $126,349 $140,288

Real estate..............................

4,610
-------Total revenues......................... 119,233
Operating expenses:
Resort...................................
69,749
Real estate..............................
5,165
Corporate expense........................
6,467
Depreciation and amortization............
13,404
-------94,785
Operating income from continuing
operations...............................
24,448
Income (loss) from continuing operations
(after-tax)..............................
(146)
Earnings per common share;
Income (loss) from continuing
operations.............................. $
(.01)
========
OTHER DATA:
Resort
Resort Revenue........................... $114,623
Resort Cash Flow.........................
44,874
Skier days...............................
2,059
Resort Revenue/skier day................. $ 55.67
Real estate
Revenues from real estate sales.......... $ 4,610
Real estate operating profit.............
(555)
Real estate assets.......................
15,673

22,203
16,526
48,655
-------- -------- -------147,185 142,875 188,943
78,365
82,305
89,890
20,341
14,983
40,801
7,160
6,701
12,698
17,186
17,968
18,148
-------- -------- -------123,052 121,957 161,537
24,133

20,918

27,406

761

3,282

4,735

$
.08 $
.32 $
.44
======== ======== ========
$124,982 $126,349 $140,288
46,617
44,044
50,398
2,056
2,136
2,228
$ 60.79 $ 59.15 $ 62.97
$ 22,203 $ 16,526 $ 48,655
1,862
1,543
7,854
42,637
54,858
88,665
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PREEFFECTIVE DATE
--------------PERIOD FROM
DECEMBER 30,
1991 THROUGH
OCTOBER 8, 1992
--------------STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA:
Net revenues....................................................
Operating expenses .............................................
Income from operations..........................................
Other income (expense)..........................................
Reorganization items............................................
Income before income taxes and extraordinary items..............
Provision for income taxes......................................
Income before extraordinary items...............................
Extraordinary items:
Debt forgiveness related to restructuring transactions........
Net income......................................................

$650,184
617,738
-------32,446
(23,849)
133,609
-------142,206
(17)
-------142,189
435,818
-------$578,007
========

POST-EFFECTIVE DATE
-------------------------------------------------------------SEPTEMBER
OCTOBER 8, SEPTEMBER 30,
30,
SEPTEMBER 30, SEPTEMBER 30,
1992
1993
1994
1995
1996
---------- ------------- --------- ------------- ------------BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Total assets............
Long-term debt

$805,881

$459,131

$450,018

$429,628

$422,612

(including current
maturities)............
Stockholders' equity ...

376,718
132,102

250,566
131,973

225,654
162,494

191,313
167,694

144,750
123,907
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.
The following discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of
operations of the Company should be read in conjunction with the consolidated
financial statements as of September 30, 1996 and 1995 and for the years ended
September 30, 1996, 1995 and 1994, included in Item 8 to this Form 10-K, which
provide additional information regarding financial condition and operating
results.
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1996 ("FISCAL 1996") VERSUS FISCAL YEAR ENDED
SEPTEMBER 30, 1995 ("FISCAL 1995")
Resort Revenue. Resort Revenue for fiscal 1996 was $140.3 million, an
increase of $13.9 million, or 11.0%, compared to fiscal 1995. The increase was
attributable primarily to (i) an 8.4% increase in lift ticket revenue due to a
4.3% increase in skier days (a 5.3% increase at Vail Mountain and a 1.5%
increase at Beaver Creek Mountain) and an increase in effective ticket price
(defined as total lift ticket revenue divided by total skier days) ("ETP")
from $29.96 to $31.12, or 3.9%, (ii) a 9.6% increase in ski school revenue due
to increases in lesson prices and increases in lesson volume driven primarily
by snowboarding and children's lessons, (iii) a 9.8% increase in food service
revenues due to price increases and the increase in skier days, (iv) a 19.1%
increase in retail and rental revenues due to favorable changes in product
mix, the growth in popularity of snowboarding and new ski technology, and the
increase in skier days, and (v) a 17.2% increase in hospitality revenues due
primarily to enhanced marketing efforts for the Company's property management
activities.
Resort Operating Expenses. Operating expenses from resort operations
("Resort Operating Expenses") were $89.9 million for fiscal 1996, representing
an increase of $7.6 million, or 9.2%, as compared to fiscal 1995. As a
percentage of Resort Revenue, Resort Operating Expenses declined from 65.1% to
64.1% in fiscal 1996. The increase in Resort Operating Expenses is primarily
attributable to (i) increased variable expenses resulting from the increased
level of Resort Revenue and skier days in fiscal 1996, (ii) a $1.6 million
increase in the accrual for long term incentive compensation associated with
the improvement in the operating results of the resorts segment during fiscal
1996, and (iii) a $1.1 million increase in labor related expenses due to
expanded operations.
Resort Cash Flow. Resort Cash Flow for fiscal 1996 was $50.4 million, an
increase of $6.4 million, or 14.4%, compared to fiscal 1995. Resort Cash Flow
as a percentage of Resort Revenue increased to 35.9% for fiscal 1996 as
compared to 34.9% for fiscal 1995. The increase in Resort Cash Flow is
primarily due to the increase in skier days and ETP as discussed above.
Real Estate Revenues. Revenues from real estate operations for fiscal 1996
were $48.7 million, an increase of $32.1 million, compared to fiscal 1995. The
increase is due primarily to the closings of sales of 30 single family lots in
the Strawberry Park development at Beaver Creek Resort in December 1995 and
February 1996, which generated $30.9 million in gross proceeds.
Real Estate Operating Expenses. Real estate operating expenses for fiscal
1996 were $40.8 million, an increase of $25.8 million, compared to fiscal
1995. The increase resulted primarily from the cost of sales and commissions
associated with the sale of the Strawberry Park lots which totaled $24.7
million.
Corporate Expense. Corporate expense was $12.7 million for fiscal 1996, an
increase of $6.0 million as compared to fiscal 1995. Corporate expense for
fiscal 1996 includes the following nonrecurring charges: (i) $2.1 million
related to the termination of an employment agreement with the Company's
former Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, (ii) $4.5 million related to the
Option Payment, and (iii) $1.9 million of compensation expense related to the
exercise of stock options by the Company's former Chairman and Chief Executive

Officer. Excluding the effect of those items, corporate expense decreased $2.5
million. This decrease was primarily due to the inclusion in fiscal 1995, of
$1.6 million of compensation expense related to shares of Common Stock granted
to the Company's former Chief Executive Officer pursuant to an employment
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agreement dated October 8, 1992. Those shares were earned over the three year
period beginning on the date of the employment agreement and ending on October
8, 1995. Accordingly, compensation expense was charged to corporate expense
ratably over that period. The remaining decrease was attributable to
reductions in payroll expense and other office expenses related to the partial
closure of the Company's Denver office as of December 31, 1995.
Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization expense
increased by $180,000 for fiscal 1996 over fiscal 1995, primarily due to
capital expenditures made in fiscal 1995.
Interest Expense. During fiscal 1996 and fiscal 1995, the Company recorded
interest expense of $14.9 million and $19.5 million, respectively, which
relates primarily to the Company's Senior Subordinated Notes, the Industrial
Development Bonds, and the Company's existing credit facilities. The decrease
in interest expense from fiscal 1995 to fiscal 1996, is attributable to the
redemptions of $30 million and $24.5 million in principal amount of Senior
Subordinated Notes on December 11, 1995 and February 2, 1996, respectively,
offset by call premiums paid in connection with those redemptions. See
"Liquidity and Capital Resources."
Gain (loss) on disposal of fixed assets. The loss on disposal of fixed
assets for fiscal 1996 was $2.6 million compared to $849,000 for fiscal 1995.
The loss for fiscal 1996 consists primarily of a $2.3 million loss on the
retirement of the Lionshead gondola and a $340,000 loss on the retirement of
the Golden Peak chairlift. Both lifts are currently being replaced with
upgraded equipment. The loss for fiscal 1995 consists primarily of a $600,000
loss on the write off of lift equipment which was replaced during an upgrade
of a Vail Mountain chairlift..
Other income (expense). The significant components of other income (expense)
for fiscal 1996 are (i) a $725,000 increase in the reserves related to the
Company's indemnity to the purchaser of a former subsidiary of the Company,
(ii) a $690,000 increase in the estimate of the pension liability related to
three founders of the Company, (iii) a $600,000 increase in reserves related
to a change in the estimate of the Company's obligation to a medical research
foundation, and (iv) $373,000 in income related to a favorable retrospective
adjustment on a worker's compensation insurance policy of a former subsidiary
of the Company. The significant components of other income (expense) for
fiscal 1995 are (i) a $1.2 million gain on the sale of securities, (ii) income
of $687,000 related to the elimination of reserves for pre-petition bankruptcy
claims and (iii) $1.6 million in income related to a change in the estimate of
the Company's obligation to a medical research foundation.
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1995 ("FISCAL 1995") VERSUS YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,
1994 ("FISCAL 1994")
Resort Revenue. Resort Revenue for fiscal 1995 was $126.3 million, an
increase of $1.4 million, or 1.1%, compared to fiscal 1994. The increase was
attributable primarily to (i) a 1.1% decrease in lift ticket revenue due to a
3.9% increase in skier days (a 2.7% increase at Vail Mountain and a 7.4%
increase at Beaver Creek Mountain) offset by a decline in ETP from $31.29 to
$29.96, or 4.3%, (ii) a 4.4% increase in ski school revenue due primarily to
increases in corporate group sales at Vail Mountain and private lesson sales
at Beaver Creek Mountain, (iii) a 0.7% increase in food service revenue
attributable to significant decreases in summer sales due to poor weather
conditions during June which delayed the opening of certain mountain
facilities and minimal growth in winter food and beverage sales due to a
higher proportion of local skiers who typically spend less at the Company's
restaurants than destination skiers, (iv) a 20.8% increase in retail and
rental sales due to the opening of two new retail outlets in fiscal 1995, (v)
a 3.2% increase in hospitality revenue due to property management revenues
from four properties which were managed by the Company for a full year in
fiscal 1995 and (vi) increases in revenue from brokerage, commercial leasing,
and licensing and sponsorship activities. The decline in ETP in fiscal 1995
resulted from increased skier days in the early and late season which have
lower ETPs than those in the peak season. The increase in early and late

season skiers was due to incentive programs targeted to attract increased
corporate groups and skiers from the Denver metropolitan area. In addition,
skier days in the peak season, which have higher ETPs, were adversely affected
by a number of factors, including (i) an unusually high number of closings of
Interstate 70 (the main highway from Denver to Vail) due to adverse weather
conditions, and (ii) the December 1994 financial crisis in Mexico, the country
of origin of a significant portion of the Company's international guests who
typically visit the Company's resorts during the peak season. Following the
1994-95 ski season, the Company, working with state and local agencies, took
steps designed to
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improve snow removal operations on Interstate 70. As a result of these steps,
the number and duration of highway closings were significantly reduced during
the 1995-96 ski season.
Resort Operating Expenses. Resort Operating Expenses were $82.3 million for
fiscal 1995, representing an increase of $3.9 million, or 5.0%, as compared to
fiscal 1994. As a percentage of Resort Revenue, Resort Operating Expenses
increased from 62.7% in fiscal 1994 to 65.1% in fiscal 1995. The increase in
Resort Operating Expenses is primarily attributable to (i) a $2.1 million
increase in marketing expenditures primarily related to increased direct
advertising expenditures, (ii) an increase of $1.3 million in expenses related
to an expansion of the Company's retail operations, write-downs of obsolete
inventory purchased in prior seasons, and costs associated with the
implementation of new point of sale inventory system, (iii) an increase of
$740,000 in rent and occupancy costs due to the relocation of certain of Vail
Associates' offices from Company-owned space in the Town of Vail to leased
office space in the Town of Avon and (iv) increased expenses resulting from
the increased level of Resort Revenue in fiscal 1995.
Resort Cash Flow. Resort Cash Flow for fiscal 1995 was $44.0 million, a
decrease of $2.6 million, or 5.5%, compared to fiscal 1994. Resort Cash Flow
as a percentage of Resort Revenue decreased to 34.9% in fiscal 1995 as
compared to 37.3% in fiscal 1994. The decrease in Resort Cash Flow was
primarily due to the decline in ETP and increase in Resort Operating Expenses
as discussed above.
Real Estate Revenues. Revenues from real estate operations for fiscal 1995
were $16.5 million, a decrease of $5.7 million, compared to fiscal 1994. The
decrease is due primarily to a reduction in the number of closings of
residential lot sales in Beaver Creek Resort due to the Company not having
significant lots available for sale during the period.
Real Estate Operating Expenses. Real estate operating costs and expenses for
fiscal 1995 were $15.0 million, a decrease of $5.4 million, compared to fiscal
1994 due to lower costs of sales associated with the reduced amount of lot
sales activity.
Corporate Expense. Corporate expense decreased $459,000 in fiscal 1995 as
compared to fiscal 1994 due primarily to lower salary and service costs.
Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization expense from
continuing operations increased $782,000 in fiscal 1995 as compared to fiscal
1994, primarily as a result of the capital expenditures made during fiscal
1994.
Interest Expense. During fiscal 1995, the Company recorded interest expense
of $19.5 million, which relates primarily to the interest on the Company's
Senior Subordinated Notes and the Industrial Development Bonds and revolving
credit facilities of Vail Associates. See "--Liquidity and Capital Resources."
The decrease in interest expense from $22.5 million during fiscal 1994 to
$19.5 million during fiscal 1995 relates primarily to the redemption of the
Company's Senior Secured Notes on September 29, 1994 and the redemption of
$24.9 million principal amount of Senior Subordinated Notes on December 15,
1994.
Other Income (Expense). The significant components of other income (expense)
for fiscal 1995 are (i) income of $1.6 million related to a reduction in the
estimate of a liability related to the Company's obligation to a medical
research foundation, (ii) a $1.2 million gain on the sale of securities and
(iii) income of $687,000 related to the elimination of reserves for prepetition bankruptcy claims.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
The Company has historically provided funds for debt service, capital
expenditures and acquisitions through a combination of cash flow from
operations, short term and long term borrowings and sales of real estate.
At September 30, 1995, the Company had outstanding $117.2 million of Senior
Subordinated Notes maturing on June 30, 2002. On December 11, 1995 and
February 2, 1996, the Company redeemed principal
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amounts of $30.0 million and $24.5 million, respectively, of the Senior
Subordinated Notes. At September 30, 1996, the outstanding principal amount of
Senior Subordinated Notes was $62.6 million. The Company intends to use a
portion of the net proceeds from the planned public stock offering to redeem
all of the remaining outstanding Senior Subordinated Notes.
The Company has $41.2 million of outstanding Industrial Development Bonds
issued by Eagle County, Colorado which accrue interest at 8% per annum and
mature on August 1, 2009. Interest is payable semi-annually on February 1 and
August 1. The Company has provided the holder of these bonds a debt service
reserve fund of $3.3 million, which has been netted against the principal
amount for financial reporting purposes.
The Company also has two revolving credit facilities ("Existing Credit
Facilities") that provide for total availability of $135 million, consisting
of a $105 million Facility A Revolver ("Facility A") and a $30 million
Facility B Revolver ("Facility B"). The maximum borrowings available under
Facility A will be reduced by $25 million on March 31, 1999 with all
outstanding principal due on March 31, 2000. No borrowings under Facility B
are permitted unless the maximum borrowings under Facility A are outstanding.
The maximum borrowings available under Facility B will be reduced by $10
million on March 31, 1997 and further reduced by an additional $10 million on
March 31, 1998 with all outstanding principal due on March 31, 1999. The
Credit Facilities are available for the seasonal working capital needs of Vail
Associates and for capital expenditures and other general corporate purposes,
including the issuance of up to $50 million of letters of credit. Outstanding
letters of credit at June 30, 1996 totaled $34.3 million and primarily related
to bonds issued by a quasi-governmental entity in connection with the
financing of infrastructure costs in Bachelor Gulch Village. At September 30,
1996, borrowings outstanding under Facility A totaled $44.0 million.
The Company has received a commitment from NationsBank of Texas, N.A., as
agent (the "Agent"), to provide financing for the Acquisition and the working
capital needs of the Company upon the closing of the Acquisition ("New Credit
Facilities"). The New Credit Facilities will provide for debt financing up to
an aggregate principal amount of $340 million. The New Credit Facilities are
comprised of (i) a $175 million Revolving Credit Facility ("Revolving Credit
Facility"), (ii) a $115 million Tranche A Term Loan Facility ("Tranche A") and
(iii) a $50 million Tranche B Term Loan Facility (together with the Tranche A,
the "Term Loan Facilities"). The Term Loan Facilities will be used to
refinance a portion of the $165 million of debt assumed in connection with the
Acquisition. The Revolving Credit Facility matures on April 15, 2003. The
minimum amortization under the Term Loan Facilities will be $11.5 million,
$14.0 million, $19.0 million, $21.5 million, $26.5 million, $31.5 million, and
$41 million during fiscal years ending September 30, 1998, 1999, 2000, 2001,
2002, 2003, and 2004, respectively. The Company will also be required to make
mandatory amortization payments under the Term Loan Facilities with excess
cash flow, as defined, proceeds from asset sales, and proceeds from equity and
debt offerings.
The New Credit Facilities require that no more than $125.0 million in the
aggregate be outstanding under the Revolving Credit Facility for a period of
30 consecutive days during each fiscal year, such period to include April 15.
The proceeds of the loans made under the Revolving Credit Facilities may be
used to fund the Company's working capital needs, capital expenditures and
other general corporate purposes, including the issuance of letters of credit.
Resort capital expenditures for fiscal 1996 were $13.9 million. Investments
in real estate for fiscal 1996 were $40.6 million, which included $9.1 million
of mountain improvements (such as ski lifts and snowmaking equipment) which
are related to real estate development but will also benefit resort

operations. The primary projects included in resort capital expenditures for
fiscal 1996 are (i) the new Lionshead gondola, (ii) the creation of the Eagles
Nest non-ski activity center and (iii) the allocated cost of the new retail,
restaurant and skier service facilities to be created in the renovated Golden
Peak base facility. The primary projects included in investments in real
estate for fiscal 1996 are (i) the renovation of the Golden Peak base
facility, including a new high speed quad chairlift, (ii) infrastructure
related to Bachelor Gulch Village, including a new high
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speed quad chairlift and related snowmaking equipment, (iii) construction
related to the Beaver Creek Village Center, the majority of the related
expenses of which will be recouped during fiscal 1996 from the third party
developer of the project and certain homeowner, community and governmental
organizations, (iv) infrastructure related to Arrowhead Village and (v)
infrastructure related to the Strawberry Park development in Beaver Creek
Resort.
The Company estimates that it will make resort capital expenditures totaling
approximately $42 million in fiscal 1997 which includes approximately $18.2
million spent in the first fiscal quarter of 1997 to complete projects
initiated in fiscal 1996. The primary new projects will include (i)
infrastructure for the Category III expansion, (ii) expansion of snowmaking at
Beaver Creek Mountain, (iii) upgrades to and expansions of food service
operations at Beaver Creek Resort and (iv) the purchase of retail space at
Beaver Creek Resort. Investments in real estate are expected to total
approximately $60 million during fiscal 1997. The primary projects included in
these investments are (i) the completion of the Golden Peak base facility,
(ii) intrastructure related to Bachelor Gulch Village and Arrowhead Village
and (iii) completion of the Beaver Creek Village retail and parking
facilities. The Company intends to fund these expenditures through cash flow
from operations, and borrowings under the New Credit Facilities.
In connection with the Distribution, the Company will make payments
aggregating $55 million, which it estimates will be made in January and June
1997. The Company is limited to funding payments made under the Distribution
from proceeds of the Real Estate Contracts.
Based on current levels of operations and cash availability, the Company
believes that it will be able to satisfy its debt service and capital
expenditure requirements from cash flow from operations, and borrowings under
the Existing Credit Facilities.
The Company believes that inflation during the past three years has had
little effect on its results of operations and any impact on costs has been
largely offset by increased pricing.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
To the Board of Directors of
Vail Resorts, Inc.:
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of VAIL RESORTS,
INC. formerly known as Gillett Holdings, Inc. (see Note 1) (a Delaware
corporation) and subsidiaries as of September 30, 1996 and 1995, and the
related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders' equity and cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended September 30, 1996. These
consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audits. We did not audit the consolidated
financial statements of Packerland Packing Company, Inc. ("Packerland"), a
wholly owned subsidiary of Vail Resorts, Inc.; 100% of the stock of Packerland
was sold on August 31, 1994. The net revenues of Packerland included in the
consolidated statements of operations for the year ended September 30, 1994
were $630,928,000. The accompanying consolidated statements of operations for
the year ended September 30, 1994 present the operations of Packerland as
discontinued (see Note 3). Those statements were audited by other auditors
whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates
to the amounts included for Packerland, is based solely on the report of the
other auditors.
We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits and the report of other
auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of other auditors, the
financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Vail Resorts, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of September 30, 1996 and 1995 and the consolidated results of
their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended September 30, 1996 in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles.
Arthur Andersen LLP
Denver, Colorado,
October 31, 1996
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REPORT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
The Board of Directors
Packerland Packing Company, Inc.
We have audited the consolidated statements of income, stockholder's equity
and cash flows for the period from October 4, 1993 through August 31, 1994, of
Packerland Packing Company, Inc. (the Company). These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in
all material respects, the consolidated results of the Company's operations and
its cash flows for the period from October 4, 1993 through August 31, 1994, in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

ERNST & YOUNG LLP
Milwaukee, Wisconsin
October 7, 1994
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VAIL RESORTS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE AND PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

SEPTEMBER 30, SEPTEMBER 30,
1995
1996
------------- ------------ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents........................
Receivables......................................
Inventories......................................
Deferred income taxes (Note 8)...................
Other current assets.............................
Total current assets...........................
Property, plant, and equipment, net (Note 6).......
Real estate held for sale..........................
Deferred charges and other assets..................
Intangible assets (Note 6).........................
Total assets...................................
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (Note 6)...
Income taxes payable (Note 8)....................
Rights payable to stockholders (Note 10).........
Long-term debt due within one year (Notes 1 and
5)..............................................
Total current liabilities......................
Long-term debt (Note 5)............................
Other long-term liabilities........................
Deferred income taxes (Note 8).....................
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 1, 3, 10, and
12)
Stockholders' equity (Notes 1, 12 and 13):
Preferred stock, $.01 par value 25,000,000 shares
authorized, no shares issued and outstanding....
Common stock-Class A common stock, $.01 par value, 20,000,000
shares authorized, 6,408,846 and 6,213,110
shares issued and outstanding as of September
30, 1995 and 1996, respectively................
Common Stock, $.01 par value, 40,000,000 shares
authorized, 3,471,992 and 3,786,890 shares
issued and outstanding as of September 30, 1995
and 1996, respectively.........................
Additional paid-in capital.......................
Retained earnings................................
Total stockholders' equity.....................
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity.....

$ 47,534
5,135
4,221
9,500
3,716
-------70,106
205,151
54,858
6,106
93,407
-------$429,628
========

$ 12,712
5,741
4,639
17,200
5,490
-------45,782
192,669
88,665
10,440
85,056
-------$422,612
========

$ 37,419
81
--

$ 48,096
325
50,513

63
-------37,563
191,250
3,821
29,300

63
-------98,997
144,687
15,521
39,500

--

--

64

64

35
135,660
31,935
-------167,694
-------$429,628
========

36
123,807
--------123,907
-------$422,612
========

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral
part of these balance sheets.
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VAIL RESORTS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE AND PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

YEAR
YEAR
YEAR
ENDED
ENDED
ENDED
SEPTEMBER 30, SEPTEMBER 30, SEPTEMBER 30,
1994
1995
1996
------------- ------------- ------------Net revenues:
Resort.............................
Real estate........................
Total net revenues.................
Operating expenses:
Resort.............................
Real estate........................
Corporate expense..................
Depreciation and amortization......
Total operating expenses...........
Operating income from continuing operations...........................
Other income (expense):
Investment income..................
Interest expense ..................
Gain (loss) on disposal of fixed
assets............................
Other (Notes 9 and 10).............
Income from continuing operations
before income taxes................
Provision for income taxes (Note
8).................................
Income from continuing operations...
Income from discontinued operations,
net of applicable income tax provision of $4,206 for the year ended
September 30, 1994 (Notes 3 and
9).................................
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries operating in discontinued segments,
net of applicable income tax provision of $13,357 for the year ended
September 30, 1994 (Notes 3 and
9).................................
Net income..........................
Earnings per common share (Note 2):
Income from continuing operations..
Income from discontinued operations.............................
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
operating in discontinued segments.............................
Net income.........................
Weighted average shares outstanding...............................

$

124,982
22,203
----------147,185

$

126,349
16,526
----------142,875

$

78,365
20,341
7,160
17,186
----------123,052
-----------

82,305
14,983
6,701
17,968
----------121,957
-----------

89,890
40,801
12,698
18,148
----------161,537
-----------

24,133

20,918

27,406

1,523
(22,468)

3,295
(19,498)

586
(14,904)

128
(598)
-----------

(849)
3,291
-----------

(2,630)
(1,500)
-----------

2,718
(1,957)
----------761

140,288
48,655
----------188,943

7,157
(3,875)
----------3,282

7,058

8,958
(4,223)
----------4,735

--

--

20,963
----------$
28,782
===========

-----------$
3,282
===========

-----------$
4,735
===========

$

$

$

.08
.69

.32
--

.44
--

2.05
----------$
2.82
===========

-----------$
.32
===========

-----------$
.44
===========

10,216,578
===========

10,291,388
===========

10,727,676
===========

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral
part of these statements.
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VAIL RESORTS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE AMOUNTS)

COMMON STOCK
-------------------------------------SHARES
ADDITIONAL RETAINED
TOTAL
------------------------------PAID-IN
EARNINGS STOCKHOLDERS'
CLASS A
COMMON
TOTAL
AMOUNT CAPITAL
(DEFICIT)
EQUITY
--------- --------- ---------- ------ ---------- --------- ------------Balance, September 30,
1993...................
Net income for the year
ended September 30,
1994...................
Shares issued pursuant
to stock grants (Note
12)....................
Shares of Class A Common
Stock converted to Common Stock (Note 13)....
Balance, September 30,
1994...................
Net income for the year
ended September 30,
1995...................
Shares issued pursuant
to stock grants (Note
12)....................
Shares of Class A Common
Stock converted to Common Stock (Note 13)....
Balance, September 30,
1995...................
Net income for the year
ended September 30,
1996...................
Shares issued pursuant
to stock grants (Note
12)....................
Rights payable to stockholders................
Shares of Class A Common
Stock converted to Common Stock (Note 13)....
Balance, September 30,
1996...................

7,390,803

--

--

2,251,709

--

--

$ 96

$132,006

--

--

$

(129)

28,782

$131,973

28,782

119,163

2

1,737

(266,096)
266,096
---------- --------- ----------

-----

---------

--------

---------

98

133,743

28,653

162,494

3,282

3,282

7,124,707

--

--

119,163

9,642,512

2,636,968

--

--

--

--

1,739

119,163

1

1,917

(715,861)
715,861
---------- --------- ----------

-----

---------

--------

---------

99

135,660

31,935

167,694

4,735

4,735

6,408,846

--

---

119,163

9,761,675

--

3,471,992

--

119,162
--

9,880,838

--

--

119,162
--

--

1

1,990

--

(13,843)

--

1,918

-(36,670)

1,991
(50,513)

(195,736)
195,736
---------- --------- ----------

-----

---------

--------

---------

6,213,110
=========

$100
====

$123,807
========

$
-=======

$123,907
========

3,786,890 10,000,000
========= ==========

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral
part of these statements
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VAIL RESORTS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(IN THOUSANDS)

YEAR
YEAR
YEAR
ENDED
ENDED
ENDED
SEPTEMBER 30, SEPTEMBER 30, SEPTEMBER 30,
1994
1995
1996

------------- ------------- ------------Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income.........................
Adjustments to reconcile net income
to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization......
Deferred compensation payments in
excess of expense.................
Noncash cost of real estate
sales.............................
Noncash compensation related to
stock grants (Note 12)............
Noncash compensation related to
exercise of stock options.........
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
(Notes 3 and 9)...................
Bond discount amortized............
Deferred financing costs amortized.............................
Loss (gain) on disposal of fixed
assets............................
Deferred real estate revenue.......
Deferred income taxes (Note 8).....
Cash received on termination of
pension plan (Note 7).............
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net...........
Inventories........................
Accounts payable and accrued expenses............................
Other assets and liabilities.......
Net cash provided by operating
activities......................
Cash flows from investing activities:
Resort capital expenditures........
Investments in real estate.........
Cash payments from GHTV (Note 1)...
Cash balances of GHTV acquired.....
Net cash proceeds from sale of
Packerland (Note 3)...............
Cash balances of Packerland sold...
Purchase of Arrowhead (Note 4).....
Investment in joint venture........
Other..............................
Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities............
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from borrowings under
long-term debt....................
Payments on long-term debt.........
Payment of reorganization items,
financing costs and other.........
Net cash used in financing activities...........................
Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents...................
Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of period................
End of period......................
Cash paid for interest included as a
use of cash in operating
activities.........................

$28,782

$

3,282

18,223

17,968

(1,257)

(1,325)

$

4,735

18,148
(814)

13,817

9,208

32,394

1,633

1,633

25

-(34,320)
548
504
(128)
1,535
16,000
500
6,153
(455)
2,742
1,830
-------

--

1,915

---

---

237

247

849
1,500
2,900

2,630
-2,500

--

--

(349)
(1,236)

(606)
(418)

10,141
(3,704)
--------

9,551
(3,866)
--------

56,107

41,104

66,441

(17,414)
(22,686)
39,097
3,145

(20,320)
(22,477)
---

(13,912)
(40,604)
---

56,260
(7,853)
(30,919)
(2,978)
(363)
-------

---(400)
953
--------

---(200)
---------

(42,244)

(54,716)

69,360
(94,820)

253,400
(287,741)

84,000
(130,547)

(1,422)
-------

---------

---------

(26,882)
-------

(34,341)
--------

(46,547)
--------

(35,481)

(34,822)

16,289

45,514
37,501
------$83,015
=======

83,015
-------$ 47,534
========

47,534
-------$ 12,712
========

$27,182
=======

$ 13,852
========

$ 21,880
========

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statementsare an integral part
of these statements
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VAIL RESORTS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Vail Resorts, Inc. ("VRI"), formerly known as Gillett Holdings, Inc., is
organized as a holding company and operates through various subsidiaries. VRI
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the "Company") currently operate in two
business segments, ski resorts and real estate development. Vail Associates,
Inc. and its subsidiaries (collectively, "Vail Associates") operate one of the
world's largest skiing facilities on Vail Mountain and Beaver Creek Mountain in
Colorado and have related real estate operations. The ski resorts are operated
on United States Forest Service land under Term Special Use Permits expiring in
2031 for Vail Mountain and 2006 for Beaver Creek Mountain. Vail Associates Real
Estate Group ("VAREG") is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Vail Associates, Inc.
and conducts the Company's real estate development activities. The accompanying
consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its
wholly owned subsidiaries. Investments in joint ventures are accounted for
under the equity method. All significant intercompany transactions have been
eliminated.
On June 6, 1996, the Company filed a Registration Statement on Form S-2 for
an initial public offering ("Offering"). The Company plans to raise $100
million in the Offering with certain selling stockholders raising an additional
$100 million. The consummation of the Offering is contingent upon the closing
of the acquisition of Ralston Resorts, Inc. under a stock purchase agreement
dated July 22, 1996 (see Note 4).
The Company previously owned subsidiaries which were engaged in the beef
products and communications businesses. Packerland Packing Company, Inc. and
its subsidiaries (collectively, "Packerland") operated one of the largest "lean
beef" slaughtering and packing operations in the United States. GHTV, Inc. and
its subsidiaries (collectively, "GHTV") owned and operated various broadcast
stations and other related businesses. In 1991, due to an inability to service
debt incurred in connection with the acquisition of certain assets in the
communications business, the Company and these subsidiaries filed for relief
under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code. On October 8, 1992 (the "Effective
Date"), the Company, Packerland and GHTV emerged from bankruptcy pursuant to a
plan of reorganization (the "Plan") under which the beef products and
communications businesses were to be sold.
Packerland was sold on August 31, 1994. The results of its operations from
October 1, 1993 through August 31, 1994, are included in income from
discontinued operations in the consolidated statement of operations for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 1994 (see Note 3).
As of the Effective Date, the stock of GHTV was transferred by the Company to
a trust (the "GHTV Trust") due to foreign investment in the Company as of the
Effective Date and FCC regulations which prohibit foreign ownership of
broadcast stations. The beneficial interest in the GHTV Trust was sold to an
independent third party subject to the terms of a repurchase agreement between
the Company and the third party whereby the Company could repurchase the
beneficial interest in the GHTV Trust or the underlying GHTV stock at a later
date. As of September 23, 1994, all of GHTV's communications subsidiaries had
been sold. On September 30, 1994, the Company repurchased the stock of GHTV
from the GHTV Trust. Upon the repurchase, GHTV became a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company and accordingly, the consolidated balance sheets of the Company
as of and subsequent to September 30, 1994 include the remaining assets and
liabilities of GHTV.
On the Effective Date, the Company held notes receivable from GHTV in the
aggregate amount of $194.0 million (the "GHTV Subsidiary Notes"). GHTV made
payments on the GHTV Subsidiary Notes with proceeds from the sales of its
subsidiaries. Through September 30, 1994, GHTV made aggregate principal
payments of $182.5 million to the Company. At September 30, 1994, the remaining
principal amount receivable was written off by the Company concurrent with the
write-off by GHTV of the remaining payable under the GHTV Subsidiary Notes

recorded on its books. Since the Company was to be the ultimate recipient of
substantially all gains or losses of GHTV through payments under the GHTV
Subsidiary Notes, and its ability to repurchase the beneficial interest in
GHTV, the operating results of GHTV have been included in the Company's
consolidated statements of operations throughout the periods that the GHTV
Stock was held
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VAIL RESORTS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(CONTINUED)
by the GHTV Trust. Accordingly, interest expense of GHTV related to the GHTV
Subsidiary Notes was eliminated against the related interest income on the
Company's books. This elimination of interest expense resulted in net income
for GHTV, all of which was deferred and included as a component of the ultimate
gain on the disposal of communications subsidiaries included in the
consolidated statement of operations for the year ended September 30, 1994.
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Cash and Cash Equivalents--The Company considers all highly liquid debt
instruments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash
equivalents.
Inventories--The Company's inventories consist primarily of purchased retail
goods, food, and spare parts. Inventories are valued at the lower of cost,
determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method, or market.
Property, Plant and Equipment--Property, plant and equipment is carried at
cost net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated generally on
the straight-line method based on the following useful lives:

YEARS
----Land improvements......................................................
40
Buildings and terminals................................................
40
Ski lifts..............................................................
15
Ski trails.............................................................
20
Machinery, equipment, furniture and fixtures........................... 3-12
Automobiles and trucks................................................. 3-5
Deferred Financing Costs--Costs incurred with the issuance of debt securities
are included in deferred charges and other assets, net of accumulated
amortization. Amortization is charged to income over the respective original
lives of the applicable issues and is included as an other expense.
Intangible Assets--"Reorganization Value in Excess of Amounts Allocable to
Identifiable Assets" ("Excess Reorganization Value") represents the excess of
the Company's reorganization value over the amounts allocated to the net
tangible and other intangible assets of the Company as of the Effective Date
(see Note 6). The Company amortizes Excess Reorganization Value over 20 years.
The cost of other intangible assets with determinable lives is charged to
operations based on their respective economic lives, which range from 7 to 40
years, using the straight line method.
Long-lived Assets--The Company evaluates potential impairment of long-lived
assets and long-lived assets to be disposed of in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 121, "Accounting for the Impairment of LongLived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of" ("SFAS No. 121").
SFAS No. 121 establishes procedures for review of recoverability, and
measurement of impairment if necessary, of long-lived assets and certain
identifiable intangibles held and used by an entity. SFAS No. 121 requires that
those assets be reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be fully
recoverable. SFAS No. 121 also requires that long-lived assets and certain
identifiable intangibles to be disposed of be reported at the lower of carrying
amount or fair value less estimated selling costs. As of September 30, 1996,
management believes that there has not been any impairment of the Company's

long-lived assets or other identifiable intangibles.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(CONTINUED)
Revenue Recognition--Resort Revenue is recognized as services are performed.
Revenues from real estate sales are accounted for as follows:
A. Revenue is not recognized until title has been transferred.
B. Revenue is deferred if the receivable is subject to subordination
until such time as all costs have been recovered.
C. Until the initial down payment and subsequent collection of principal
and interest are by contract substantial, cash received from the buyer is
reported as a deposit on the contract.
The Company capitalizes as land held for sale the original acquisition cost
(or appraised value as of the Effective Date), direct construction and
development costs, property taxes, interest incurred on costs related to land
under development, and other related costs (engineering, surveying,
landscaping, etc.) until the property reaches its intended use. The cost of
sales for individual parcels of real estate or condominium units within a
project is determined using the relative sales value method. Selling expenses
are charged against income in the period incurred. Interest capitalized on real
estate development projects during fiscal years 1994, 1995 and 1996 totalled
$0.8 million, $1.4 million and $2.2 million, respectively.
Advertising Costs--Advertising costs are expensed the first time the
advertising takes place. Advertising expense for the years ended September 30,
1994, 1995 and 1996 was $4.4 million, $6.3 million and $6.9 million,
respectively. At September 30, 1995 and 1996, advertising costs of $1.2 million
and $1.7 million were reported as assets in the Company's consolidated balance
sheet.
Income Taxes--The Company uses the liability method of accounting for income
taxes as prescribed by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109,
"Accounting for Income Taxes" ("SFAS No. 109"). Under SFAS No. 109, a deferred
tax liability or asset is recognized for the effect of temporary differences
between financial reporting and tax reporting.
Earnings Per Share--Earnings (loss) per common share are based on the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period after
consideration of the dilutive effect of stock grants, warrants and options (see
Note 12).
Fair Value of Financial Instruments--The recorded amounts for cash and cash
equivalents, receivables, other current assets, and accounts payable and
accrued expenses approximate fair value due to the short-term nature of these
financial instruments. The fair value of amounts outstanding under the
Company's Credit Facilities approximates book value due to the variable nature
of the interest rate associated with that debt. The fair values of the
Company's Senior Subordinated Notes and Industrial Development Bonds have been
estimated using discounted cash flow analyses based on current borrowing rates
for debt with similar maturities and ratings.
The estimated fair values of the Senior Subordinated Notes and Industrial
Development Bonds at September 30, 1996 are presented below:

CARRYING FAIR
AMOUNT
VALUE
-------- ------Senior Subordinated Notes.................................. $62,647
Industrial Development Bonds............................... $37,903

$76,369
$43,701

Use of Estimates--The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the

disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Reclassifications--Certain reclassifications have been made to the
accompanying consolidated financial statements for the years ended September
30, 1994 and 1995 to conform to the current period presentation.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(CONTINUED)
3. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
On August 31, 1994, the Company sold 100% of the stock of Packerland to PPC
Acquisition Co. ("PPC"), an entity owned in part by the existing management
group of Packerland and the Company's former Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer for net cash proceeds totaling approximately $56,260,000. The net gain
resulting from this transaction of $10,678,000 is included in the gain on
disposal of subsidiaries operating in discontinued segments for the year ended
September 30, 1994, in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
The Packerland portion of the gain on disposal of subsidiaries operating in
discontinued segments included in the accompanying consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year ended September 30, 1994 includes the net cash proceeds
from the sale reduced by the net assets of Packerland as of August 31, 1994,
and other costs associated with the transaction. The net revenues of Packerland
included in the consolidated statements of operations were $630,928,000 for the
year ended September 30, 1994.
On September 23, 1994, GHTV sold substantially all of the assets of its
remaining operating subsidiaries to an unaffiliated party for net cash proceeds
totaling approximately $35,372,000. Following this sale, GHTV no longer had an
ownership interest in subsidiaries engaged in the communications business. On
September 30, 1994, the Company repurchased the stock of GHTV from the GHTV
Trust (see Note 1). As discussed in Note 1, the GHTV net income following the
elimination of interest expense was deferred until the remaining GHTV
subsidiaries were sold and then included as a component of the net gain on the
disposal of the related subsidiaries. The net gain resulting from these sales
of $10,285,000 is included in the gain on disposal of subsidiaries operating in
discontinued segments in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations
for the year ended September 30, 1994.
Corporate expense related to the communications segment has been classified
as income from discontinued operations for the year ended September 30, 1994
based upon the corporate expenses directly attributable to GHTV in excess of
the $250,000 expense reimbursement from GHTV during the year (see Note 9).
Corporate expense related to Packerland has been classified as income from
discontinued operations based upon the corporate expenses directly attributable
to Packerland. Corporate expense classified as income from discontinued
operations totaled $762,000 for the year ended September 30, 1994. Corporate
interest expense has been allocated to income from discontinued operations
based upon the ratio of the net assets of Packerland and GHTV to the
consolidated net assets of the Company. Total corporate interest expense
allocated to income from discontinued operations was $4,033,000 for the year
ended September 30, 1994.
Incentive payments to George N. Gillett Jr., the Company's former Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer ("Mr. Gillett"), and certain other members of the
Company's management related to the sales of Packerland and the GHTV
subsidiaries totaling $1.3 million have been included as a component of the net
gain on the disposal of subsidiaries operating in discontinued segments in the
consolidated statement of operations for the year ended September 30, 1994.
In connection with the sales of Packerland and the GHTV subsidiaries, the
Company retained certain contingent liabilities that are customary for
transactions of this nature. The Company does not anticipate that these
contingencies will have a material effect on either future financial results or
liquidity.
4. ACQUISITIONS
On November 30, 1993, Vail Associates purchased substantially all of the

assets of Arrowhead for approximately $31,000,000 in cash. These assets
included (i) approximately 1,200 acres of land on Arrowhead Mountain, including
180 acres of skiable terrain, (ii) approximately 1,000 acres of undeveloped
real estate on, at the base of and adjacent to Arrowhead Mountain and (iii) the
rights to designate, and receive the proceeds from, certain membership
privileges to the Country Club of the Rockies ("CCR") golf club.
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Arrowhead is currently a year round resort which offers membership to CCR and
skiing as amenities to home owners to promote real estate sales.
On April 5, 1994, Vail Associates purchased SaddleRidge for approximately
$10,400,000 in cash. SaddleRidge is a 12 unit townhouse project with an
adjoining clubhouse. Vail Associates has sold eleven of the townhouse units and
currently operates a restaurant and meeting facilities in the clubhouse.
On July 22, 1996, the Company entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement
("Purchase Agreement") with Ralston Foods, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiary
Ralston Resorts, Inc., pursuant to which the Company will acquire the capital
stock of Ralston Resorts, Inc., the operator of the Breckenridge, Keystone and
Arapahoe Basin ski resorts located in Summit County, Colorado (the
"Acquisition"). Under the terms of the Purchase Agreement, the Company will
assume and/or refinance $165 million of indebtedness of Ralston Resorts, Inc.
and will issue approximately 3.8 million shares of Common Stock to Ralston
Foods, Inc. The closing of the Acquisition is dependent upon various
conditions, including obtaining financing to refinance the indebtedness assumed
(see Note 5), the continuing accuracy of representations and warranties made by
the parties to the Purchase Agreement, and the receipt of necessary government
approvals including those required under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust
Improvements Act of 1976, as amended.
5. LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt as of September 30, 1995 and 1996 is summarized as follows (in
thousands):

SEPTEMBER 30, SEPTEMBER 30,
1995
1996
------------- ------------Senior Subordinated Notes (a).......................
Industrial Development Bonds (b)....................
Credit Facilities (c)...............................
Other...............................................
Less--current maturities..........................

$117,147
37,903
36,000
263
-------191,313
63
-------$191,250
========

$ 62,647
37,903
44,000
200
-------144,750
63
-------$144,687
========

(a) The Senior Subordinated Notes are unsecured, bear interest at 12 1/4% and
mature on June 30, 2002. Interest is payable semi-annually on March 31 and
September 30.
The Company redeemed $30 million and $24.5 million principal amounts of
Senior Subordinated Notes on December 11, 1995 and February 2, 1996,
respectively, pursuant to the optional redemption provisions of the Senior
Subordinated Note Indenture (the "Indenture"). Under these provisions, the
Company was required to pay a call premium in the amount of 5% of the
principal redeemed for each of these redemptions.
The Company, pursuant to the covenants in the Indenture, may not incur
additional indebtedness unless expressly permitted in the Indenture; make
certain Restricted Payments (as defined in the Indenture); sell assets of
the Company or its subsidiaries unless within the guidelines set forth in
the Indenture; engage in certain transactions with affiliates; or make
certain acquisitions in excess of specific limitations.

(b) The Company has $41.2 million of outstanding Industrial Development Bonds
issued by Eagle County, Colorado which accrue interest at 8% per annum and
mature on August 1, 2009. Interest is payable semi-annually on February 1
and August 1. The Company has provided the holder of these bonds a debt
service reserve fund of $3.3 million, which has been netted against the
principal amount for financial reporting purposes. The Industrial
Development Bonds are secured by the stock of the subsidiaries of Vail
Associates and the United States Forest Service permits.
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(c) The Company's revolving line of credit provides for total availability of
$135 million which is comprised of a $105 million revolver ("Facility A")
and a $30 million revolver ("Facility B") (collectively, the "Credit
Facilities"). The maximum availability under Facility A will be reduced to
$80 million on March 31, 1999 with the remaining principal balance due on
March 31, 2000. Facility A also requires that no more than $75 million be
outstanding for a 30 day period each year. The maximum availability under
Facility B will be reduced by $10 million on March 31, 1997, 1998 and 1999.
The Credit Facilities are available for the seasonal working capital needs
of the Company and for capital expenditures and other general corporate
purposes, including the issuance of up to $50 million of letters of credit
("LOC"). Interest on outstanding advances under the Credit Facilities is
payable monthly or quarterly at rates based upon either LIBOR plus a margin
ranging from .75% to 2.0% (6.2% at September 30, 1996) or prime plus a
margin of up to .25% (8.25% at September 30, 1996). These rates fluctuate
depending on the ratio of funded debt to resort cash flow as defined in the
Credit Facilities. The Company is also required to pay an unused commitment
fee ranging from .25% to .375%. Of the $50 million of LOC availability,
approximately $45 million will ultimately be used to credit enhance the
Smith Creek Metropolitan District revenue bonds (see Note 10). As of
September 30, 1996, the Company had $27.6 million of LOCs outstanding
related to this credit enhancement and is using approximately $4.1 million
of LOCs for other Vail Associates corporate purposes. Fees for LOCs
outstanding are payable when LOCs are issued at rates ranging from .875% to
2.125%. Vail Associates is permitted under the Credit Facilities to make
(i) quarterly dividend payments to the Company in the amount of net cash
proceeds from real estate sales, (ii) annual dividend payments based upon
annual excess cash flow excluding cash proceeds from real estate sales, and
(iii) management fee payments not to exceed $3 million per year. Borrowings
under the Credit Facilities are secured by the stock of the subsidiaries of
Vail Associates and the permits granted by the United States Forest Service
(see Note 1). Due to the long term nature of the Credit Facilities, all
amounts outstanding are considered to be noncurrent liabilities.
The Company has received a commitment from its lender, as agent, to provide
financing for the Acquisition and the working capital needs of the Company
upon the closing of the Acquisition ("New Credit Facilities"). The New
Credit Facilities will provide for debt financing up to an aggregate
principal amount of $340 million. The New Credit Facilities are comprised of
(i) a $175 million Revolving Credit Facility ("Revolving Credit Facility"),
(ii) a $115 million Tranche A Term Loan Facility ("Tranche A") and (iii) a
$50 million Tranche B Term Loan Facility (together with the Tranche A, the
"Term Loan Facilities"). The Term Loan Facilities will be used to refinance
a portion of the $165 million of debt assumed in connection with the
Acquisition. The Revolving Credit Facility matures on April 15, 2003. The
minimum amortization under the Term Loan Facilities will be $11.5 million,
$14.0 million, $19.0 million, $21.5 million, $26.5 million, $31.5 million,
and $41 million during the fiscal years ending September 30, 1998, 1999,
2000, 2001, 2002, 2003, and 2004, respectively. The Company will also
required to make mandatory amortization payments under the Term Loan
Facilities with excess cash flow, proceeds from asset sales, and proceeds
from equity and debt offerings.
Aggregate maturities for debt outstanding are as follows (in thousands):

AS OF
SEPTEMBER 30,
1996
------------Due during year ending September 30:
1997............................................................
1998............................................................
1999............................................................
2000............................................................
2001............................................................
Thereafter......................................................
Total debt....................................................

$

63
63
63
11
-144,550
-------$144,750
========
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6. SUPPLEMENTARY BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION (IN THOUSANDS)
The composition of property, plant and equipment follows:

SEPTEMBER 30, SEPTEMBER 30,
1995
1996
------------- ------------Land and land improvements..........................
Buildings and terminals.............................
Machinery and equipment.............................
Automobiles and trucks..............................
Furniture and fixtures..............................
Construction in progress............................
Accumulated depreciation and amortization...........

$ 70,172
65,812
65,123
2,847
11,152
17,421
-------232,527
( 27,376)
-------$205,151
========

$ 66,966
60,928
68,286
3,729
12,817
15,118
-------227,844
(35,175)
-------$192,669
========

Depreciation expense for fiscal years 1994, 1995 and 1996 totaled $10.2
million, $11.3 million and $11.4 million, respectively.
The composition of intangible assets follows:
SEPTEMBER 30, SEPTEMBER 30,
1995
1996
------------- ------------Trademarks..........................................
Other intangible assets.............................
Excess Reorganization Value (Note 2)................
Accumulated amortization............................

$ 41,096
33,489
38,494
-------$113,079
(19,672)
-------$ 93,407
========

$ 41,096
32,639
37,702
-------$111,415
(26,381)
-------$ 85,056
========

The composition of accounts payable and accrued expenses follows:

SEPTEMBER 30, SEPTEMBER 30,
1995
1996

------------- ------------Trade payables.....................................
Accrued interest...................................
Accrued salaries and wages.........................
Current portion of option payment payable (see Note
10)...............................................
Other accruals.....................................

$14,847
8,092
5,808

$28,263
869
5,705

-8,672
------$37,419
=======

1,629
11,630
------$48,096
=======

7. RETIREMENT AND PROFIT SHARING PLANS
During 1992, a defined benefit pension plan covering employees of certain
companies which have been sold was terminated. The accrued benefits for those
plan participants became vested as of the date of sale, with no additional
benefits to be accrued. In connection with the termination of the plan, a group
annuity contract was purchased for settlement of substantially all remaining
plan obligations. The Company received the final $500,000 of the total excess
of the plan's assets over the cost of the annuity contract of $7.3 million
during the year ended September 30, 1994.
The Company maintains a defined contribution retirement plan, qualified under
Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code, for its employees. Employees are
eligible to participate in the plan upon attaining the age of 21 and completing
one year of employment with a minimum of 1,000 hours of service. Participants
may
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contribute from 2% to 15% of their qualifying annual compensation up to the
annual maximum specified by the Internal Revenue Code. The Company matches an
amount equal to 50% of each participant's contribution up to 6% of a
participant's annual qualifying compensation. The Company's matching
contribution is entirely discretionary and may be reduced or eliminated at any
time.
Total profit sharing plan expense recognized by the Company for the years
ended September 30, 1994, 1995 and 1996 was $784,000, $493,000 and $594,000,
respectively.
8. INCOME TAXES
At October 8, 1992, the Company had net operating loss (NOL) carryforwards
for federal income tax purposes of $575 million ("Effective Date NOLs"). Due to
discharge of indebtedness income relating to the restructuring, these NOLs were
reduced by $214 million. Pursuant to Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code
(IRC), due to the change in control of the Company as described in Note 1, the
Company will be limited in its use of the NOLs which existed on the Effective
Date. The Company will be able to use Effective Date NOLs to the extent of
approximately $8 million per year in each of the 15 years subsequent to the
Effective Date. In addition, the Company will be able to use Effective Date
NOLs to the extent that built-in gains (excess of fair market value over tax
basis at October 8, 1992) are recognized on asset sales which occur through
October 8, 1997. Accordingly, at October 8, 1992 the financial statements
reflect the benefit of the expected use of $120 million of Effective Date NOLs.
As the likelihood is low that the Company will be able to recognize a
significant portion of the remaining Effective Date NOLs, the accompanying
financial statements and tables of deferred tax items below do not recognize
any benefits related to the remaining Effective Date NOLs, except to the extent
realized. To the extent any additional tax benefits from these Effective Date
NOLs are recognized, there will be a reduction to the reorganization value in
excess of amounts allocable to identifiable assets recorded at October 8, 1992.
During the years ended September 30, 1994, 1995 and 1996, the Company
recognized the benefit of Effective Date tax attributes which were recorded as
reductions to the reorganization value in excess of amounts allocable to
identifiable assets of $2,764,000, $278,000 and $814,000, respectively. At
September 30, 1996, the Company has total federal NOL carryforwards of

approximately $353 million for income tax purposes that expire in the years
2002 through 2008, $49 million of which are not subject to any Section 382
limitation.
Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and income tax purposes. Significant components of the Company's
deferred tax liabilities and assets as of September 30, 1995 and 1996 are as
follows (in thousands):

SEPTEMBER 30, 1995
--------------------------CURRENT
NON-CURRENT
------------- ------------ASSETS
ASSETS
(LIABILITIES) (LIABILITIES)
------------- ------------Fixed assets............
Interest on notes.......
Intangible assets.......
Deferred compensation...
NOL carryover...........
Valuation allowance.....
Minimum tax credit......
All other...............
Net total.............

$

-216
-124
7,182
--1,978
-----$9,500
======

$(41,578)
1,822
(21,516)
270
49,881
(19,535)
595
761
-------$(29,300)
========

SEPTEMBER 30, 1996
--------------------------CURRENT
NON-CURRENT
------------- ------------ASSETS
ASSETS
(LIABILITIES) (LIABILITIES)
------------- ------------$
211
3,018
10,549
3,422
------$17,200
=======

$(35,916)
773
(19,928)
63
35,807
(22,544)
1,208
1,037
-------$(39,500)
========
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Significant components of the provision for income taxes from continuing
operations are as follows (in thousands):

YEAR ENDED
YEAR ENDED
YEAR ENDED
SEPTEMBER 30, SEPTEMBER 30, SEPTEMBER 30,
1994
1995
1996
------------- ------------- ------------Current:
Federal............................
State..............................
Total current....................
Deferred:
Federal............................
State..............................
Total deferred...................

$

447
235
-----682

$

621
354
-----975

$1,502
221
-----1,723

347
928
-----1,275
-----$1,957
======

2,066
834
-----2,900
-----$3,875
======

2,065
435
-----2,500
-----$4,223
======

A reconciliation of the income tax provision from continuing operations and
the amount computed by applying the U.S. federal statutory income tax rate to
income from continuing operations before income taxes is as follows (in
thousands):
YEAR ENDED
YEAR ENDED
YEAR ENDED
SEPTEMBER 30, SEPTEMBER 30, SEPTEMBER 30,
1994
1995
1996
------------- ------------- -------------

At U.S. federal income tax rate......
State income tax, net of federal benefit................................
Excess reorganization value amortization................................
Other................................

$

951

$2,505

$3,135

270

714

426

754
(18)
-----$1,957
======

727
(71)
-----$3,875
======

773
(111)
-----$4,223
======

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company provided administrative and other services to GHTV subsequent to
the Effective Date pursuant to a Reimbursement Agreement between the Company
and GHTV. Under the Reimbursement Agreement, GHTV reimbursed the Company for
all costs incurred directly by the Company on behalf of GHTV, and for its
allocated share of all Company corporate salaries and overhead expenses. In
connection with the sale of a GHTV subsidiary on May 25, 1993, the
Reimbursement Agreement was amended to limit the GHTV reimbursement to the
Company to $250,000 per year. Accordingly, the Company received $250,000 of
expense reimbursements related to the Reimbursement Agreement during the year
ended September 30, 1994. As a result of the repurchase by the Company of the
stock of GHTV (see Note 1), the Reimbursement Agreement was no longer in effect
subsequent to September 30, 1994. During that year, the Company received an
additional $760,000 from GHTV for its allocation of the costs of participating
in certain of the Company's fringe benefit plans and in sharing the cost of
master policies for business insurance coverage.
Packerland utilized related companies for repair, maintenance and leasing of
transportation equipment. Services totaling $881,000 were purchased from
related parties during the year ended September 30, 1994. As a result of the
sale of Packerland on August 31, 1994 (see Note 3), these costs were no longer
incurred subsequent to that date.
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Corporate expense for each of the years end September 30, 1994, 1995 and 1996
includes an annual fee of $500,000 for management services provided by an
affiliate of the majority holder of the Company's Common Stock. This fee is
generally settled partially through use of the Company's facilities and
partially in cash. At September 30, 1996, the Company's liability with respect
to this arrangement was $319,000.
The Game Creek Club (the "Club") is a private club located at the top of Vail
Mountain which began operations during fiscal 1996. Club members have luncheon
privileges at the Club's facilities during the ski season. The Company operates
the Club under an agreement which requires the Club to reimburse the Company
for any operating losses sustained on the Club's operations. At September 30,
1996, the Club owed the Company $1.0 million pursuant to this agreement.
Vail Associates has effective control of the Beaver Creek Resort Company
(Resort Company), a non-profit entity formed for the benefit of property owners
in Beaver Creek. As of December 31, 1995, Vail Associates relinquished its
right to appoint certain directors, however, as of September 30, 1996, Vail
Associates still controls the Board. Vail Associates has a management agreement
with the Resort Company, renewable for one-year periods, to provide management
services on a fixed fee basis without any profit. In accordance with a cash
flow agreement which is effective through 2000, Vail Associates will fund the
cash needs of the Resort Company that are not otherwise met through the Resort
Company's operations or borrowings. During fiscal years 1991 through 1996, the
Resort Company was able to meet its operating requirements through its own
operations. Management fees paid to the Company under its agreement with the
Resort Company during fiscal years 1994, 1995 and 1996 totaled $5.8 million,
$7.0 million and $5.5 million, respectively. Related amounts due the Company at
September 30, 1995 and 1996 were $34,000 and $599,000, respectively.
In 1991, the Company loaned to Andrew P. Daly, the Company's President,
$300,000, $150,000 of which bears interest at 9% and the remainder of which is

non-interest bearing. The principal sum plus accrued interest is due no later
than one year following the termination, for any reason, of Mr. Daly's
employment with the Company. The proceeds of the loan were used to finance the
purchase and improvement of real property. The loan is secured by a deed of
trust on such property.
In 1995, Mr. Daly's spouse and James P. Thompson, President of VAREG, and his
spouse received financial terms more favorable than those available to the
general public in connection with their purchase of lots in the Bachelor Gulch
development. Rather than payment of an earnest money deposit with the entire
balance due in cash at closing, these contracts provide for no earnest money
deposit with the entire purchase price (which was below fair market value) paid
under promissory notes of $438,750 and $350,000 for Mr. Daly's spouse and Mr.
and Mrs. Thompson, respectively, each secured by a first deed of trust and
amortized over 25 years at 8% per annum interest, with a balloon payment due on
the earlier of five years from the date of closing or one year from the date
employment with the Company is terminated. The promissory notes will be
executed upon the closings of the lot sales which are expected to occur in
December 1996.
10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
As of September 30, 1996, the Company had entered into real estate contracts
for the sale of certain real estate and related amenities for gross proceeds of
approximately $106.9 million. The Company estimates that subsequent to
September 30, 1996, it will incur additional selling, holding and
infrastructure costs of $24.5 million in connection with the sale of the
properties subject to those contracts. In addition, the Company expects that
subsequent to September 30, 1996 it will make mountain improvements of $17.2
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million (a portion of which will be completed in connection with the sale of
the properties subject to the real estate contracts), which will consist
primarily of a high speed quad chairlift, base area improvements and snowmaking
and will benefit the properties subject to the real estate contracts as well as
the Company's remaining real estate holdings in Bachelor Gulch Village and
Arrowhead. The Company has entered into repurchase agreements with certain
developers who have purchased real estate from the Company to repurchase
certain retail and residential space in the completed developments. At
September 30, 1996, the Company has agreed to repurchase various retail and
residential space for amounts totaling $10.9 million.
On September 25, 1996, the Company declared a right to receive up to $4.87
per share of Common Stock (the "Rights") to all stockholders of record on
October 11, 1996, with a maximum aggregate amount payable under the Rights of
$50.5 million. The Company will make payments under the Rights only to the
extent it receives sufficient gross proceeds under the real estate contracts
referred to above to make such payments. The Company currently estimates
payments under the Rights will be made in January and June 1997. Stockholders
who purchase shares in the Company's anticipated Offering will not be entitled
to any payments with respect to the Rights. In addition, the Company amended
certain option agreements held by management of the Company to eliminate the
right of option holders to receive any portion of the payments made under the
Rights. In connection with such amendment, the Company accrued a payable to
option holders of approximately $4.5 million. The related expense is included
in corporate expense in the consolidated statement of operations for the year
ended September 30, 1996.
On July 9, 1996, the Company entered into a Standby Bond Purchase Agreement
which could obligate the Company to purchase $10.1 million of Eagle Country Air
Terminal Corporation Revenue Bonds if certain events occur. The Company entered
into this agreement to facilitate construction of a new terminal to allow
expanded air service to the Eagle County Airport.
In June 1995, Vail Associates entered into an agreement with Cordillera
Valley Club Investors Limited Partnership and Stag Gulch Partners to purchase
100 Cordillera Club memberships for resale to purchasers of residential lots.
The obligation to purchase memberships is secured by a $2.2 million letter of
credit. As of September 30, 1996, Vail Associates has paid $2.6 million in

connection with this agreement and has resold memberships with a cost of
$977,500 to purchasers of residential lots.
In March 1995, the Smith Creek Metropolitan District ("SCMD") and the
Bachelor Gulch Metropolitan District ("BGMD") were organized as quasi-municipal
corporations and political subdivisions of the State of Colorado. The two
districts will cooperate in the financing, construction and operation of basic
public infrastructure serving the BGMD. SCMD was organized primarily to own,
operate and maintain water, street, traffic and safety, transportation, fire
protection, emergency medical, parks and recreation, television relay and
translation, sanitation and certain other facilities and equipment of the BGMD.
SCMD is comprised of approximately 150 acres of open space land owned by the
Company and members of the Board of Directors of the SCMD. The BGMD is located
adjacent to the SCMD and covers an area of approximately 1,250 acres of land in
an unincorporated portion of Eagle County, Colorado between the Beaver Creek
and Arrowhead ski mountains. All of the land in the BGMD has received final
approval by Eagle County for development as two planned unit developments
including various single family, two-family, cluster home and townhouse units
and related uses. All of the land in the BGMD is currently owned by the
Company. The Company has contracted to sell 94 single family lots, the closings
of which are scheduled for December 1996 and May 1997. The Company is currently
preparing to offer additional land for sale to persons, including builders, who
may construct up to 600 units of various multi-family dwelling types over the
next several years. Of the $50 million of letter of credit availability under
the Company's Credit Facilities (see Note 5), approximately $45 million will
ultimately be used to credit enhance the SCMD revenue bonds in order to secure
the timely payment of principal and interest on the bonds. Currently, SCMD has
issued $26 million of revenue bonds which have been credit enhanced with a
$27.6 million letter of credit issued under the Credit Agreement.
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The SCMD bonds are variable rate bonds which mature on October 1, 2035. It is
anticipated that as the Bachelor Gulch community expands, the BGMD will begin
to become self supporting and that within 25 to 30 years will issue general
obligation bonds, the proceeds of which will be used to retire the SCMD revenue
bonds. Until that time, the Company has agreed to subsidize the interest
payments on the SCMD revenue bonds. During fiscal 1996, the subsidy totaled
$505,000. The Company estimates that the aggregate undiscounted future interest
subsidy until the revenue bonds are retired will approximate $40.1 million. The
accompanying consolidated financial statements do not reflect this obligation.
Under the Stock Purchase Agreement dated August 31, 1994 for the sale of
Packerland, the Company has agreed to indemnify the purchasers of Packerland
for payments made to settle environmental claims which existed at the sale
date. A liability of $1.0 million related to these claims was recorded on the
sale date. During fiscal 1996, the liability was increased by $725,000 on the
basis of revised estimates of the maximum potential liability. That amount was
included in other income (expense) in the consolidated financial statements.
Under the indemnification provisions of the Stock Purchase Agreement, the
Company is to be reimbursed for any insurance proceeds, any reimbursements
received under various government programs or any recoveries from third parties
for items reimbursable under the Stock Purchase Agreement. Management is unable
to estimate the amounts or likelihood of any potential reimbursements at this
time and, accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial statements do
not reflect any receivable for such reimbursements.
As of the Effective Date, the Company's consolidated balance sheet included
as a long-term liability an estimated potential obligation of $3 million
related to a fundraising agreement between the Company and Mr. Gillett, and a
medical research foundation located in Vail, Colorado. As of September 30,
1994, the liability had been reduced to $2.1 million on the basis of current
estimates of the Company's maximum potential obligation. During the year ended
September 30, 1995, the Company paid $500,000 related to this agreement. As of
September 30, 1995, the Company believed that it had no further obligation to
the medical research foundation and accordingly, other income (expense) in the
consolidated statement of operations for the year ended September 30, 1995
included related income of $1.6 million. During the year ended September 30,
1996, the Company became aware that the medical research foundation believed
that the Company still had a potential obligation related to this matter. On

the basis of recent discussions between the parties to the agreement, the
Company believes the maximum potential obligation is $1.2 million, the amount
of which is included in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the
consolidated balance sheet at September 30, 1996. A receivable of $600,000 from
Mr. Gillett related to his contractual portion of the potential obligation, is
included in other current assets at September 30, 1996. Other income (expense)
for the year ended September 30, 1996 includes expense of $600,000 related to
the Company's portion of the potential obligation.
The Company has executed operating leases for the rental of office space,
employee residential units, office equipment and snowcats though fiscal 2004.
For the years ended September 30, 1996, 1995 and 1994, lease expense related to
these agreements of $3.8 million, $3.8 million and $3.1 million, respectively,
is included in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
Future minimum lease payments under these leases as of September 30, 1996 are
as follows:

Due during fiscal year ending September 30:
1997................................................................ $1,460,395
1998................................................................ 1,030,937
1999................................................................ 1,246,546
2000................................................................ 1,110,696
2001................................................................ 1,029,000
Thereafter.......................................................... 2,486,750
---------Total............................................................. $8,364,324
==========
F-19
VAIL RESORTS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(CONTINUED)
11. BUSINESS SEGMENTS
As a result of the sale of Packerland on August 31, 1994 (see Note 3) and the
sale of the remaining GHTV subsidiaries on September 23, 1994 (see Note 3), the
Company now operates only in the Resorts and Real Estate segments. Segment
information presented below excludes the Communications and Beef Products
segments as their results were reported as discontinued during fiscal 1994 and
they had no operations subsequent to fiscal 1994. Data by segment is as
follows:

YEAR ENDED
YEAR ENDED
YEAR ENDED
SEPTEMBER 30, SEPTEMBER 30, SEPTEMBER 30,
1994
1995
1996
------------- ------------- ------------Net revenues:
Resorts.............................
Real Estate.........................

Income from operations:
Resorts.............................
Real Estate.........................
Corporate...........................

Depreciation and amortization:
Resorts.............................
Real Estate.........................

$124,982
22,203
-------$147,185
========

$126,349
16,526
-------$142,875
========

$140,288
48,655
-------$188,943
========

$ 29,431
1,862
(7,160)
-------$ 24,133
========

$ 26,076
1,543
(6,701)
-------$ 20,918
========

$ 32,250
7,854
(12,698)
-------$ 27,406
========

$ 17,186
---------

$ 17,968
---------

$ 18,148
---------

Capital expenditures:
Resorts.............................
Real Estate.........................

$ 17,186
========

$ 17,968
========

$ 18,148
========

$ 17,414
22,686
-------$ 40,100
========

$ 20,320
22,477
-------$ 42,797
========

$ 13,912
40,604
-------$ 54,516
========

SEPTEMBER 30, SEPTEMBER 30,
1995
1996
------------- ------------Identifiable assets:
Resorts.............................
Real Estate.........................

$205,151
54,858
-------$260,009
========

$192,669
88,665
-------$281,334
========

12. STOCK GRANTS, OPTIONS AND WARRANTS
Pursuant to an employment agreement as of the Effective Date, Mr. Gillett
earned as additional performance-based compensation over the three year period
ending on the third anniversary of the Effective Date, (i) 357,488 shares of
Common Stock and (ii) warrants with an exercise price of $13.70 per share for
an additional 204,082 shares of Common Stock. In addition, on the third
anniversary of the Effective Date, Mr. Gillett earned as additional
performance-based compensation long-term stock options with an exercise price
of $23.67 per share, as of October 8, 1995, increasing 20% per year for 582,404
shares of Common Stock. These shares of Common Stock, warrants and long-term
stock options have all been issued to Mr. Gillett.
Effective September 30, 1996, Mr. Gillett resigned as Chairman of the Board,
Chief Executive Officer, President and Director of the Company. Pursuant to the
terms of an agreement dated October 11, 1996 between Mr. Gillett and the
Company (the "Gillett Agreement"), Mr. Gillett (i) will receive his base salary
(currently $1.7 million per annum) through October 7, 1997, (ii) exchanged the
582,404 long-term stock options for 168,159 shares of Common Stock and (iii)
waived his right to the Distribution with respect to
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his 357,488 shares of Common Stock and his warrants to purchase 204,082 shares
of Common Stock in exchange for the payment of the exercise price on those
warrants. In addition, the Company has agreed to pay Mr. Gillett's office
expenses through December 31, 1996. Corporate expense for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 1996 includes $2.1 million related to the base salary and office
expenses of Mr. Gillett payable under the Gillett Agreement and $1.9 million in
compensation expense related to Mr. Gillett's exchange of his long-term stock
options.
The Company has adopted a stock option plan pursuant to which options
covering an aggregate of 1,022,755 shares of Common Stock may be issued to key
employees, directors, consultants, and advisors of the Company or its
subsidiaries. As of September 30, 1996, options covering 916,650 shares of
Common Stock have been issued to various key executives of the Company. All of
the options vest in equal installments over five years, with exercise prices
ranging from $13.70 per share to $21.50 per share. As of September 30, 1996,
403,614 of these options were exercisable. None of the options issued under the
stock option plan have been exercised. Under certain circumstances, the option
plan provides for loans by the Company to employees, collateralized by such
employees' vested options.
In July 1996, the Company's Board of Directors approved a new stock option
plan ("New Option Plan") under which 750,000 shares of Common Stock have been
reserved for various stock and option awards.
Effective July 29, 1996, the Company hired Adam Aron as Chairman and Chief

Executive Officer. Pursuant to the terms of an employment agreement,
approximately 18,750 shares of restricted stock and options to purchase 130,000
shares of Common Stock for $40.00 per share (subject to adjustment in certain
circumstances) will be granted to Mr. Aron under the New Option Plan. The
restricted shares and the options vest in equal increments over five years.
Effective October 28, 1996, the Company hired James P. Donohue as Senior Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer. Pursuant to the terms of an employment
agreement with Mr. Donohue, approximately 6,000 shares of restricted stock and
options to purchase 30,000 shares of Common Stock for $40.00 per share (subject
to adjustment in certain circumstances) will be granted to Mr. Donohue under
the New Option Plan. The restricted shares and the options vest in equal
increments over three years. On September 30, 1996, the Company awarded 6,250
shares of restricted stock and options to purchase 50,000 shares of Common
Stock for $40.00 per share (subject to adjustment in certain circumstances) to
Andrew P. Daly, the Company's President, under the New Option Plan. The
restricted shares and the options vest in equal increments over five years.
Compensation expense related to these restricted stock awards will be charged
ratably over the respective vesting periods.
13. CAPITAL STOCK
On June 3, 1996, the Company's Board of Directors changed the name of the
Company from Gillett Holdings, Inc. to Vail Resorts, Inc. and the name of the
Company's Common Stock from Class 1 and Class 2 to Class A Common Stock and
Common Stock, respectively. In addition the common stock authorized increased
to 20,000,000 shares of Class A Common Stock and 40,000,000 shares of Common
Stock. The Company's Board of Directors also authorized a Common Stock and
Class A Common Stock split of up to 3 for 1 prior to the date of any public
stock offering.
The rights of holders of Class A Common Stock and Common Stock are
substantially identical, except that, while any Class A Common Stock is
outstanding, holders of Class A Common Stock elect a class of directors that
constitutes two-thirds of the Board and holders of Common Stock elect another
class of directors constituting one-third of the Board. The Class A Common
Stock is convertible into Common Stock (i) at the option of the holder, (ii)
automatically, upon transfer to a non-affiliate and (iii) automatically if less
than 2,500,000 shares (as such number shall be adjusted by reason of any stock
split, reclassification or other similar transaction) of Class A Common Stock
are outstanding. The Common Stock is not convertible. Each outstanding share of
Common Stock and Class A Common Stock is entitled to vote on all matters
submitted to a vote of stockholders.
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PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT.
MANAGEMENT
DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
The following table sets forth information with respect to the directors and
executive officers of the Company.

NAME
----

AGE
---

Adam M. Aron...................

42

Frank Biondi...................
Leon D. Black..................
Craig M. Cogut.................
Stephen C. Hilbert.............

51
44
42
50

POSITION
-------Chairman of the Board of Directors and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company
Director
Director
Director
Director

Robert A. Katz.................
Thomas H. Lee..................
William L. Mack................
Antony P. Ressler..............
Marc J. Rowan..................
John J. Ryan III...............
John F. Sorte..................
Bruce H. Spector...............
James S. Tisch.................
Andrew P. Daly.................
James P. Donohue...............

29
51
56
35
34
68
49
53
42
50
55

Gerald E. Flynn................
James S. Mandel................

45
46

J. Kent Myers..................
Edward D. O'Brien..............

47
56

Christopher P. Ryman...........

44

James P. Thompson..............

52

Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
President and Director of the Company
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer of the Company
Senior Vice President of Vail Associates
Senior Vice President, General Counsel
and Secretary of the Company
Senior Vice President of Vail Associates
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer, Vail Associates Real Estate
Group, Inc.
Senior Vice President and Chief Operating
Officer of Vail Associates
President, Vail Associates Real Estate
Group, Inc.

Pursuant to the Restated Certificate of Incorporation and Restated Bylaws of
the Company, the Board is divided into two classes of Directors, denoted as
Class 1 and Class 2, each serving one-year terms. Class 1 directors are elected
by a majority vote of the holders of the Class A Common Stock and Class 2
directors are elected by a majority vote of the holders of the Common Stock.
The Class 1 directors are Messrs. Black, Cogut, Daly, Katz, Mack, Ressler,
Rowan, Ryan and Spector, and the Class 2 directors are Messrs. Aron, Biondi,
Hilbert, Lee, Sorte and Tisch.
Adam M. Aron is the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Aron served as President and Chief
Executive Officer of Norwegian Cruise Line Ltd. from July 1993 until July 1996.
From November 1990 until July 1993 Mr. Aron served as Senior Vice
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President of Marketing for United Airlines. From 1987-1990, Mr. Aron served as
Senior Vice President of Marketing for the Hyatt Hotels Corporation.
Frank Biondi was appointed a Director of the Company on July 29, 1996. Mr.
Biondi is Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of MCA Inc. Mr. Biondi
previously served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Viacom, Inc. from
July 1987 to January 1996. He has also held executive positions with The CocaCola
Company, Home Box Office Inc. and Time Inc. Mr. Biondi currently is a member of
the Boards of Directors of Leake and Watts Services, The Museum of Television
and Radio, The Bank of New York and the American Health Foundation.
Leon D. Black is one of the founding principals of Apollo Advisors, L.P.,
which was established in August 1990 ("Apollo Advisors"), and which, together
with an affiliate, acts as managing general partner of Apollo Investment Fund,
L.P., AIF II, L.P. and Apollo Investment Fund III, L.P., private securities
investment funds, of Apollo Real Estate Advisors, L.P. ("AREA") which, together
with an affiliate, acts as managing general partner of the Apollo real estate
investment funds and of Lion Advisors, L.P. ("Lion Advisors"), which acts as
financial advisor to and representative for certain institutional investors
with respect to securities investments. Mr. Black is also a director of Big
Flower Press, Inc., Culligan Water Technologies, Inc., Furniture Brands
International, Inc., Samsonite Corporation and Telemundo Group, Inc. Mr. Black
was appointed a director of the Company in October 1992. Mr. Black is Mr.
Ressler's brother-in-law.
Craig M. Cogut is currently a private investor. Prior thereto he was one of
the founding principals of Apollo Advisors and of Lion Advisors. Prior to 1990,
Mr. Cogut was a consultant and legal advisor, principally to Drexel Burnham
Lambert Incorporated and associated entities. Mr. Cogut is also a director of
Envirotest Systems, Inc. and Salant Corporation. Mr. Cogut was appointed a
director of the Company in October 1992.

Stephen C. Hilbert was appointed a director of the Company in December 1995.
Mr. Hilbert founded Conseco, Inc. in 1979, and serves as its Chairman,
President and Chief Executive Officer. Conseco, Inc., is a financial services
holding company based in Carmel, Ind., owns and operates life insurance
companies, provides investment management, administrative and other fee-based
services. Mr. Hilbert serves as a Director of the Indiana State University
Foundation and the Indianapolis Convention and Visitor's Association. He also
serves on the Board of Trustees of both the Indianapolis Parks Foundation and
the U.S. Ski Team Foundation, as a Trustee of the Central Indiana Council on
Aging Foundation, and as a Director of both the Indianapolis Zoo and the St.
Vincent Hospital Foundation.
Robert A. Katz is an officer of Apollo Capital Management, Inc. and Lion
Capital Management, Inc., the general partners of Apollo Advisors and Lion
Advisors, respectively. Mr. Katz is a limited partner of Apollo Advisors and of
Lion Advisors, with which he has been associated since 1990. Mr. Katz was
appointed a director of the Company in June 1996. Mr. Katz is also a director
of Salant Corporation and Aris Industries, Inc.
Thomas H. Lee was appointed a director of the Company in January 1993. Mr.
Lee founded the Thomas H. Lee Company in 1974 and since that time has served as
its President. The Lee Company and the funds which it advises invest in
friendly leveraged acquisitions and recapitalizations. From 1966 through 1974,
Mr. Lee was with First National bank of Boston where he directed the bank's
high technology lending group from 1968 to 1974 and became a Vice President in
1973. Prior to 1966, Mr. Lee was a Securities Analyst in the institutional
research department of L.F. Rothschild in New York. Mr. Lee serves as a
Director of Autotote Corporation, Finlay Enterprises, Inc., First Security
Services Corporation, Health o meter Products, Inc., Livent Inc., Miller Import
Corporation, Playtex Products, Inc., and Sondik Supply Company.
William L. Mack was appointed a director of the Company in January 1993. Mr.
Mack has been the President and Managing Partner of The Mack Organization, an
owner and developer of and investor in office and industrial buildings and
other commercial properties principally in the New York/New Jersey metropolitan
area as well as throughout the United States, since 1963. Mr. Mack is a
founding principal of AREA and since 1993 has provided consulting services to
Apollo Real Estate Investment Fund II, L.P.
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Mr. Mack is a Director of Crocker Realty Trust, Inc. and First Capital Holdings
Corp. He has been Director of the Urban Development Corporation for the State
of New York since 1983. Mr. Mack has also been Chairman of the Board of
Directors of the Jacob K. Javits Convention Center Development Corporation of
New York since 1984 and the Chairman of the Board of Directors of New York
Convention Center Operating Corporation since 1988.
Antony P. Ressler. Mr. Ressler is one of the founding principals of Apollo
Advisors and Lion Advisors. Mr. Ressler is also a director of Dominick's
Supermarkets, Family Restaurants, Inc., Packaging Resources, Inc. and United
International Holdings, Inc. He is also a member of the Executive Committee of
the Board of Directors of LEARN, the largest public school reform movement in
the U.S. and of the Jonsson Comprehensive Cancer Center at the UCLA Medical
Center.
Marc J. Rowan is one of the founding principals of Apollo Advisors and of
Lion Advisors. Mr. Rowan is also a director of Culligan Water Technologies,
Inc., Farley, Inc., Furniture Brands International, Inc. and Samsonite
Corporation. Mr. Rowan was appointed a director of the Company in October 1992.
John J. Ryan III has been a financial advisor based in Geneva, Switzerland
since 1972. Mr. Ryan is a director of Artemis S.A. and Financiere Pinault S.A.,
private holding companies in Paris, France and Furniture Brands International,
Inc. He is Vice President and Director of Evergreen Resources Inc., a publicly
held oil and gas exploration company. Mr. Ryan is President of J.J. Ryan &
Sons, a closely held textile trading corporation in Greenville, South Carolina.
Mr. Ryan was appointed a director of the Company in January 1995. Artemis S.A.
is a significant investor in Apollo Ski Partners.
John F. Sorte has been President of New Street Advisors L.P., a merchant
bank, and of New Street Investments L.P., its broker-dealer affiliate, since he
co-founded such entities in March 1994. From 1992 to March 1994, Mr. Sorte was
President and Chief Executive Officer of New Street Capital Corporation, a

merchant banking firm, and from 1990 to 1992, he was President and Chief
Executive Officer of The Drexel Burnham Lambert Group Inc., an investment firm.
Prior to 1990, Mr. Sorte was employed by Drexel Burnham Lambert Incorporated.
Mr. Sorte is also a director of WestPoint Stevens Inc. and serves as Chairman
of the Board of Directors of The New York Media Group, Inc. Mr. Sorte was
appointed a director of the Company in January 1993.
Bruce H. Spector has been a consultant to Apollo Advisors since 1992 and
since 1995 has been a principal in Apollo Advisors II, L.P., an affiliate of
Apollo Advisors which acts as general partner of Apollo Investment Fund III,
L.P. Prior to October 1992, Mr. Spector, a reorganization attorney, was a
member of the Los Angeles law firm of Stutman Triester and Glatt. Mr. Spector
is also a director of Telemundo Group, Inc. and United International Holdings,
Inc. Mr. Spector was appointed a director of the Company in January 1995.
James S. Tisch is President and Chief Operating Officer of Loews Corporation.
He has been with Loews Corporation since 1977. Prior to that he was with CNA
Financial Corporation. Mr. Tisch is Chairman of the Board of Directors of
Diamond Offshore Drilling, Inc., a member of the Board of Directors of Champion
International Corporation, CNA Financial Corporation, and Loews Corporation. He
is also Chairman of the Federation Employment and Guidance Service, a member of
the Board of Directors of UJA-Federation of New York, and a Trustee of The
Mount Sinai Medical Center. Mr. Tisch was appointed a director of the Company
in January 1995.
Andrew P. Daly was appointed a director of the Company in June 1996. Mr. Daly
became President of Vail Associates in 1992 and President of the Company in
1995. He joined Vail Associates in 1989 as Executive Vice President and
President of Beaver Creek Resort. Prior to joining Vail Associates, Mr. Daly
owned and was President of Lake Eldora Ski Corporation, which operated the Lake
Eldora Mountain Resort ski area. From 1982 to 1987, Mr. Daly was Chief
Executive Officer of Copper Mountain Resort, where he held several positions
from 1972 to 1982.
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James P. Donohue became Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of
the Company in October 1996. From 1991 to October 1996, Mr. Donohue served as
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Fibreboard Corporation, a
manufacturer and distributor of building products, which also owns and operates
three ski resorts located in California. Prior to 1991, Mr. Donohue was an
Executive Vice President of Continental Illinois Bank., N.A.
Gerald E. Flynn became Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of
Vail Associates in 1992. Mr. Flynn was formerly Senior Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company from 1995 until October 1996. Mr. Flynn joined
Vail Associates in 1981 as Manager of Tax and Joint Venture Planning before
being promoted to Director of Corporate Planning in 1983. Mr. Flynn was
promoted to Treasurer in 1984 and to Vice President of Finance in 1986. Prior
to joining Vail Associates, Mr. Flynn was a senior tax accountant for the
Denver office of Deloitte, Haskins & Sells from 1977 to 1981.
James S. Mandel joined the Company and Vail Associates in 1994 as Senior Vice
President and General Counsel of both the Company and Vail Associates, and was
named Secretary of Vail Associates in 1994 and of the Company in 1995. From
1978, until joining the Company, Mr. Mandel was a partner with Brownstein,
Hyatt, Farber and Strickland, a Denver law firm, and specialized in real estate
development and corporate finance.
J. Kent Myers became Senior Vice President of Vail Associates in 1995. Prior
to that, he served as Chief Operating Officer of Beaver Creek Resort from 1992
to 1995, and as Vice President of Marketing for Vail Associates from 1988 to
1992. From 1981 to 1988, Mr. Myers was Vice President of Marketing for
Steamboat Ski Corporation.
Edward D. O'Brien joined Vail Associates Real Estate Group, Inc. in 1993.
Prior to that he was Chief Financial Officer and a Managing General Partner of
Lincoln Property Company, a real estate development and management firm from
1971 to 1991. From 1962 to 1971 Mr. O'Brien was an auditor with Arthur Andersen
LLP.
Christopher P. Ryman became Chief Operating Officer and Senior Vice President
of Vail Associates in 1995. From 1992 to 1995, he was Senior Vice President of
Mountain Operations. Mr. Ryman was managing director of the Vail and Beaver

Creek Ski Schools from 1986 to 1992, served in management positions at the
Beaver Creek Ski School from 1980 to 1985 and was involved in ski school
operations from 1978 to 1980. Prior to joining Vail Associates in 1978, Mr.
Ryman held positions at the Mt. Hood, Snowbird and Alta ski resorts.
James P. Thompson joined Vail Associates Real Estate Group, Inc. in 1993 in
connection with Vail Associates' acquisition of Arrowhead. He joined Arrowhead
in 1989, becoming President in March of 1994. Prior to joining Arrowhead, he
served as Vice-President of Moore and Company in Denver for 14 years.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEES
Messrs. Black, Katz, Ressler, Rowan and Spector are associated with Apollo
Advisors, an affiliate of Apollo Ski Partners, L.P. Apollo Ski Partners is
organized principally for the purpose of holding capital stock of the Company.
See "Principal and Selling Stockholders" regarding the shares of Company stock
held by Apollo Ski Partners.
The Board of Directors has established an Executive Committee, an Audit
Committee and a Compensation Committee.
The Executive Committee has all powers and rights necessary to exercise the
full authority of the Board of Directors in the management of the business and
affairs of the Company when necessary in between meetings of the Board of
Directors. The members of the Executive Committee are Adam M. Aron, Andrew P.
Daly, Robert A. Katz and Marc J. Rowan.
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The Audit Committee is primarily concerned with the effectiveness of the
Company's accounting policies and practices, financial reporting and internal
controls. The Audit Committee is authorized to (i) make recommendations to the
Board of Directors regarding the engagement of the Company's independent
accountants, (ii) review the plan, scope and results of the annual audit, the
independent accountants' letter of comments and management's response thereto,
and the scope of any non-audit services which may be performed by the
independent accountants, (iii) manage the Company's policies and procedures
with respect to internal accounting and financial controls, and (iv) review any
changes in accounting policy. The members of the Audit Committee are Stephan C.
Hilbert, John F. Sorte and James S. Tisch.
The Compensation Committee is authorized and directed to (i) review and
approve the compensation and benefits of the executive officers, (ii) to review
and approve the annual salary plans, (iii) to review management organization
and development, (iv) review and advise management regarding the benefits,
including bonuses, and other terms and conditions of employment of other
employees and (v) administer any stock option plans which may be adopted and
the granting of options under such plans. The members of the Compensation
Committee are Leon D. Black, Marc J. Rowan and Thomas H. Lee.
COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTICIPATION
Prior to July, 1996, there was no Compensation Committee of the Board of
Directors. During fiscal 1996, executive compensation decisions were made by
the entire Board of Directors.
COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS
All directors' fees will be determined by the Board of Directors of the
Company. As of the date of this Prospectus, the Company had paid no fees to its
directors, and the Company currently does not intend to pay directors' fees.
The Company pays a management fee of $500,000 per year to Apollo Advisors, L.P.
Messrs. Black, Katz, Mack, Ryan, Ressler, Rowan and Spector are associated with
Apollo Advisors and are directors of the Company.
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
The following table shows all the cash compensation paid or to be paid by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, as well as certain other compensation paid
or accrued, during the years ended September 30, 1994, 1995 and 1996 to the
Chief Executive Officer and the four highest paid executive officers of the
Company whose compensation was at least $100,000 for the year ended September
30, 1996 in all capacities in which they served:
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SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

NAME, PRINCIPAL
POSITION, AND PERIOD
-------------------George N. Gillett, Jr.,
(4)
Former Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company
1994...................
1995...................
1996...................
Andrew P. Daly,
Chief Executive Officer
and President of Vail
Associates, President
of the Company
1994...................
1995...................
1996...................
J. Kent Myers,
Senior Vice President
of Vail Associates
1994...................
1995...................
1996...................
James S. Mandel,
Senior Vice President,
General Counsel and
Secretary of the Company
1994...................
1995...................
1996...................
Christopher P. Ryman,
Senior Vice President
and Chief Operating
Officer
1994...................
1995...................
1996...................

ANNUAL COMPENSATION
LONG-TERM COMPENSATION
---------------------- -----------------------------AWARDS
PAYOUTS
------------------- -----------RESTRICTED
SALARY
OTHER ANNUAL
STOCK
LTIP
ALL OTHER
AND BONUS COMPENSATION AWARD(S) OPTIONS/
PAYMENTS COMPENSATION
($)
($)(1)
($)
SAR
($)(2)
($)(3)
--------- ------------ ---------- --------------- ------------

1,542,000
1,584,000
1,628,400

58,150
116,000
75,800

1,966,200
2,383,200
2,562,000

----

----

269,907
307,538
348,077

34,835
32,322
24,007

----

----

113,883
113,883
113,883

----

174,462
193,618
183,192

16,280
14,673
5,075

----

----

70,016
70,016
70,016

----

174,000
311,500
329,462

-1,716
1,924

----

89,980(5)
---

155,000
175,512
184,269

16,225
14,504
15,057

----

----

----

70,016
70,016
70,016

296,812
-36,956

----

----

- -------(1) Includes interest on long-term incentive plan compensation paid during the
period indicated to the named executive officer.
(2) Prior to October 8, 1992, the Company and certain of its subsidiaries
offered deferred compensation plans to certain key management employees in
lieu of any type of pension plans, stock options or other retirement
plans. As of October 8, 1992, following payments made on or around October
8, 1992, the outstanding deferred compensation balances for Mr. Daly, Mr.
Myers, and Mr. Ryman were $455,532, $280,063 and $280,063, respectively.
Mr. Daly's, Mr. Myers' and Mr. Ryman's outstanding deferred compensation
balances after October 8, 1992 are being paid to them over a four-year
period, with interest accruing on the balance at a rate of 8% per annum.
As of September 30, 1996, Mr. Daly's, Mr. Myers' and Mr. Ryman's
outstanding deferred compensation balances were $28,471, $17,504 and
$17,504, respectively. Due to the long-term incentive characteristics of
the deferred compensation plans of the Company and its subsidiaries,
payout amounts pursuant to these plans have been included in this column.
(3) In connection with the sale of certain non-ski-related assets of the
Company, Mr. Gillett received incentive payments of $296,812 on September
23, 1994, and $36,956 on January 31, 1996, each pursuant to the terms of
his employment agreement.
(4) Mr. Gillett resigned as Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and

Director of the Company effective September 30, 1996 in order to pursue
other business interests.
(5) Pursuant to a stock option plan adopted by the Company, these options were
issued on March 21, 1994. The options vest in equal installments over a
five year period and provide for an exercise price of $20.00 per share.
See "Management--Stock Option Plan."
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AGGREGATE OPTION/SAR EXERCISES DURING YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1996
AND OPTION/SAR VALUES AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 1996

VALUE OF
NUMBER OF
UNEXERCISED
UNEXERCISED
IN-THE-MONEY
OPTIONS/SARS
OPTIONS/SARS
AT FY-END (#)
AT FY-END ($)(1)
--------------- -------------------

NAME
---George N. Gillett, Jr. .......
Andrew P. Daly................
J. Kent Myers.................
James S. Mandel...............
Christopher P. Ryman..........

SHARES
ACQUIRED ON
EXERCISABLE/
EXERCISABLE/
EXERCISE (#) VALUE REALIZED ($) UNEXERCISABLE
UNEXERCISABLE
------------ ------------------ --------------- ------------------------

$------

786,486/
-$ 5,831,355/$ -97,746/115,164 1,788,752/1,192,501
53,988/ 35,992
987,980/ 658,654
35,992/ 53,988
431,904/ 647,856
53,988/ 35,992
987,980/ 658,654

- -------(1) The Company's common stock is not publicly traded and, accordingly, there
is no current market price for the common stock. For purposes of this
calculation, the Company has estimated that the fair value of the Company's
common stock as of September 30, 1996 was $32.00 per share.
PENSION PLANS
The Company has no pension plans.
EMPLOYMENT AND CHANGE OF CONTROL AGREEMENTS OF THE COMPANY
The Company has entered into an employment agreement with Adam Aron (the
"Employment Agreement"). Pursuant to the Employment Agreement, Mr. Aron serves
as Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The initial term of his employment
is for the period from August 1, 1996 through September 30, 1999, with a twoyear automatic renewal thereafter, subject to notice of termination by either
Mr. Aron or the Company. Mr. Aron's base salary is $560,000 per year, and a
bonus is guaranteed at an annualized rate of $250,000 through fiscal 1997,
after which Mr. Aron will participate in the Company's bonus plan.
Pursuant to the Employment Agreement, Mr. Aron will be granted 18,750
restricted shares of Common Stock and options to purchase 130,000 shares of
Common Stock, which restricted stock and options vest over five years. The
Company will provide Mr. Aron a life insurance policy of $5 million and
$500,000 of annual disability income protection. The Company will purchase a
home of Mr. Aron's choice in the Vail Valley (up to a maximum purchase price of
$1.5 million) for his use while employed by the Company. Mr. Aron is subject to
a 12 month non-compete clause upon termination.
The Company has entered into an employment agreement with Andrew P. Daly.
Such agreement provides that Mr. Daly will serve as President of the Company
for a three-year term. Mr. Daly's base salary will be $350,000 per year and Mr.
Daly will participate in the Company's bonus Plan. In addition, pursuant to
such agreement, Mr. Daly was granted 6,250 restricted shares of Common Stock
and options to purchase 50,000 shares of Common Stock, all vesting over five
years. The Company will provide Mr. Daly a life insurance policy of $3 million
and $262,500 of annual disability income protection. Mr. Daly will be subject
to a 12 month non-compete clause upon termination.
The Company will enter into an employment agreement with James P. Donohue.
Such agreement will provide that Mr. Donohue will serve as Senior Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company for a three-year term. Mr.
Donohue's base salary will be $300,000 per year and Mr. Donohue will

participate in the Company's bonus plan. In addition, pursuant to such
agreement, Mr. Donohue will be granted 6,000 restricted shares of Common Stock
and options to purchase 30,000 shares of Common Stock, which restricted stock
and options vest over three years. Mr. Donohue will be subject to a 12 month
non-compete clause upon termination.
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Vail Associates is currently negotiating employment contracts with Messrs.
Ryman, Myers, Flynn and Thompson, which will provide for annual salaries, as
well as participation in bonus, stock option and other employee benefit plans.
Each agreement will be for a three-year term expiring May 31, 1999, subject to
automatic renewal for successive one-year terms in the absence of notice of
non-renewal by either party. Each agreement will provide that, in the event of
(i) termination of the officer's employment by Vail Associates without "cause"
as defined in the agreement, (ii) termination of employment by the officer for
"good reason" as defined in the agreement, or (iii) non-renewal of the
agreement by Vail Associates, the officer is entitled to continue to receive
his then-current annual salary for a period of 12 months following such
termination or non-renewal (18 months if such termination or non-renewal occurs
following a "change in control"). Each agreement will further provide that the
officer may resign without good reason upon not less than 120 days' notice.
Following termination of the officer's employment for any reason, the officer
will be subject to a non-competition covenant for a period of one year. For
purposes of the agreements, a "change in control" means the acquisition by any
person or group of affiliated persons (other than Apollo Ski Partners and its
affiliates) of equity securities of Vail Associates or the Company representing
either a majority of the combined ordinary voting power of all outstanding
voting securities of Vail Associates or the Company or a majority of the common
equity interest in Vail Associates or the Company.
The Company and Vail Associates have separate employment agreements with Mr.
Mandel pursuant to which Mr. Mandel receives a current aggregate salary of
$300,000 per year, as well as participation in bonus, stock option and other
employee benefit plans. Mr. Mandel's employment agreements are effective until
March 31, 1997, unless earlier terminated according to their terms. In the
event the Company or Vail Associates terminates Mr. Mandel's employment
agreements without cause, Mr. Mandel will be paid his aggregate salary and
fringe benefits for a period of 12 months following the date of termination or
through March 31, 1997, whichever period is longer. Payment of the severance
benefits is conditioned upon Mr. Mandel's compliance with certain noncompetition, confidentiality and loyalty provisions which survive the
employment agreement.
Mr. Gillett resigned as Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer,
President and Director of the Company effective September 30, 1996. Since
October 8, 1992, in connection with his employment by the Company, Mr. Gillett
was granted (i) 357,488 shares of Common Stock as incentive based compensation
(the "Gillett Stock"), (ii) options to purchase 204,082 shares of Common Stock
at an exercise price of $13.70 per share (the "$13.70 Options") and (iii)
options to purchase 582,404 shares of Common Stock at $23.67 per share (the
"$23.67 Options"). Pursuant to the terms of an agreement dated October 11, 1996
between Mr. Gillett and the Company (the "Gillett Agreement"), Mr. Gillett (i)
will be paid his base salary (currently $1.7 million per annum) through October
7, 1997, (ii) exchanged the $23.67 Options for 168,159 shares of Common Stock
and (iii) waived his right to the Distribution with respect to the Gillett
Stock and the $13.70 Options as payment of the exercise price on the $13.70
Options.
STOCK OPTION PLANS
The Company adopted a stock option plan (the "1992 Plan") pursuant to which
options covering an aggregate of 1,022,755 shares of Common Stock may be issued
to key employees, directors, consultants, and advisors of the Company or its
subsidiaries. Options covering 916,650 shares of Common Stock have been issued
to various key executives and managers of the Company. All of the options vest
in equal installments over five years, with exercise prices ranging from $13.70
per share to $21.50 per share. As of September 30, 1996, 403,614 of these
options were exercisable. The Company has amended certain option agreements
under the 1992 Plan with certain members of the management of the Company to
eliminate the right of those option holders to receive any portion of the
payments made under the Rights. In connection with such amendment, the Company
has accrued the Option Payment. See also "Item 5. Market for Registrant's
Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters."
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In July 1996 the Company adopted a long term incentive and share award plan
(the "1996 Plan") to attract, retain and motivate employees and directors of
the Company. The Board of Directors of the Company has approved the 1996 Plan
and the reservation of 750,000 shares of Common Stock for issuance under the
1996 Plan. As of September 30, 1996, under the 1996 Plan 31,000 shares of
Common Stock had been awarded (subject to certain restrictions) and options to
purchase an aggregate of 210,000 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of
$40.00 per share had been granted to executives of the Company. Of these
awards, 25,000 shares of restricted Common Stock and options to purchase
180,000 shares of Common Stock will vest in equal increments over five years.
The remaining awards vest in equal increments over three years. None of the
options were exercisable as of September 30, 1996.
ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT.
PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS
The following table sets forth the number and percentage (if more than 1%) of
the outstanding shares of Common Stock owned beneficially as of December 20,
1996 by each director or nominee, by all directors and officers as a group and
each person (including the address of each such person) who to the knowledge of
the Company, beneficially owned more than 5% of the Company's outstanding
common stock on December 20, 1996.

CLASS A
COMMON
COMMON
STOCK
STOCK
------------------- ------------------NAME AND
AMOUNT AND
AMOUNT AND
ADDRESS OF
NATURE OF
NATURE OF
TOTAL PERCENT OF
BENEFICIAL
BENEFICIAL PERCENT BENEFICIAL PERCENT
OUTSTANDING
OWNER(1)
OWNERSHIP OF CLASS OWNERSHIP OF CLASS
COMMON STOCK
- ----------------------- ---------- -------- ---------- -------- ---------------Apollo Ski Partners,
L.P.(2)
2 Manhattanville Road
Purchase, NY 10577.... 5,958,874
Meadow Walk, L.P.
100 South Bedford Rd.
Mount Kisco, NY 10549.
194,479
George N. Gillett,
Jr.(3)
Gillett Group Management, Inc.
1000 S. Frontage Road
West
Vail, CO 81657........
--

96%

1,325,669

32%

70%

3%

1,161,020

28%

13%

729,729

18%

7%

--

- -------(1) With the exception of 13,000 shares of Common Stock owned by Mr. Ressler,
no directors or officers of the Company directly own shares of Common
Stock. The Company does not believe that any director or executive officer
of the Company beneficially owns Common Stock. (See "Item 10. Directors and
Executive Officers of the Registrant.")
(2) Apollo Ski Partners, L.P. is a Delaware limited partnership ("Apollo Ski")
organized principally for the purpose of holding Common Stock of the
Company. The general partner of Apollo Ski is Apollo Investment Fund, L.P.,
a Delaware limited partnership ("Apollo Fund"), a securities investment
fund. The managing general partner of Apollo Fund is Apollo Advisors, L.P.,
a Delaware limited partnership, the general partner of which is Apollo
Capital Management, Inc., a Delaware corporation ("Apollo Capital"). Mr.
Black, a director of the Company, is also a director of Apollo Capital. All
officers, directors and shareholders of Apollo Capital, including Messrs.
Black, Katz, Mack, Rowan and Spector (directors of the Company), disclaim
any beneficial ownership of the Common Stock of the Company (See also "Item
10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant.")
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(3) Mr. Gillett resigned as Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer,
President and Director of the Company effective September 30, 1996. Since
October 8, 1992, in connection with his employment by the Company, Mr.
Gillett was granted (i) 357,488 shares of Common Stock as incentive based
compensation, (ii) options to purchase 204,082 shares of Common Stock at an
exercise price of $13.70 per share (the "$13.70 Options") and (iii) options
to purchase 582,404 shares of Common Stock at $23.67 per share (the "$23.67
Options"). Pursuant to the terms of an agreement dated October 11, 1996
between Mr. Gillett and the Company, Mr. Gillett (i) exchanged the $23.67
Options for 168,159 shares of Common Stock and (ii) exercised the $13.70
Options.
ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS.
Each subsidiary of the Company is wholly-owned, either directly or
indirectly, by the Company, except for minor amounts of stock issued to
employees of various subsidiaries of Vail Associates required in connection
with certain real estate brokerage licenses in Colorado.
The Company has distributed a right to receive up to $4.87 per share of
Common Stock (the "Rights") to all stockholders of record on October 11, 1996,
with a maximum aggregate amount payable under the Rights of $50.5 million.
Under certain option agreements held by management, option holders would have
been entitled to participate in this distribution. The Company has amended
those agreements to eliminate their right of option holders to receive any
portion of the payments made under the Rights. In connection with such
amendment, the Company has accrued a payable to such option holders of
approximately $4.5 million (the "Option Payment"). The option holders will
receive 60% of the Option Payment at the times that payments are made under the
Rights and the remaining 40% at the time the options are exercised.
The Company pays a fee of $500,000 per year to Apollo Advisors, L.P. for
management services and expenses related thereto. This fee has been incurred
each year since 1993 and is paid partly in cash and partly in services rendered
by the Company to Apollo Advisors, L.P. and its affiliates. This arrangement
was approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in March 1993.
In 1995, Mr. Daly's spouse and Mr. Thompson and his spouse received financial
terms more favorable than those available to the general public in connection
with their purchase of homesites at Bachelor Gulch Village. Rather than payment
of an earnest money deposit with the entire balance due in cash at closing,
these contracts provide for no earnest money deposit with the entire purchase
price (which was below fair market value) to be paid under promissory notes of
$438,750 and $350,000 for Mr. Daly's spouse and Mr. and Mrs. Thompson,
respectively, each to be secured by a first deed of trust and amortized over 25
years at 8% per annum interest, with a balloon payment due on the earlier of
five years from the date of closing or one year from the date employment with
the Company is terminated.
PART IV
ITEM 14. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K.
(a) Index to Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedules.
(i) See "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for the index
to the Financial Statements.
All other schedules are omitted because the required information is not
present or is not present in amounts sufficient to require submission of the
schedule or because the information required is included in the financial
statements or notes thereto.
28
(b) Index to Exhibits
The following exhibits are either filed herewith or, if so indicated,
incorporated by reference to the documents indicated in parentheses which have
previously been filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

EXHIBIT
NUMBER
DESCRIPTION
------- ------------------------------------------------------2.1

Stock Purchase Agreement dated August 31, 1994 between
Gillett Holdings, Inc. and PPC Acquisition Co., (with
selected exhibits). (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 2.1 of the report on Form 8-K of Gillett
Holdings, Inc. for the reportable event occurring on
August 31, 1994.)
3.1
Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation filed
with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware on
the Effective Date. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 of the Registration Statement on Form S-4
of Gillett Holdings, Inc. (Registration No. 33-52854)
including all amendments thereto.)
3.2
Amended and Restated By-Laws adopted on the Effective
Date. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of the
Registration Statement on Form S-4 of Gillett Holdings,
Inc. (Registration No. 33-52854) including all
amendments thereto.)
4.1
Form of Senior Subordinated Indenture by and between
Gillett Holdings, Inc., as Issuer, and the United
States Trust Company of New York, as Trustee.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit T3C to
Registrant's Application for Qualification under the
Trust Indenture Act of 1939 on Form T-3 filed September
15, 1992, File No. 22-22538.)
4.2
Form of Class 2 Common Stock Registration Rights
Agreements between the Company and holders of Class 2
Common Stock. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.13 of the Registration Statement on Form S-4 of
Gillett Holdings, Inc. (Registration No. 33-52854)
including all amendments thereto.)
10.1
Management Agreement by and between Beaver Creek Resort
Company of Colorado and Vail Associates, Inc.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the
Registration Statement on Form S-4 of Gillett Holdings,
Inc. (Registration No. 33-52854) including all
amendments thereto.)
10.2
Forest Service Term Special Use Permit for Beaver Creek
ski area. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of
the Registration Statement on Form S-4 of Gillett
Holdings, Inc. (Registration No. 33-52854) including
all amendments thereto.)
10.3
Forest Service Special Use Permit for Beaver Creek ski
area. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the
Registration Statement on Form S-4 of Gillett Holdings,
Inc. (Registration No. 33-52854) including all
amendments thereto.)
10.4
Forest Service Unified Permit for Vail ski area.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the
Registration Statement on Form S-4 of Gillett Holdings,
Inc. (Registration No. 33-52854) including all
amendments thereto.)
10.5(a) Employment Agreement dated October 8, 1992 by and among
Gillett Holdings, Inc., Vail Associates, Inc., Vail
Associates Real Estate, Inc., Beaver Creek Associates,
Inc., Packerland Packing Company, Inc. and George N.
Gillett, Jr. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7
of the Registration Statement on Form S-4 of Gillett
Holdings, Inc. (Registration No. 33-52854) including
all amendments thereto.)
10.5(b) First Amendment to GNG Employment Agreement dated as of
September 1, 1993 by and among the Company, Vail
Associates, Inc., Vail Associates Real Estate, Inc.,
Beaver Creek Associates, Inc., Packerland Packing
Company, Inc., and George N. Gillett, Jr. (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.7(b) of the report on Form
10-K of Gillett Holdings, Inc. for the period from
October 9, 1992 through September 30, 1993.)

SEQUENTIALLY
NUMBERED
PAGE
------------
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EXHIBIT
NUMBER
------10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9(a)

10.9(b)

10.10(a)

10.10(b)

10.11

10.12(a)

10.12(b)

10.12(c)

DESCRIPTION
----------------------------------------------------Employment Agreement dated October 8, 1992 between
Vail Associates, Inc. and Andrew P. Daly.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 of the
Registration Statement on Form S-4 of Gillett
Holdings, Inc. (Registration No. 33-52854) including
all amendments thereto.)
Employment Agreement dated October 30, 1992 between
Vail Associates, Inc. and James Kent Myers.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 of the
report on Form 10-K of Gillett Holdings, Inc. for the
period from October 9, 1992 through September 30,
1993.)
Joint Liability Agreement by and among Gillett
Holdings, Inc. and the subsidiaries of Gillett
Holdings, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.10 of the Registration Statement on Form S-4 of
Gillett Holdings, Inc. (Registration No. 33-52854)
including all amendments thereto.)
Management Agreement between Gillett Holdings, Inc.
and Gillett Group Management, Inc. dated as of the
Effective Date. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.11 of the Registration Statement on Form S-4 of
Gillett Holdings, Inc. (Registration No. 33-52854)
including all amendments thereto.)
Amendment to Management Agreement by and among the
Company and its subsidiaries dated as of November 23,
1993. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12(b)
of the report on Form 10-K of Gillett Holdings, Inc.
for the period from October 9, 1992 through September
30, 1993.)
Tax Sharing Agreement between Gillett Holdings, Inc.
dated as of the Effective Date. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.12 of the Registration
Statement on Form S-4 of Gillett Holdings, Inc.
(Registration No. 33-52854) including all amendments
thereto.)
Amendment to Tax Sharing Agreement by and among the
Company and its subsidiaries dated as of November 23,
1993. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13(b)
of the report on Form 10-K of Gillett Holdings, Inc.
for the period from October 9, 1992 through September
30, 1993.)
Form of Gillett Holdings, Inc. Deferred Compensation
Agreement for certain GHTV employees. (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.13(b) of the Registration
Statement on Form S-4 of Gillett Holdings, Inc.
(Registration No. 33-52854) including all amendments
thereto.)
Credit Agreement dated as of March 31, 1995 among The
Vail Corporation, the Banks named therein and
NationsBank of Texas, N.A., as issuing banks and
agent. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12(a)
of the report on Form 10-Q of Gillett Holdings, Inc.
for the quarterly period ended March 31, 1995.)
Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as
of March 31, 1995 among The Vail Corporation, the
banks named therein and NationsBank of Texas, N.A.,
as issuing banks and agent. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.12(b) of the report on Form
10-Q of Gillett Holdings, Inc. for the quarterly
period ended March 31, 1995.)
Pledge Agreement dated as of March 31, 1995 among

SEQUENTIALLY
NUMBERED
PAGE
------------

Gillett Holdings, Inc. and NationsBank of Texas, N.A.
as agent. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.12(c) of the report on Form 10-Q of Gillett
Holdings, Inc. for the quarterly period ended March
31, 1995.)
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EXHIBIT
NUMBER
-------

DESCRIPTION
-----------------------------------------------------

10.12(d) Guaranty dated as of November 23, 1993 by
subsidiaries named therein for the benefit of
NationsBank of Texas, N.A., as agent. (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.17(b) of the report on
Form 10-K of Gillett Holdings, Inc. for the period
from October 9, 1992 through September 30, 1993.)
10.12(e) Collateral Agency Agreement dated as of November 23,
1993 among Vail Associates, Inc., The Vail
Corporation, Beaver Creek Associates, Inc.,
NationsBank of Texas, N.A., as Collateral agent and
agent, Colorado National Bank as Beaver Creek
Indenture Trustee and Vail Indenture Trustee.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17(c) of the
report on Form 10-K of Gillett Holdings, Inc. for the
period from October 9, 1992 through September 30,
1993.)
10.12(f) Pledge Agreement dated as of November 23, 1993 among
The Vail Corporation, Vail Associates, Inc., Beaver
Creek Associates, Inc., Vail Associates Real Estate
Group, Inc., Vail Associates Real Estate, Inc., as
obligors and NationsBank of Texas, N.A., as
collateral agent. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.17(d) of the report on Form 10-K of
Gillett Holdings, Inc. for the period from October 9,
1992 through September 30, 1993.)
10.12(g) Trust Indenture dated as of September 1, 1992 between
Eagle County, Colorado, and Colorado National Bank,
as Trustee, securing Sports Housing Facilities
Revenue Refunding Bonds. (Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.16(g) of the Registration Statement on
Form S-4 of Gillett Holdings, Inc. (Registration No.
33-52854) including all amendments thereto.)
10.12(h) First Amendment to Trust Indenture dated as of
November 23, 1993 between Eagle County, Colorado and
Colorado National Bank, as Trustee, securing Sports
and Housing Facilities Revenue Refunding Bonds.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17(f) of the
report on Form 10-K of Gillett Holdings, Inc. for the
period from October 9, 1992 through September 30,
1993.)
10.12(i) Trust Indenture dated as of September 1, 1992 between
Eagle County, Colorado, and Colorado National Bank,
as Trustee, securing Sports Facilities Revenue
Refunding Bonds. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.16(h) of the Registration Statement on
Form S-4 of Gillett Holdings, Inc. (Registration No.
33-52854) including all amendments thereto.)
10.12(j) First Amendment to Trust Indenture dated as of
November 23, 1993 between Eagle County, Colorado and
Colorado National Bank, as Trustee, securing Sports
Facilities Revenue Refunding Bonds. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.17(h) of the report on Form
10-K of Gillett Holdings, Inc. for the period from
October 9, 1992 through September 30, 1993.)
10.12(k) Sports and Housing Facilities Financing Agreement
dated as of September 1, 1992 between Eagle County,
Colorado and Vail Associates, Inc. (Incorporated by

SEQUENTIALLY
NUMBERED
PAGE
------------

reference to Exhibit 10.16(i) of the Registration
Statement on Form S-4 of Gillett Holdings, Inc.
(Registration No. 33-52854) including all amendments
thereto.)
10.12(l) First Amendment to Sports and Housing Facilities
Financing Agreement and Assignment and Assumption
Agreement dated as of November 23, 1993 between Eagle
County, Colorado, Vail Associates, Inc. and The Vail
Corporation. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.17(j) of the report on Form 10-K of Gillett
Holdings, Inc. for the period from October 9, 1992
through September 30, 1993.)
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EXHIBIT
NUMBER
-------

DESCRIPTION
-----------------------------------------------------

SEQUENTIALLY
NUMBERED
PAGE
------------

10.12(m) Sports Facilities Financing Agreement dated as of
September 1, 1992 between Eagle County, Colorado and
Beaver Creek Associates, Inc., with Vail Associates,
Inc. as Guarantor. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.16(j) of the Registration Statement on
Form S-4 of Gillett Holdings, Inc. (Registration No.
33-52854) including all amendments thereto.)
10.12(n) First Amendment to Sports Facilities Financing
Agreement and Assignment and Assumption Agreement
dated as of November 23, 1993 by and among Eagle
County, Colorado, Beaver Creek Associates, Inc., Vail
Associates, Inc., and The Vail Corporation.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17(l) of the
report on Form 10-K of Gillett Holdings, Inc. for the
period from October 9, 1992 through September 30,
1993.)
10.12(0) Guaranty dated as of September 1, 1992, by Vail Associates,
Inc. delivered to Colorado National Bank, as Trustee.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16(k) of the
Registration Statement on Form S-4 of Gillett Holdings, Inc.
(Registration No. 33-52854) including all amendments thereto.)
10.13(a) Agreement for Purchase and Sale dated as of August 25, 1993 by
and among Arrowhead at Vail, Arrowhead Ski Corporation,
Arrowhead at Vail Properties Corporation, Arrowhead Property
Management Company and Vail Associates, Inc. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.19(a) of the report on Form 10-K of
Gillett Holdings, Inc. for the period from October 9, 1992
through September 30, 1993.)
10.13(b) Amendment to Agreement for Purchase and Sale dated September
8, 1993 by and between Arrowhead at Vail, Arrowhead Ski
Corporation, Arrowhead at Vail Properties Corporation,
Arrowhead Property Management Company and Vail Associates,
Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19(b) of the
report on Form 10-K of Gillett Holdings, Inc. for the period
from October 9, 1992 through September 30, 1993.)
10.13(c) Second Amendment to Agreement for Purchase and Sale dated
September 22, 1993 by and between Arrowhead at Vail, Arrowhead
Ski Corporation, Arrowhead at Vail Properties Corporation,
Arrowhead Property Management Company and Vail Associates,
Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19(c) of the
report on Form 10-K of Gillett Holdings, Inc. for the period
from October 9, 1992 through September 30, 1993.)
10.13(d) Third Amendment to Agreement for Purchase and Sale dated
November 30, 1993 by and between Arrowhead at Vail, Arrowhead
Ski Corporation, Arrowhead at Vail Properties Corporation,
Arrowhead Property Management Company and Vail/Arrowhead, Inc.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19(d) of the report
on Form 10-K of Gillett Holdings, Inc. for the period from
October 9, 1992 through September 30, 1993.)
10.14
1992 Stock Option Plan of Gillett Holdings, Inc. (Incorporated

10.15

by reference to Exhibit 10.20 of the report on Form 10-K of
Gillett Holdings, Inc. for the period from October 9, 1992
through September 30, 1993.)
Agreement to Settle Prospective Litigation and for Sale of
Personal Property dated May 10, 1993, between the Company,
Clifford E. Eley, as Chapter 7 Trustee of the Debtor's
Bankruptcy Estate, and George N. Gillett, Jr. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.21 of the report on Form 10-K of
Gillett Holdings, Inc. for the period from October 9, 1992
through September 30, 1993.)
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EXHIBIT
NUMBER
DESCRIPTION
------- -----------------------------------------------------10.16

10.17

10.18
10.19
10.20

16.

21.1

Employment Agreement dated April 1, 1994 between
Gillett Holdings, Inc. and James S. Mandel
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 of the
report on Form 10-K of Gillett Holdings, Inc. for the
year ended September 30, 1994.)
Employment Agreement dated April 1, 1994 between Vail
Associates, Inc. and James S. Mandel (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.23 of the report on Form 10-K
of Gillett Holdings, Inc. for the year ended September
30, 1994.)
Employment Agreement dated October 1, 1996 between
Vail Associates, Inc. and Andrew P. Daly.
Employment Agreement dated July 29, 1996 between Vail
Resorts, Inc. and Adam M. Aron.
Stock Purchase Agreement Among Vail Resorts, Inc.,
Ralston Foods, Inc., and Ralston Resorts, Inc. dated
July 22, 1996. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
2.1 of the report on Form 8-K of Vail Resorts, Inc.
dated July 23, 1996.)
Letter from Ernst & Young LLP regarding change in
certifying accountant. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 16 of the report on Form 8-K of Gillett
Holdings, Inc. for the reportable event occurring on
October 25, 1994.)
Subsidiaries of Vail Resorts, Inc. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 21 of the report on Form 10-K of
Gellett Holdings, Inc. for the year ended September
30, 1995.)

99.1(a) Debtor's Second Amended Joint Disclosure Statement
Pursuant to Section 1125 of the Bankruptcy Code for
the Second Amended Joint Plan of Reorganization of the
Debtors. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit T3E.1
of Registrant's Application for Qualification under
the Trust Indenture Act of 1939 on Form T-3 filed
September 15, 1992, File No. 22-22538.)
99.1(b) Exhibits to Debtor's Second Amended Joint Disclosure
Statement Pursuant to Section 1125 of the Bankruptcy
Code for the Second Amended Joint Plan of
Reorganization of the Debtors. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit T3E.1 of Registrant's Application
for Qualification under the Trust Indenture Act of
1939 on Form T-3 filed September 15, 1992, File No.
22-22538.)
99.2
Supplement to Debtor's Second Amended Joint Disclosure
Statement Pursuant to Section 1125 of the Bankruptcy
Code for the Second Amended Joint Plan of
Reorganization of the Debtors. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 28.2 of the Registration
Statement on Form S-4 of Gillett Holdings, Inc.
(Registration No. 33-52854) including all amendments
thereto.)

SEQUENTIALLY
NUMBERED
PAGE
------------

99.3

Exhibits to the Second Amended Joint Plan of
Reorganization of the Debtors. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 28.3 of the Registration
Statement on Form S-4 of Gillett Holdings, Inc.
(Registration No. 33-52854) including all amendments
thereto.)

(c) A report on Form 8-K was filed on July 23, 1996 related to the proposed
acquisition by the Company of Ralston Resorts, Inc. pursuant to a stock
purchase agreement dated July 22, 1996.
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SIGNATURES
PURSUANT TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, THE REGISTRANT HAS DULY CAUSED THIS REPORT TO BE SIGNED
ON ITS BEHALF BY THE UNDERSIGNED, THEREUNTO DULY AUTHORIZED ON DECEMBER 23,
1996.
Vail Resorts, Inc.
/s/ James P. Donohue
By __________________________________
James P. Donohue
Senior Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer
PURSUANT TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, THIS
REPORT HAS BEEN SIGNED BELOW BY THE FOLLOWING PERSONS ON BEHALF OF THE
REGISTRANT AND IN THE CAPACITIES INDICATED ON DECEMBER 23, 1996.

SIGNATURE
---------

TITLE
-----

/s/ Adam M. Aron*
- ------------------------------------ADAM M. ARON

Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer (Principal Chief
Executive Officer)

/s/ Andrew P. Daly*
- ------------------------------------ANDREW P. DALY

Director

/s/ Leon D. Black*
- ------------------------------------LEON D. BLACK

Director

/s/ Craig M. Cogut*
- ------------------------------------CRAIG M. COGUT

Director

/s/ Stephen C. Hilbert*
- ------------------------------------STEPHEN C. HILBERT

Director

/s/ Robert A. Katz*
- ------------------------------------ROBERT A. KATZ

Director

/s/ Thomas H. Lee*
- ------------------------------------THOMAS H. LEE

Director

/s/ William L. Mack*
- ------------------------------------WILLIAM L. MACK

Director

/s/ Antony P. Ressler*
- ------------------------------------ANTONY P. RESSLER

Director

/s/ Marc J. Rowan*
- ------------------------------------MARC J. ROWAN

Director
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SIGNATURE
---------

TITLE
-----

/s/ John J. Ryan III*
- ------------------------------------JOHN J. RYAN III

Director

/s/ John F. Sorte*
- ------------------------------------JOHN F. SORTE

Director

/s/ Bruce H. Spector*
- ------------------------------------BRUCE H. SPECTOR

Director

/s/ James S. Tisch*
- ------------------------------------JAMES S. TISCH

Director

/s/ James P. Donohue*
- ------------------------------------JAMES P. DONOHUE

Senior Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer

/s/ Robert A. Katz
- ------------------------------------ROBERT A. KATZ

Attorney-in-Fact

* By Attorney-in-Fact
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EXHIBIT INDEX
The following exhibits are included herewith. Refer to Item 14 of the Form
10-K for the year ended September 30, 1996 for additional exhibits to the Form
10-K that are incorporated by reference to documents which have previously been
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

EXHIBIT
NUMBER
------10.18

DESCRIPTION
-----------

SEQUENTIALLY
NUMBERED
PAGE
------------

Employment Agreement dated October 1, 1996 between Vail
Associates, Inc. and
Andrew P. Daly.

10.19

Employment Agreement dated July 29, 1996 between Vail
Resorts, Inc. and
Adam M. Aron.

EXHIBIT 10.18
Execution Copy
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT dated as of October 1, 1996 by and between (i) VAIL
RESORTS, INC., a Delaware corporation ("Resorts"), and VAIL ASSOCIATES, INC., a
Colorado corporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Resorts ("Associates" and,
together with Resorts, "Vail"), and (ii) ANDREW P. DALY (hereinafter referred to
as "Daly").
RECITALS
1.
Vail desires to employ Daly to render services to it for the period
and upon the terms and conditions provided for in this Agreement; and
2.
Daly wishes to serve in the employ of Vail for its benefit for the
period and upon the terms and conditions provided for in this Agreement.
COVENANTS
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows:
1.

Employment.
----------

(a) Vail hereby employs Daly to serve as President of Resorts and
President and Chief Executive Officer of Associates on the terms and conditions
set forth herein. In such capacities, Daly shall have the responsibilities
normally associated with such positions, subject to the supervision and control
of the Board of Directors and chief executive officer of Resorts.
(b) Daly accepts employment by Vail and agrees that, during the term
of his employment, he will devote substantially all his time and best efforts to
the performance of his duties hereunder, which duties shall be performed in an
efficient and competent manner and to the best of his ability. Daly further
agrees that, during the term of this Agreement, he will not, without the prior
written consent of the Board of Directors of Resorts, directly or indirectly
engage in any manner in any business or other endeavor, either as an owner,
employee, officer, director, independent contractor, agent, partner, advisor, or
in any other capacity calling for the rendition of his personal services. This
restriction will not preclude Daly from having passive investments, and devoting
reasonable time to the supervision thereof (so long as such does not interfere
with Daly's obligations hereunder), in any business or enterprise which is not
in competition with any business or enterprise of Vail or any of its
subsidiaries or affiliates (collectively the "Companies").
2.

Compensation.
------------

For all services rendered by Daly to or on behalf of Vail and the
Companies, Associates shall pay to Daly, subject to any and all withholdings and
deductions required by law, the following compensation in accordance with the
normal payroll practices of Associates:
(a) Base Salary. Daly shall receive regular compensation at the initial
----------rate of Three Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($350,000) per year, subject to
increase as provided in the following sentence (the "Base Salary"). Daly's Base
Salary shall be reviewed annually by the Board of Directors of Resorts, but any
increases in such Base Salary shall be at the discretion of the Board of
Directors and Daly acknowledges that the Board is not obligated to make any
increases. Daly's Base Salary shall not be lowered from its highest amount
during the term of this Agreement without his consent.
(b) Bonuses, etc. Daly shall also be considered annually for bonuses,
-----------deferred compensation, and/or stock options based upon his performance in light
of objectives established by the Board of Directors of Resorts, it being

understood that any such awards are at the discretion of the Board of Directors.
Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Daly shall be eligible to
participate in (i) the Long-Term Incentive Plan of Associates (the "LTIP"), and
(ii) any other bonus, incentive, deferred compensation and fringe benefit plans
as Vail shall make generally available to other employees in senior management
positions in accordance with the terms of the relevant contracts, policies or
plans providing such benefits, specifically including health and dental
insurance, any deferred incentive compensation plan and any discretionary annual
bonus plan, all on such terms as the Board may determine. Daly's annual target
bonus under the LTIP shall be 40% of his Base Salary; provided, however, that
such target shall not create any obligation on the part of Vail to declare any
bonus to Daly in any amount or otherwise alter the discretionary nature of the
LTIP. If any such compensation or benefits are paid or made available, it shall
be at such time or times as the Board shall determine, based upon such factors,
if any, as the Board may establish.
(c) Insurance. Daly shall also receive, at Vail's expense, long-term
--------disability insurance which provides a benefit equal to 75% of Base Salary
through the end of the term of this Agreement, and term life insurance which
provides a death benefit of at least Three Million Dollars ($3,000,000), subject
in each case to the applicable underwriting limitations of such programs.
(d) Expense Reimbursement; Country Club. Daly shall also be reimbursed for
----------------------------------reasonable dues and assessments for business and service interests of Vail.
Daly shall have a travel and entertainment budget which is reasonable in light
of his position and responsibilities and shall be reimbursed for all reasonable
travel and entertainment expenses incurred by him thereunder upon submission of
appropriate documentation thereof. Vail will reimburse Daly for 50% of the cost
of his membership in Eagle Springs Country Club, which reimbursement shall
-2be payable in equal monthly installments during the first 36 months of the term
of this Agreement.
(e) Loan Repayment. The maturity date of Daly's $300,000 loan from
-------------Associates is hereby extended to October 1, 1999 or, if earlier, the first
anniversary of the date on which this Agreement is terminated for any reason
other than (i) by Vail without "cause" or (ii) by Daly for "good reason" (in
either case as defined below).
3.

Term and Termination.
--------------------

(a) Term and Renewal. The Effective Date of this Agreement shall be
---------------October 1, 1996. Unless terminated earlier, as hereinafter provided, the term
of this Agreement shall be for the period commencing with the Effective Date and
continuing through October 1, 1999; provided, however, that unless either Vail
or Daly gives written notice of non-renewal to the other not less than 120 days
prior to the then-current scheduled expiration date, this Agreement shall be
automatically renewed for successive one-year periods.
(b) Termination for Cause. Vail, acting through the Board of Directors of
--------------------Resorts, may terminate this Agreement at any time for "cause" by giving Daly
written notice specifying the effective date of such termination and the
circumstances constituting such cause. For purposes of this Agreement, "cause"
shall mean (i) any conduct involving dishonesty, disloyalty or the unauthorized
disclosure of confidential information or trade secrets which has a material
detrimental impact on the reputation, goodwill or business position of Vail or
any of the Companies; (ii) gross obstruction of business operations or illegal
or disreputable conduct by Daly which materially impairs the reputation,
goodwill or business position of Vail or any of the Companies, including acts of
unlawful sexual harassment; or (iii) any action involving a material breach of
the terms of the Agreement including, after 15 days' written notice and
opportunity to cure to the Board's satisfaction, inattention to or neglect of
duties. In the event of a termination for cause, Daly shall be entitled to
receive his then-current Base Salary through the date of such termination.
(c) Termination Without Cause or Non-Renewal.

Vail may terminate this

---------------------------------------Agreement at any time without cause, by giving Daly written notice specifying
the effective date of such termination. In the event of a termination without
cause, or if Vail gives notice of non-renewal of this Agreement as provided in
Section 3(a), Daly shall be entitled to receive (i) his then-current Base
Salary through the date of such termination or non-renewal, (ii) in the event
that the applicable performance targets for the year are achieved, a pro-rated
bonus for the portion of the year in which such termination or non-renewal
occurs, which pro-rated bonus shall be payable in the same form and at the same
time as bonus payments are made to senior executives generally, and (iii)
continuation of his then-current Base Salary through the first anniversary of
the date of termination or non-renewal. Notwithstanding the foregoing, should
Vail and Daly mutually agree to waive Daly's compliance with the provisions of
Section 4 hereof within 60 days of such termination or expiration, then Daly
shall be under an obligation to mitigate
-3damages by seeking other employment and the Base Salary continuation shall be
reduced by compensation received by Daly from other employment or selfemployment following such waiver.
(d)

Termination By Daly.
-------------------

(1) Daly shall be entitled to terminate this Agreement at any time for
"good reason" by giving Vail not less than ninety (90) days prior written
notice. For purposes of this Agreement, "good reason" shall mean (i) Vail shall
breach its obligations hereunder in any material respect and shall fail to cure
such breach within 60 days following written notice thereof from Daly, (ii) Vail
shall cease to operate a major ski resort in Colorado, (iii) Vail shall effect a
material change in Daly's reporting responsibilities, titles, offices or duties
as in effect immediately prior to such change, or shall remove Daly from, or
fail to re-elect Daly to, any of such positions, which in either case shall have
the effect of materially reducing the responsibility or authority of Daly as
President of Resorts and President and Chief Executive Officer of Associates, or
shall otherwise be materially inconsistent with the responsibility, authority or
duties normally associated with such positions, or (iv) during the first 12
months of the term of this Agreement, Daly shall determine in good faith that he
is unable to develop or maintain a satisfactory working relationship with the
chief executive officer of Resorts. In such event, Daly shall be entitled to
receive (i) his then-current Base Salary through the date of such termination,
(ii) in the event that the applicable performance targets for the year are
achieved, a pro-rated bonus for the portion of the year in which such
termination occurs, which pro-rated bonus shall be payable in the same form and
at the same time as bonus payments are made to senior executives generally, and
(iii) continuation of his then-current Base Salary through the first anniversary
of the date of such termination.
(2) Daly may also terminate this Agreement at any time without good
reason by giving Vail at least one hundred twenty (120) days prior written
notice. In such event, Daly shall be entitled to receive his then-current Base
Salary through the date of termination.
(e)

Termination Due To Disability. In the event that Daly becomes
----------------------------permanently disabled (as determined by the Board of Directors of Resorts in good
faith), Vail shall have the right to terminate this Agreement upon written
notice to Daly; provided, however, that Daly shall be entitled to receive (i)
his then-current Base Salary through the date of such termination, and (ii)
continuation of his then-current Base Salary through the earlier of (x) the
scheduled expiration date of this Agreement (but in no event less than 12 months
from the date of disability) or (y) the date on which his long-term disability
insurance payments commence.
(f)

Termination Due To Death. This Agreement shall be deemed automatically
-----------------------terminated upon the death of Daly. In such event, Daly's personal representative
shall be entitled to receive (i) his then-current Base Salary through such date
of termination, and (ii) in the event that the applicable performance targets
for the year are achieved, a pro-rated bonus for the portion of the year in
which such termination occurs, which pro-rated bonus shall be
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payable in the same form and at the same time as bonus payments are made to
senior executives generally. In addition, Vail shall continue to provide such
health, dental or other medical insurance coverage to Daly's surviving spouse
and dependents at Vail's expense as is made available to spouses and dependents
of other employees in similar positions through the first anniversary of such
termination.
(g) Change in Control. Notwithstanding the above, in the event that at any
----------------time after a change in control of Vail (i) this Agreement is terminated by Vail
without cause, (ii) this Agreement is terminated by Daly for good reason, or
(iii) Vail gives notice of non-renewal of this Agreement, then in any such case
Daly shall be entitled to receive (i) his then-current Base Salary through the
date of such termination or non-renewal, (ii) in the event that the applicable
performance targets for the year are achieved, a pro-rated bonus for the portion
of the year in which such termination occurs, which pro-rated bonus shall be
payable in the same form and at the same time as bonus payments are made to
senior executives generally, and (iii) continuation of his then-current Base
Salary for a period of 18 months from the date of termination or non-renewal.
For purposes of this Agreement, a "change in control" shall mean the acquisition
by any person or group of affiliated persons (other than Apollo Ski Partners,
L.P. and its affiliates) of equity securities of Resorts or Associates
representing either a majority of the combined ordinary voting power of all
outstanding voting securities of Resorts or Associates or a majority of the
common equity interest in Resorts or Associates.
(h) Other Benefits. During any period in which Daly is entitled to Base
-------------Salary continuation following termination or expiration of this Agreement under
the terms of this Section 3, Daly shall also be entitled to continuation of
then-current health, dental and other insurance benefits for Daly and his
dependents at Vail's expense. Except as expressly set forth in this Section 3,
Daly shall not be entitled to receive any compensation or other benefits in
connection with termination of his employment; provided, however, that
termination of Daly's employment hereunder shall not affect his right to receive
deferred compensation earned prior to such termination (which amounts shall be
payable at Vail's option either in a lump sum within 30 days of termination or
in accordance with the terms of the applicable plan) or his rights to vested
retirement benefits in accordance with the terms of the applicable plan.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, all deferred compensation shall be forfeited by
Daly in the event of termination of employment pursuant to Section 3(b) or
Section 3(d)(2) of this Agreement.
(i) Payment of Salary Continuation. Payment of Base Salary following
-----------------------------termination of this Agreement as required by this Section 3 shall be made in
accordance with Associates' normal payroll practices; provided, however, that in
the event of a breach by Daly of the provisions of Sections 4 through 7, Vail
shall be entitled to cease all such payments. No termination of this Agreement
shall affect any of the rights and obligations of the parties hereto under
Sections 4 through 7, but such rights and obligations shall survive such
termination in accordance with the terms of such Sections.
-54.

Non Competition.
---------------

The provisions of this Section 4 shall apply for a period of one (1) year
beginning with the date of the termination of Daly's employment with Vail for
any reason. During such period, Daly will not, without the prior written
consent of the Board, directly or indirectly, become associated, either as
owner, employee, officer, director, independent contractor, agent, partner,
advisor or in any other capacity calling for the rendition of personal services,
with any individual, partnership, corporation, or other organization (i) in
Eagle County, Colorado whose business or enterprise is competitive in any way
with any of the businesses or enterprises of Vail and/or the Companies or (ii)
in the states of Colorado and Utah whose business or enterprise is alpine or
nordic ski area operation; provided, however, that the foregoing shall not
preclude Daly from having passive investments in less than five percent (5%) of
the outstanding capital stock of a competitive corporation which is listed on a
national securities exchange or regularly traded in the over-the-counter market
or which have been approved in writing by the Board.

(c) If, for any reason, any portion of this covenant shall be held to be
unenforceable it shall be deemed to be reformed so that it is enforceable to the
maximum extent permitted by law.
5.

Document Return; Resignations.
-----------------------------

Upon termination of Daly's employment with Vail for any reason, Daly agrees
that he shall promptly surrender to Vail or the Companies all letters, papers,
documents, instruments, records, books, products, and any other materials owned
by Vail or the Companies or used by Daly in the performance of his duties under
this Agreement. Additionally, upon termination of Daly's employment with Vail
for any reason, Daly agrees to immediately resign from, and execute appropriate
resignation letters relating to, all management or Board positions he may have
by reason of his employment or involvement with Vail, specifically including but
not limited to Vail, any of the Companies, the Beaver Creek Resort Company of
Colorado and the various condominium associations in which Daly serves at the
direction of Vail (the "Associations").
6.

Confidentiality.
---------------

During the term of this Agreement, and at all times following the
termination of Daly's employment with Vail for any reason, Daly shall not
disclose, directly or indirectly, to any person, firm or entity, or any officer,
director, stockholder, partner, associate, employee, agent or representative
thereof, any confidential information or trade secrets of Vail or any of the
Companies, the Beaver Creek Resort Company of Colorado or the Associations.
-67.

Nondisparagement.
----------------

For a period of five (5) years following the termination of Daly's
employment with Vail for any reason, Daly agrees that he shall not make any
statements disparaging of Vail or the Companies, the Board, and the officers,
directors, stockholders, or employees of Vail or the Companies, the Beaver Creek
Resort Company of Colorado or the Associations. Vail shall similarly not
disparage Daly following such termination, it being understood that, subject to
the terms of this Section 7, Vail and Daly, as appropriate, may respond
truthfully to inquiries from prospective employers of Daly, the press and other
relevant parties.
8.

Injunctive Relief.
-----------------

The parties acknowledge that the remedy at law for any violation or
threatened violation of this Agreement will be inadequate and that, accordingly,
either party shall be entitled to injunctive relief in the event of such a
violation or threatened violation without being required to post bond or other
surety. The above stated remedies shall be in addition to, and not in
limitation of, any other rights or remedies to which either party is or may be
entitled at law, in equity, or under this Agreement.
9.

Non-Assignability.
-----------------

It is understood that this Employment Agreement has been entered into
personally by the parties. Neither party shall have the right to assign,
transfer, encumber or dispose of any duties, rights or payments due hereunder,
which duties, rights and payments with respect hereto are expressly declared to
be non-assignable and non-transferable, being based upon the personal services
of Daly, and any attempted assignment or transfer shall be null and void and
without binding effect on either party; provided, however, that, subject to
Daly's rights under Section 3(g) hereof, Vail may assign this Agreement to any
affiliate or to any successor corporation.
10. Complete Agreement.
-----------------This Agreement constitutes the full understanding and entire employment
agreement of the parties, and supersedes and is in lieu of any and all other

understandings or agreements between Vail and Daly. Nothing herein is intended
to limit any rights or duties Daly has under the terms of any applicable option,
incentive or other similar agreements.
11. Arbitration.
----------Any controversy or claim arising out of or in relation to this Agreement or
any breach thereof shall be settled by arbitration in Vail, Colorado in
accordance with the Commercial Arbitration Rules then in effect of the American
Arbitration Association (hereinafter "AAA Rules") before a panel of three
arbitrators, one of whom shall be selected by Vail, the second of whom shall be
selected by Daly and the third of whom shall be selected by the other two
-7arbitrators; provided, however, that to the extent that any of the AAA Rules or
any portion thereof is inconsistent with the provisions of this Section 11, the
provisions of this Section shall govern. If for any reason the AAA Rules cannot
be followed or if any one of the parties fails or refuses to select an
arbitrator within thirty (30) days after the time of notification of demand for
arbitration by the other, or if the arbitrators selected by the parties to this
Agreement cannot agree on the selection of a third arbitrator within thirty (30)
days after such time as Vail and Daly have each been notified of the selection
of the other's arbitrator, the necessary arbitrator or arbitrators shall be
selected by the Chief Judge of the Fifth Judicial District or, if that officer
fails or refuses to make an appointment, by the President of the Colorado Bar
Association. In the event that any controversy or claim is submitted for
arbitration hereunder relating to the failure or refusal by Vail or Daly to
perform in full all of its obligations hereunder, Vail or Daly, as applicable,
shall have the burden of proof (as to both production of evidence and
persuasion) with respect to the justification for such failure or refusal. Any
award entered by the arbitrators shall be final, binding and non-appealable, and
judgment may be entered thereon by any party in accordance with the applicable
law in any court of competent jurisdiction. The arbitrators shall award the
prevailing party its reasonable attorneys' fees and costs. The arbitrators
shall not have the power to direct equitable relief.
12. Amendments.
---------Any amendment to this Agreement shall be made only in writing and signed by
each of the parties hereto.
13. Governing Law.
------------The internal laws of the State of Colorado law shall govern the
construction and enforcement of this Agreement.
14. Notices.
------Any notice required or authorized hereunder shall be deemed delivered with
deposited, postage prepaid, in the United States mail, certified, with return
receipt requested, addressed to the parties as follows:
Andrew P. Daly
P.O. Box 1514
Vail, Colorado 81658
Vail Resorts, Inc.
Vail Associates, Inc.
P.O. Box 7
Vail, Colorado 81658
Attn: General Counsel
-8IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of
the 1st day of October, 1996.
EMPLOYER:

VAIL RESORTS, INC.

By: /s/ [SIGNATURE ILLEGIBLE]
-------------------------VAIL ASSOCIATES, INC.

By: /s/ [SIGNATURE ILLEGIBLE]
-------------------------EXECUTIVE:
/s/ ANDREW P. DALY
----------------------------Andrew P. Daly
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Execution Copy
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
-------------------EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") entered into as of July 29, 1996, by
and between Vail Resorts, Inc., a Delaware corporation with its principal office
in Avon, Colorado (the "Company"), and Adam M. Aron, a resident of Avon,
Colorado ("Executive").
WHEREAS, the Company wishes to employ Executive as its Chairman of the
Board and Chief Executive Officer and both parties desire to enter into an
employment agreement to reflect Executive's new capacity upon the terms and
conditions set forth herein:
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound, hereby
agree as follows:
1.

Employment. The Company hereby employs Executive as its Chairman of
---------the Board and Chief Executive Officer. Executive shall also serve as a member
of the Company's Board of Directors (the "Board") and its Executive Committee.
Executive shall also serve as Chairman of each of Vail Associates, Inc. and Vail
Associates Real Estate Group, Inc., the Company's principal subsidiaries.
Executive hereby accepts such employment and agrees to perform his duties and
responsibilities in accordance with the terms, conditions and provisions
hereinafter set forth.
1.1.

Employment Term. The term of Executive's employment under this
--------------Agreement shall commence as of the date hereof (the "Effective Date") and shall
continue until September 30, 1999; provided, however, that on and after October
1, 1997, the Agreement shall automatically renew with the term of the Agreement
always being at least two years. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Executive's
employment and this Agreement may be terminated in accordance with Section 5
hereof. The period commencing on the Effective Date and ending on the date on
which the term of Executive's employment under the Agreement shall terminate is
hereinafter referred to as the "Employment Term."
1.2

Duties and Responsibilities. Executive shall serve as the
--------------------------Company's Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer and in such other
senior positions, if any, to which he may be elected by the Board during the
Employment Term. During the Employment Term, Executive shall perform all duties
and accept all responsibilities incident to, and not inconsistent with, such
positions as may be reasonably assigned to him by the Board.
1.3

Extent of Service. During the Employment Term, Executive agrees
----------------to use his best efforts to carry out his duties and responsibilities under
Section 1.2 hereof and, consistent with the other provisions of this Agreement,
to devote substantially all his business time, attention and energy thereto
except to the extent required by Executive's outside board
directorships, civic or charitable activities. Executive agrees not be become
engaged in any other business, civic or charitable activity which, in his
reasonable judgment, is likely to materially interfere with his ability to
discharge his duties and responsibilities to the Company. Executive agrees to
resign from or discontinue any other business, civic or charitable activity
which, in the reasonable judgment of the Board, is likely to materially
interfere with his ability to discharge his duties and responsibilities to the
Company.
1.4

Base Salary. For all the services rendered by Executive
----------hereunder, the Company shall pay Executive a base salary ("Base Salary"),
commencing on the Effective Date, at the annual rate of $560,000, payable in
installments at such times as the Company customarily pays its other senior
level executives (but in any event no less often than monthly). Executive's
Base Salary for each fiscal year of the Company commencing after the Effective

Date shall be reviewed for appropriate adjustment (but shall not be reduced
below $560,000 in any case) by the Board pursuant to its normal performance
review policies for senior level executives.
1.5

Retirement and Benefit Coverages. During the Employment Term,
-------------------------------Executive shall be entitled to participate in all (a) employee pension and
retirement plans and programs ("Retirement Plans") and (b) welfare benefit plans
and programs ("Benefit Coverages"), in each case as made available to the
Company's senior level executives as a group or to its employees generally and
as such Retirement Plans or Benefit Coverages may be in effect from time to
time. However, Executive specifically acknowledges that the Company has no
pension plan in effect as of the Effective Date. In addition, Executive shall
be entitled to (i) the Company's regular holiday and vacation policy, (ii)
annual membership in any clubs owned or managed by the Company (which shall
terminate concurrently with the date of termination of the Employment Term
pursuant to Section 5.1, 5.2, 5.3 or 5.6 and on the 90th day following the date
of termination of the Employment Term pursuant to Section 5.4 or 5.5), (iii)
customary use of the Company's products or services at no charge, and (iv) an
additional $5.0 million of term life insurance and $500,000 of annual disability
income protection (assuming Executive can medically qualify for coverage at
reasonable cost).
1.6

Relocation Reimbursement. Executive shall be entitled to up to
-----------------------$250,000 to reimburse all documented moving and relocation expenses, including a
tax equivalency payment (i.e., a "gross-up" for state and federal income taxes).
---Reimbursement shall be made to Executive within 15 days of written request
therefor accompanied by appropriate documentation of such expenses, and shall
include repayment of (i) all costs incurred by Executive in selling his
residences in Florida and Illinois, including legal fees, transfer and stamp
taxes, brokers' commissions, and other customary closing costs; (ii) all costs
of moving and/or storing Executive's furniture, other possessions and
automobiles; and (iii) all costs of commuting between Colorado and Illinois for
Executive or his family for up to 13 months; provided, however, in no case shall
the Company's obligation to reimburse Executive in accordance with this Section
exceed $250,000 including the tax equivalency payment.
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1.7(a)

Special Incentive Compensation. Executive shall be entitled
-----------------------------to a bonus at the annual rate of $250,000 ($20,833.33 per full month of service)
for the period from the Effective Date through September 30, 1997, to be paid on
October 1, 1997.
1.7(b)

Annual Incentive/Long-Term Incentive Program. On or after
-------------------------------------------October 1, 1997, Executive shall be entitled to participate in a short-term or
long-term incentive compensation program established by the Company for its
senior level executives generally. Payments under such programs shall depend
upon achievement of certain business performance targets specified and approved
annually in advance by the Board (or a Committee thereof) in its sole
discretion; provided, however, that Executive's "target opportunity" under any
such program shall be at least at the highest level of target award for any
other senior level executive, with Executive's bonus being at least $250,000
annually if the Company achieves the performance targets for such year.
Executive's short-term and long-term incentive compensation shall be paid to him
in the same form and at the same times that such compensation is paid to the
Company's senior level executives generally. Executive specifically
acknowledges that a portion of such incentive compensation may be deferred
subject to subsequent year financial performance of the Company, if such a
provision is consistent with the Company's then-existing compensation program
for other senior level executives.
1.8

Restricted Stock. Executive shall be entitled to receive, as of
---------------the Effective Date, 18,750 shares of the Company's common stock, $.01 par value
(the "Restricted Stock"). The number of shares of Restricted Stock shall be
increased by 2,679 shares on March 31, 1997 in the event that both the Company's
initial public offering of common stock (the "IPO") and the Company's proposed
acquisition of Ralston Resorts, Inc. (the "Acquisition") have not occurred by
such date. The certificates representing the Restricted Stock shall be retained

by the Company until such shares have vested. Except as provided in Sections 5
and 6 below, Executive's right to 20% of such shares shall vest as of the
completion of each year of Executive's employment beginning on the Effective
Date. Prior to vesting, Executive shall be entitled to vote the shares of
Restricted Stock and to be credited with any dividends attributable to such
shares; provided, however, that no payment of such dividends shall be made
unless and until, and only to the extent that, the related shares are vested;
and provided, further, that the Restricted Stock shall not be entitled to
receive any of the proceeds of the $55.0 million special dividend as described
in the Company's 1996 S-2 filing. Upon termination of the Employment Term for
any reason, that portion of the Restricted Stock that is not vested (after
giving effect to any acceleration of vesting pursuant to Sections 5 and 6) shall
be forfeited by Executive.
1.9

Stock Options. Executive shall receive, as of the Effective
------------Date, an option to purchase 130,000 shares of common stock of the Company
divided into Tranche A and Tranche B of 65,000 shares each (the "Option"), which
Option shall be a "non-qualified stock option" for federal income tax purposes.
The number of shares subject to the Option shall be adjusted for stock splits,
stock combinations or stock dividends but not for equity additions. The Option
exercise price shall be $40 per share, subject to reduction to $35 per share on
March 31, 1997 in the event that the IPO and the Acquisition have not occurred
by such date. Except as
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provided in Sections 5 and 6 below, the Option shall vest with respect to 20% of
the shares covered thereby as of the completion of each year of Executive's
employment beginning on the Effective Date. Upon termination of the Employment
Term for any reason, that portion of the Option that is not vested (after giving
effect to any acceleration of vesting pursuant to Sections 5 and 6) shall expire
and be forfieted. The Option shall have a 10 year term; provided, however, that
in the event of earlier termination of the Employment Term, the Option shall
expire 90 days after the date of such termination if such termination is
pursuant to Sections 5.3 or 5.6, and shall expire nine months after the date of
such termination if such termination is for any other reason. Executive shall be
credited with any dividends attributable to shares covered by the Option other
than regular dividends paid out of the Company's current earnings in accordance
with a multi-year dividend policy adopted and consistently applied by the Board
(it being understood that, since the Company's current policy is not to pay
regular dividends, the payment of dividends under a new dividend policy that is
intended in good faith to result in periodic dividends over a multi-year period
shall be deemed regular dividends). Payment of such credited dividends shall be
made at the time of, and only if and to the extent that, the Option becomes
vested and the shares are purchased upon exercise of the Option; provided,
however, that the shares subject to the Option shall not be entitled to receive
the proceeds of, and the related exercise price shall not be adjusted on account
of, the $55.0 million special dividend as described in the Company's 1996 S-2
filing.
1.10

Home Purchase. The Company shall purchase a home of Executive's
------------choosing in the Vail Valley for Executive's use as his personal residence during
the Employment Term and extending through but not beyond 90 days thereafter. It
shall be a condition of Executive's employment that Executive live in such
residence, and that the residence be located at the Company's Vail, Beaver
Creek, or Arrowhead resorts for the convenience of the Company. From such
residence Executive shall be expected by the Company to observe the operation of
the resorts, be on immediate 24-hour call in case of accident or emergency,
maintain a Company telephone extension in the residence, as well as entertain
customers and others important to the Company. The purchase price for such
residence shall not exceed $1.5 million, unless the Company at its sole option
chooses to fund a higher purchase price. The Company shall pay for the real
estate taxes, property insurance, homeowner's association assessments, and
exterior painting as needed, and shall provide that the major operational
systems of the residence are functional. Otherwise, Executive shall provide and
pay for the maintenance of the residence, including snow removal and
landscaping, interior painting as needed, insurance on Executive's possessions,
maintenance or replacement (if necessary) of appliances, and other incidental
repair. The Company agrees not to require Executive to change his residence
during the Employment Term other than in connection with the relocation of
Executive's office to another location in Eagle County, Summit County or the
Denver metropolitan area. The foregoing shall not preclude Executive, at his

sole option, from changing his personal residence to a new home during the
Employment Term so long as such new residence meets all of the requirements of
this Section and Executive bears all costs or losses resulting from such change,
including all brokerage commissions, transfer and stamp taxes,
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assessments and other charges as well as any loss to the Company from the sale
of the previous home.
1.11

Reimbursement of Expenses. Executive shall be reimbursed for
------------------------customary travel, entertainment and other out-of-pocket expenses reasonably
incurred by him on behalf of the Company in the performance of his duties
hereunder, which reimbursement shall be made in accordance with the Company's
normal reimbursement policies.
2.

Confidential Information. Executive recognizes and acknowledges that,
-----------------------by reason of his employment by and service to the Company before, during and, if
applicable, after the Employment Term, he has had and will continue to have
access to certain confidential and proprietary information relating to the
Company's business, which may include, but is not limited to, trade secrets,
trade "know-how", customer information, supplier information, cost and pricing
information, marketing and sales techniques, strategies and programs, computer
programs and software and financial information (collectively referred to as
"Confidential Information"). Executive acknowledges that such Confidential
Information is a valuable and unique asset of the Company and Executive
covenants that he will not at any time during the course of his employment use
any Confidential Information or divulge or disclose any Confidential Information
to any person, firm or corporation except in connection with Executive's good
faith belief as to the proper performance of his duties for the Company.
Executive also covenants that, at any time after the termination of his
employment, he will not directly or indirectly use any Confidential Information
for any purpose or divulge or disclose any Confidential Information to any
person, firm or corporation, unless such information is in the public domain
through no fault of Executive or except when required to do so by a court of
law, by any governmental agency having supervisory authority over the business
of the Company or over Executive or by any administrative or legislative body
(including a committee thereof) with apparent jurisdiction to order him to
divulge, disclose or make accessible such information, in which case Executive
will inform the Company in writing promptly of such required disclosure.
3.

Non-Competition, Non-Solicitation and Non-Disparagement.
-------------------------------------------------------

(a) During his employment by the Company and for a period of one year
thereafter, Executive will not, except with the prior written consent of the
Board, directly or indirectly own, manage, operate, join, control, finance or
participate in the ownership, management, operation, control or financing of, or
be connected as an officer, director, employee, partner, principal, agent,
representative, consultant or otherwise with, or use or permit his name to be
used in connection with, any business or enterprise that is engaged in a
"Competing Enterprise," which is defined as an entity whose operations are
conducted within the ski industry in North America or in the real estate
development, lodging or hospitality industries in the State of Colorado.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Executive may participate, own, finance, manage,
obtain employment or otherwise be connected with a larger regional, national or
international business or enterprise (a "New Employer") which owns or operates a
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Competing Enterprise as a brand, branch, division, subsidiary or affiliate
provided that (i) the Competing Enterprise accounts for less than 10% of the New
Employer's annual revenues and annual net income on both a historical or pro
forma basis for the New Employer's most recently completed fiscal year, and (ii)
Executive's duties for the New Employer are not primarily related to the conduct
of such Competing Enterprise.
(b) The foregoing restrictions shall not be construed to prohibit the
ownership by Executive of less than five percent (5%) of any class of securities
of any corporation which is engaged in any of the foregoing businesses having a

class of securities registered pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
(the "Exchange Act"), provided that such ownership represents a passive
investment and that neither Executive nor any group of persons including
Executive in any way, either directly or indirectly, manages or exercises
control of any such corporation, guarantees any of its financial obligations,
otherwise takes any part in its business (other than exercising his rights as a
shareholder), or seeks to do any of the foregoing.
(c) Executive further covenants and agrees that, during his employment
by the Company and for the period of one year thereafter, Executive will not
solicit for another business or enterprise any person who is a managerial or
higher level employee of the Company at the time of Executive's termination.
(d) During Executive's employment and for a period of five years
thereafter, Executive agrees that he shall not make any public statements
disparaging of the Company or its subsidiaries, the Board, or the officers,
directors, stockholders, or employees of the Company or its subsidiaries. The
Company shall similarly not disparage Executive following such termination.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties may respond truthfully to inquiries
from governmental agencies or from prospective employers of Executive.
Similarly, nothing in this provision is intended to prevent either party from
seeking to enforce the provisions of this Agreement through appropriate
proceedings.
4.

Equitable Relief.
----------------

(a) Executive acknowledges and agrees that the restrictions contained
in Sections 2 and 3 are reasonable and necessary to protect and preserve the
legitimate interests, properties, goodwill and business of the Company, that the
Company would not have entered into this Agreement in the absence of such
restrictions and that irreparable injury will be suffered by the Company should
Executive breach any of the provisions of those Sections. Executive represents
and acknowledges that (i) he has been advised by the Company to consult his own
legal counsel in respect of this Agreement, and (ii) that he has had full
opportunity, prior to execution of this Agreement, to review thoroughly this
Agreement with his counsel.
(b) Executive further acknowledges and agrees that a breach of any of
the restrictions in Sections 2 and 3 cannot be adequately compensated by
monetary damages. Executive agrees that the Company shall be entitled to
preliminary and permanent injunctive
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relief, without the necessity of proving actual damages, as well as an equitable
accounting of all earnings, profits and other benefits arising from any
violation of Sections 2 or 3 hereof, which rights shall be cumulative and in
addition to any other rights or remedies to which the Company may be entitled.
In the event that any of the provisions of Sections 2 or 3 hereof should ever be
adjudicated to exceed the time, geographic, service, or other limitations
permitted by applicable law in any jurisdiction, it is the intention of the
parties that the provision shall be amended to the extent of the maximum time,
geographic, service, or other limitations permitted by applicable law, that such
amendment shall apply only within the jurisdiction of the court that made such
adjudication and that the provision otherwise be enforced to the maximum extent
permitted by law.
5.

Termination. The Employment Term shall terminate upon the occurrence
----------of any one of the following events:
5.1

Disability. The Company may terminate the Employment Term if
---------Executive is unable substantially to perform his duties and responsibilities
hereunder to the full extent required by the Board by reason of illness, injury
or incapacity for six consecutive months, or for more than nine months in the
aggregate during any period of 12 calendar months (a "Disability"); provided,
however, that the Company shall continue to pay Executive his Base Salary until
the Company acts to terminate the Employment Term and Executive shall be
entitled to all Restricted Stock and Options that are vested as of the date of
such termination. In addition, in the event Executive executes a written
release in connection with such termination (such release to be effective only
if the Company executes such release) substantially in the form attached hereto

as Annex I (the "Release"), Executive shall be entitled to receive (i) upon the
achievement of the Company's performance targets for such year, a pro rata
portion of the incentive compensation Executive would have received under the
plans described in Section 1.7(b) for the year in which such termination
occurred, which amounts shall be payable in accordance with the terms of the
applicable plan, (ii) all deferred incentive compensation earned by Executive
with respect to prior years, which amounts shall be payable at the Company's
option either in a lump sum within 30 days of termination or in accordance with
the terms of the applicable plan, (iii) all amounts (including accrued vacation
pay but excluding severance compensation) to which Executive is then entitled
upon termination of employment under applicable plans and programs of the
Company then in effect, and (iv) all other amounts then due and payable to
Executive pursuant to the terms of this Agreement with respect to services
rendered prior to termination of employment. In addition, if Executive executes
the Release, all unvested shares of Restricted Stock and Tranche A of the Option
shall automatically become 100% vested upon termination of the Employment Term
pursuant to this Section 5.1. The Company shall have no further liability or
obligation to Executive for compensation under this Agreement. In the event of
any dispute under this Section 5.1 and to the extent determined by the Board to
be job-related and consistent with business necessity, Executive shall submit to
a physical examination by a licensed physician selected by the Board and
approved by Executive, such approval not to be unreasonably withheld.
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5.2

Death. The Employment Term shall terminate in the event of
----Executive's death. In such event, the Company shall pay to Executive's
executors, legal representatives or administrators, as applicable, an amount
equal to the installment of his Base Salary set forth in Section 1.4 hereof for
the month in which he dies. In addition, Executive's estate shall be entitled
to receive (i) previously vested shares of Restricted Stock and Options, (ii)
upon the achievement of the Company's performance targets for such year, a pro
rata portion of the incentive compensation Executive would have received under
the plans described in Section 1.7(b) for the year in which such termination
occurred, which amounts shall be payable in accordance with the terms of the
applicable plan, (iii) all deferred incentive compensation earned by Executive
with respect to prior years, which amounts shall be payable at the Company's
option either in a lump sum within 30 days of termination or in accordance with
the terms of the applicable plan, (iv) all amounts (including accrued vacation
pay but excluding severance compensation) to which Executive is then entitled
upon termination of employment under applicable plans and programs of the
Company then in effect, and (v) all other amounts then due and payable to
Executive pursuant to the terms of this Agreement with respect to services
rendered prior to termination of employment. In addition, all unvested shares of
Restricted Stock and Tranche A of the Option shall automatically become 100%
vested upon termination of the Employment Term pursuant to this Section 5.2. The
Company shall have no further liability or obligation under this Agreement to
his executors, legal representatives, administrators, heirs or assigns or any
other person claiming under or through him.
5.3

Cause. The Company may terminate the Employment Term at any time
----for "cause" upon written notice to Executive, in which event all payments under
this Agreement shall cease, except for (i) Base Salary to the extent already
earned or accrued, (ii) previously vested shares of Restricted Stock and
Options, (iii) all amounts (including accrued vacation pay but excluding
severance compensation) to which Executive is then entitled upon termination of
employment under applicable plans and programs of the Company then in effect,
and (iv) all other amounts then due and payable to Executive pursuant to the
terms of this Agreement with respect to services rendered prior to termination
of employment. For purposes of this Agreement, Executive's employment may be
terminated for "cause" if (i) Executive is convicted of a felony, (ii) in the
reasonable determination of the Board, Executive has (x) committed an act of
fraud, embezzlement, or theft in connection with Executive's duties in the
course of his employment with the Company, or (y) engaged in gross mismanagement
or gross negligence in the course of his employment with the Company or (iii)
Executive has breached his obligations under this Agreement, including
inattention to or neglect of duties, and shall not have remedied such breach
within 30 days after receiving written notice from the Board specifying the
details thereof; provided, however, that in any case under clause (ii) or (iii),
the act or failure to act by Executive is materially harmful to the reputation,
goodwill or business position of the Company or its subsidiaries.
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5.4 Termination Without Cause.
------------------------(a) The Company may terminate the Employment Term at any time without
cause upon written notice to Executive; provided, however, that in the event
that such notice is given, Executive shall be under no obligation to render any
additional services to the Company and shall be allowed to seek other
employment, subject to the restrictions set forth in Section 3(a). Upon any
such termination, except as provided in Section 5.4(b) below, Executive shall be
entitled to receive, as liquidated damages for the failure of the Company to
continue to employ Executive, only the amount due to Executive under the
Company's then-current severance pay plan for employees and (i) Base Salary to
the extent already earned or accrued, (ii) all deferred incentive compensation
earned by Executive with respect to prior years, which amounts shall be payable
at the Company's option either in a lump sum within 30 days of termination or in
accordance with the terms of the applicable plans, (iii) previously vested
shares of Restricted Stock and Options, (iv) all amounts (including accrued
vacation pay) to which Executive is then entitled upon termination of employment
under applicable plans and programs of the Company then in effect, and (v) all
other amounts then due and payable to Executive pursuant to the terms of this
Agreement with respect to services rendered prior to termination of employment.
The Company shall have no further liability or obligation to Executive for
compensation under this Agreement.
(b) Notwithstanding the foregoing, upon such termination, in the event
that Executive executes the Release, Executive shall be entitled to receive, in
lieu of the payments described in subsection (a) hereof, which Executive agrees
to waive, as liquidated damages for the failure of the Company to continue to
employ Executive, (i) two years' of Executive's Base Salary in accordance with
Section 1.4 or, if greater, for the balance of the current Employment Term
(without regard to Executive's removal), payable in accordance with the
Company's normal payroll practices over such period, (ii) previously vested
shares of Restricted Stock and Options, (iii) upon the achievement of the
Company's performance targets for such year, a pro rata portion of the incentive
compensation Executive would have received under the plans described in Section
1.7(b) for the year in which such termination occurred, which amounts shall be
payable in accordance with the terms of the applicable plan, (iv) all deferred
incentive compensation earned by Executive with respect to prior years, which
amounts shall be payable at the Company's option either in a lump sum within 30
days of termination or in accordance with the terms of the applicable plan, (v)
all amounts (including accrued vacation pay but excluding severance
compensation) to which Executive is then entitled upon termination of employment
under applicable plans and programs of the Company then in effect, and (vi) all
other amounts then due and payable to Executive pursuant to the terms of this
Agreement with respect to services rendered prior to termination of employment.
In addition, if Executive executes the Release, all unvested shares of
Restricted Stock and Tranche A of the Option shall automatically become 100%
vested upon termination of the Employment Term pursuant to this Section 5.4.
The Company shall have no further liability or obligation to Executive for
compensation under this Agreement.
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5.5

Constructive Termination Without Cause.
--------------------------------------

(a) Resignation by Executive for good reason ("Constructive
Termination Without Cause") shall mean a termination of Executive's employment
at his initiative following the occurrence, without Executive's written consent,
of (i) a material diminution in Executive's duties, responsibilities, authority,
or status, (ii) a reduction in Executive's Base Salary below $560,000 per year
or failure to pay Executive's bonus or incentive compensation in violation of
Section 1.7(a) or (b), (iii) a failure to convey, within 10 business days after
written request of Executive, any vested Restricted Shares or any shares
purchased upon exercise of the Option, (iv) the assignment to Executive of
duties or obligations despite his stated written objection to the Board which
would require Executive to violate any law, or interpretation thereof, of any
governmental body of the United States or the state of Colorado, (v) an
involuntary relocation of Executive's office outside of Eagle or Summit Counties
or the Denver metropolitan area or away from the Company's principal executive
offices, or (vi) a failure of the Company to comply with any of the material

terms of this Agreement.
(b) In the event of a Constructive Termination Without Cause, if
Executive executes the Release, Executive shall be entitled to receive (i) two
years' of Executive's Base Salary in accordance with Section 1.4 or, if greater,
for the balance of the current Employment Term (without regard to Executive's
removal), payable in accordance with the Company's normal payroll practices over
such period, (ii) previously vested shares of Restricted Stock and Options,
(iii) upon the achievement of the Company's performance targets for such year, a
pro rata portion of the incentive compensation Executive would have received
under the plans described in Section 1.7(b) for the year in which such
termination occurred, which amounts shall be payable in accordance with the
terms of the applicable plan, (iv) all deferred incentive compensation earned by
Executive with respect to prior years, which amounts shall be payable at the
Company's option either in a lump sum within 30 days of termination or in
accordance with the terms of the applicable plan, (v) all amounts (including
accrued vacation pay but excluding severance compensation) to which Executive is
then entitled upon termination of employment under applicable plans and programs
of the Company then in effect, and (vi) all other amounts then due and payable
to Executive pursuant to the terms of this Agreement with respect to services
rendered prior to termination of employment. In addition, if Executive executes
the Release, all unvested shares of Restricted Stock and Tranche A of the Option
shall automatically become 100% vested upon termination of the Employment Term
pursuant to this Section 5.5. In the event Executive refuses to execute the
Release, he shall receive, as liquidated damages for the failure of the Company
to continue to employ Executive, only the amount due to Executive under the
Company's then current severance pay plan for employees and (i) Base Salary to
the extent already earned or accrued, (ii) all deferred incentive compensation
earned by Executive with respect to prior years, which amounts shall be payable
at the Company's option either in a lump sum within 30 days of termination or in
accordance with the terms of the applicable plans, (iii) previously vested
shares of Restricted Stock and Options, (iv) all amounts (including accrued
vacation pay) to which Executive is then entitled upon termination of employment
under applicable plans and programs of the Company then in
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effect, and (v) all other amounts then due and payable to Executive pursuant to
the terms of this Agreement with respect to services rendered prior to
termination of employment. The Company shall have no further liability or
obligation to Executive for compensation under this Agreement.
(c) Prior to resigning under this Section, Executive shall give
written notice to the Board and offer a 30-day period for the Company to cure.
If, and only if, the Company cures an issue raised by the Executive under this
Section, and Executive again feels it necessary to resign under this Section,
Executive shall again given written notice to the Board and offer a new 30-day
period for the Company to cure. If no cure has been effected by the end of the
applicable cure period, Executive may resign immediately in accordance with the
provisions of subsections (a) and (b) above. After two such cure periods, only
written notice must be given but no cure period will be required.
5.6

Voluntary Termination. Executive may voluntarily terminate the
--------------------Employment Term upon 30 days' prior written notice for any reason. In such
event, Executive shall be entitled only to (i) Base Salary to the extent already
earned or accrued, (ii) previously vested shares of Restricted Stock and
Options, (iii) all amounts (including accrued vacation pay but excluding
severance compensation) to which Executive is then entitled upon termination of
employment under applicable plans and programs of the Company then in effect,
and (iv) all other amounts then due and payable to Executive pursuant to the
terms of this Agreement with respect to services rendered prior to termination
of employment. The Company shall have no further liability or obligation to
Executive for compensation under this Agreement. A voluntary termination under
this Section 5.6 shall not be deemed a breach of this Agreement.
6.

Acceleration of Vesting Following a Change of Control. In the event
----------------------------------------------------of a "change of control" of the Company, defined to mean that a person other
than Apollo Ski Partners L.P. or its affiliates ("Apollo") owns at least 51% of
the Company's outstanding common stock or controls at least 51% of the seats on
the Board, all of Executive's rights under the Option and to the Restricted
Stock shall immediately vest if either (i) Executive remains employed with the
Company for at least six months after a change of control occurs, or (ii)

Executive's employment is terminated following such change in control pursuant
to Section 5.1, 5.2, 5.4, or 5.5. In the event Apollo sells two-thirds or more
of its shares of common stock in connection with a change in control occurring
prior to the IPO, at Executive's sole option, some or all of Executive's shares
which are vested or become vested under this Section 6 (including shares covered
by the Option) may be sold for the same price and terms as Apollo receives and
the proceeds (net of the applicable exercise price in the case of shares covered
by the Option, which exercise price shall be paid to the Company) shall be held
in escrow by a mutually acceptable escrow agent and paid to Executive on the
third business day following the completion of the six-month period referenced
in clause (i) above or the date of termination of Executive's employment
pursuant to Section 5.1, 5.2, 5.4 or 5.5, as applicable. In the event of
termination of Executive's employment prior to completion of such six-month
period other than pursuant to Section 5.1, 5.2, 5.4 of 5.5, Executive shall be
entitled to receive only that portion of such proceeds as is attributable to
Executive's shares that are vested as of the date of
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termination without regard to this Section 6, and the balance of such proceeds
shall be forfeited to the Company.
7.

Survivorship. The respective rights and obligations of the parties
-----------hereunder shall survive any termination of Executive's employment and the
Employment Term to the extent necessary to the intended preservation of such
rights and obligations.
8.

No Mitigation. Executive shall not be required to mitigate the amount
------------of any payment or benefit provided for in this Agreement by seeking other
employment or otherwise and there shall be no offset against amounts due
Executive under this Agreement on account of any remuneration attributable to
any subsequent employment that he may obtain. All payments to be made by the
Company to Executive hereunder shall be made without any offset or deduction for
any amounts owed by Executive to the Company.
9.

Arbitration; Expenses. In the event of any dispute under the
--------------------provisions of this Agreement other than a dispute in which the primary relief
sought is an equitable remedy such as an injunction, the parties shall be
required to have the dispute, controversy or claim settled by arbitration in the
City of New York, New York in accordance with the National Rules for the
Resolution of Employment Disputes then in effect of the American Arbitration
Association, before a panel of three arbitrators, two of whom shall be selected
by the Company and Executive, respectively, and the third of whom shall be
selected by the other two arbitrators. Any award entered by the arbitrators
shall be final, binding and nonappealable and judgment may be entered thereon by
either party in accordance with applicable law in any court of competent
jurisdiction. This arbitration provision shall be specifically enforceable.
The arbitrators shall have no authority to modify any provision of this
Agreement or to award a remedy for a dispute involving this Agreement other than
a benefit specifically provided under or by virtue of the Agreement. The
Company shall be responsible for all of its own legal fees and other expenses
relating to such arbitration. The fees of the American Arbitration Association
and the legal fees and expenses of Executive relating to such arbitration shall
be borne in the manner determined by order of the arbitrators.
10.

Notices. All notices and other communications required or permitted
------hereunder or necessary or convenient in connection herewith shall be in writing
and shall be deemed to have been given when hand delivered or mailed by
registered or certified mail, as follows (provided that notice of change of
address shall be deemed given only when received):
If to the Company, to:
Vail Resorts, Inc.
P.O. Box 7
Vail, CO 81658
Attention: General Counsel
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If to Executive, to:
Adam M. Aron
c/o Vail Resorts, Inc.
P.O. Box 7
Vail, CO 81658
With a required copy to:
Morgan, Lewis & Bockius
2000 One Logan Square
Philadelphia, PA 19103-6993
Attention: Robert J. Lichtenstein, Esq.
or to such other names or addresses as the Company or Executive, as the case may
be, shall designate by notice to each other person entitled to receive notices
in the manner specified in this Section.
11.

Contents of Agreement; Amendment and Assignment.
-----------------------------------------------

(a) This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements and sets forth
the entire understanding between the parties hereto with respect to the subject
matter hereof and cannot be changed, modified, extended or terminated except as
provided herein or upon written amendment approved by the Company and executed
on its behalf by a duly authorized officer and by Executive.
(b) All of the terms and provisions of this Agreement shall be
binding upon and inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by the respective
heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, successors and assigns
of the parties hereto, except that the duties and responsibilities of Executive
hereunder are of a personal nature and shall not be assignable or delegatable in
whole or in part by Executive. The Company shall require any successor (whether
direct or indirect, by purchase, merger, consolidation, reorganization or
otherwise) to all or substantially all of the business or assets of the Company,
by agreement in form and substance satisfactory to Executive, expressly to
assume and agree to perform this Agreement in the same manner and to the extent
the Company would be required to perform if no such succession had taken place,
and upon request by the Company Executive shall acknowledge, by agreement in
form and substance reasonably acceptable to such successor, that this Agreement
may be enforced against Executive by such successor.
12.

Severability. If any provision of this Agreement or application
-----------thereof to anyone or under any circumstances is adjudicated to be invalid or
unenforceable in any jurisdiction, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not
affect any other provision or application of this
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Agreement which can be given effect without the invalid or unenforceable
provision or application and shall not invalidate or render unenforceable such
provision or application in any other jurisdiction. If any provision is held
void, invalid or unenforceable with respect to particular circumstances, it
shall nevertheless remain in full force and effect in all other circumstances.
13.

Remedies Cumulative; No Waiver. No remedy conferred upon a party by
-----------------------------this Agreement is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, and each and
every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to any other
remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity. No
delay or omission by a party in exercising any right, remedy or power hereunder
or existing at law or in equity shall be construed as a waiver thereof, and any
such right, remedy or power may be exercised by such party from time to time and
as often as may be deemed expedient or necessary by such party in its sole
discretion.
14.

Beneficiaries/References. Executive shall be entitled, to the extent
-----------------------permitted under any applicable law, to select and change a beneficiary or
beneficiaries to receive any compensation or benefit payable hereunder following
Executive's death by giving the Company written notice thereof. In the event of
Executive's death or a judicial determination of his incompetence, references in

this Agreement to Executive shall be deemed, where appropriate, to refer to his
beneficiary, estate or other legal representative.
15.

Miscellaneous. All section headings used in this Agreement are for
------------convenience only. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which
is an original. It shall not be necessary in making proof of this Agreement or
any counterpart hereof to produce or account for any of the other counterparts.
16.

Withholding. The Company may withhold from any payments under this
----------Agreement all federal, state and local taxes as the Company is required to
withhold pursuant to any law or governmental rule or regulation. Executive
shall bear all expense of, and be solely responsible for, all federal, state and
local taxes due with respect to any payment received hereunder.
17.

Indemnification and Insurance. Executive shall be indemnified with
----------------------------respect to his services hereunder to the full extent provided in the Company's
by-laws, and the Company agrees during the Employment Term to maintain
directors' and officers' liability insurance with coverage and other terms that
are customary for similarly situated companies.
18.

Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted
------------under the laws of the State of Colorado without giving effect to any conflict of
laws provisions.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned, intending to be legally bound, have
executed this Agreement as of the date first above written.
VAIL RESORTS, INC.

EXECUTIVE

By: /s/ James S. Mandel
-----------------------James S. Mandel
Sr. Vice President

/s/ Adam M. Aron
------------------------Adam M. Aron
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MUTUAL RELEASE

This mutual release (this "Release") is entered into as of this _____ day
of __________________, _____ (the "Release Date") by Adam M. Aron ("Aron"), on
the one hand and Vail Resorts, Inc. ("VRI") on the other hand.
1.
Reference is hereby made to the employment agreement dated July 29,
1996 (the "Employment Agreement") by the parties hereto setting forth the
agreements among the parties regarding the termination of the employment
relationship between Aron and VRI. Capitalized terms used but not defined
herein have the meanings ascribed to them in the Employment Agreement.
2.
Aron, for himself, his wife, heirs, executors, administrators,
successors, and assigns, hereby releases and discharges VRI and its respective
direct and indirect parents and subsidiaries, and other affiliated companies,
and each of their respective past and present officers, directors, agents and
employees, from any and all actions, causes of action, claims, demands,
grievances, and complaints, known and unknown, which Aron or his wife, heirs,
executors, administrators, successors, or assigns ever had or may have at any
time through the Release Date. Aron acknowledges and agrees that this Release
is intended to and does cover, but is not limited to, (i) any claim of
employment discrimination of any kind whether based on a federal, state, or
local statute or court decision, including the Age Discrimination in Employment
Act with appropriate notice and recision periods observed; (ii) any claim,
whether statutory, common law, or otherwise, arising out of the terms or
conditions of Aron's employment at VRI and/or Aron's separation from VRI;
enumeration of specific rights, claims, and causes of action being released
shall not be construed to limit the general scope of this Release. It is the
intent of the parties that by this Release Aron is giving up all rights, claims

and causes of action occurring prior to the Release Date, whether or not any
damage or injury therefrom has yet occurred. Aron accepts the risk of loss with
respect to both undiscovered claims and with respect to claims for any harm
hereafter suffered arising out of conduct, statements, performance or decisions
occurring before the Release Date.
3.
VRI hereby releases and discharges Aron, his wife, heirs, executors,
administrators, successors, and assigns, from any and all actions, causes of
actions, claims, demands, grievances and complaints, known and unknown, which
VRI ever had or may have at any time through the Release Date. VRI acknowledges
and agrees that this Release is intended to and does cover, but is not limited
to, (i) any claim, whether statutory, common law, or otherwise, arising out of
the terms or conditions of Aron's employment at VRI and/or Aron's separation
from VRI, and (ii) any claim for attorneys' fees, costs, disbursements, or other
like expenses. The enumeration of specific rights, claims, and causes of action
being released shall not be construed to limit the general scope of this
Release. It is the intent of the parties that by this Release VRI is giving up
all of its respective rights, claims, and causes of action occurring
16
prior to the Release Date, whether or not any damage or injury therefrom has yet
occurred. VRI accepts the risk of loss with respect to both undiscovered claims
and with respect to claims for any harm hereafter suffered arising out of
conduct, statements, performance or decisions occurring before the Release Date.
4.
This Release shall in no event (i) apply to any claim by either Aron
or VRI arising from any breach by the other party of its obligations under the
Employment Agreement occurring on or after the Release Date, (ii) waive Aron's
claim with respect to compensation or benefits earned or accrued prior to the
Release Date to the extent such claim survives termination of Aron's employment
under the terms of the Employment Agreement, or (iii) waive Aron's right to
indemnification under the by-laws of the Company.
5.
This Mutual Release shall be effective as of the Release Date and only
if executed by both parties.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each party hereto, intending to be legally bound, has
executed this Mutual Release on the date indicated below.
VAIL RESORTS, INC.

By:
- ---------------------Adam M. Aron

------------------------

Date:

Date:
-----------------
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<ARTICLE> 5
<MULTIPLIER> 1,000
<PERIOD-TYPE>
<FISCAL-YEAR-END>
<PERIOD-START>
<PERIOD-END>
<CASH>
<SECURITIES>
<RECEIVABLES>
<ALLOWANCES>
<INVENTORY>
<CURRENT-ASSETS>
<PP&E>
<DEPRECIATION>
<TOTAL-ASSETS>
<CURRENT-LIABILITIES>
<BONDS>
<PREFERRED-MANDATORY>
<PREFERRED>
<COMMON>
<OTHER-SE>
<TOTAL-LIABILITY-AND-EQUITY>
<SALES>
<TOTAL-REVENUES>
<CGS>
<TOTAL-COSTS>
<OTHER-EXPENSES>
<LOSS-PROVISION>
<INTEREST-EXPENSE>
<INCOME-PRETAX>
<INCOME-TAX>
<INCOME-CONTINUING>
<DISCONTINUED>
<EXTRAORDINARY>
<CHANGES>
<NET-INCOME>
<EPS-PRIMARY>
<EPS-DILUTED>

12-MOS
SEP-30-1996
OCT-01-1995
SEP-30-1996
12,712
0
5,741
0
4,639
45,782
227,844
(35,175)
422,612
98,997
0
0
0
100
123,807
422,612
188,943
188,943
0
161,537
0
0
14,904
8,958
4,223
4,735
0
0
0
4,735
0.44
0.44

12-MOS
SEP-30-1995
OCT-01-1994
SEP-30-1995
47,534
0
5,135
0
4,221
70,106
232,527
(27,376)
429,628
37,563
0
0
0
99
167,595
429,628
142,875
142,875
0
121,957
0
0
19,498
7,157
3,875
3,282
0
0
0
3,282
0.32
0.32

